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. the period
SOLISOILIRIAIED o fomoibam  fomoiman
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT(,LN '000) t031Dec2008 o )
Interest income 2 3398102 2480688
Interest expenses 2 2 246 085 1432818
Net interest income 2 1152 017 1047 870
Commission income 3 1034 184 1020 148
Commission expenses 3 144 461 121 385
Net commission income 3 889 723 898 763
Net income on investment financial assets 4 44 723 25780
26\}/:&;%?5 on instruments measured at fair valumutgh profit and loss and 26 012 36 121
Net income on other basic activities 6 19013 20770
Result on basic activities 2079 464 2029 304
General and administrative expenses 7 1 506 880 1380573
Result on other operating income and expenses 8 -7 848 8 537
Impairment losses and provisions for off-balanceestiabilities 9 65 601 -103 197
Share in net profit (loss) of associated entiteepgnised under the equity method 10 48 232 43 598
Profit (loss) before tax 563 063 786 989
Income tax 1 117 645 150 167
Net profit (loss) 445 418 636 822
- assigned to shareholders of the holding compgn 445 413 630 724
- assigned to minority shareholders 5 6 098
Net profit (loss) assigned to shareholders of theolding company 445 413 630 724
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 13 010 000 13 010 000
Earnings per ordinary share (PLN)’ 12 34,24 48,48

SIGNATURES OF THE MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF
ING BANK SL4ASKI SA.

Brunon Bartkiewicz
Presider
Signed on the Polish original

Mirostaw Boda
Vice-Presider
Sgned on the Polish original

Michat Bolestawski
Vice-President
Signed on the Polish original

Justyna Keslel
Vice-President
Sgned on the Polish original

Malgorzata Kotakowska
Vice-President
Signed on the Polish original

Oscar Edward Swar
Vice-President
Sgned on the Polish original

Michat Szczurek
Vice-President
Signed on the Polish original

SIGNATURE OF THE PERSON ENTRUSTED WITH KEEPING THE ACCOUNTING BOOKS

Eugenia Sikore
Director of the Bank, Chief Account:
Sgned on the Polish original

Katowice, 25.02.2009

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account shall be analysedtegevith the notes to the financial statement being theghale

part thereof

*) In the years 2008 and 2007 no dilution reasoasewoted at the Group since the value of dilutefitpper one share equals the value of core profit
per one share. 1
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ‘e as ot s
(PLN '000) 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
ASSETS

- Cash in hand and balances with the CentrakBan 14 1369 795 1841725

- Loans and receivables to other banks 15 7787 225 15 183 665

- Financial assets measured at fair value thrqurgfit and loss 16 15 128 584 7 907 564

- Investments 17 18 050 922 9 388 273

- available-for-sale 17 10 739 090 8547 497
- held-to-maturity 17 7311832 840 776

- Derivative hedge instruments 19 197 003 4572

- Loans and receivables to customers 20 25742 839 16 379 138

- Investments in controlled entities recognisader the equity method 22 107 261 97 326

- Investment real estates 23 151 458 144 713

- Property, plant and equipment 24 544 163 532 938

- Intangible assets 25 316 187 318 825

- Property, plant and equipment held for sale 26 248 241

- Current tax asset 142 25 256

- Deferred tax asset 27 48 651 49 292

- Other assets 28 165 997 137 332
Total assets 69 610 475 52 010 860

SIGNATURES OF THE MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF ING BANK SLASKI SA.

Brunon Bartkiewicz Mirostaw Boda
Presider Vice-Presider

Signed on the Polish original Signed on the Polish original
Michat Bolestawsk Justyna Kesler
Vice-President Vice-President

Signed on the Polish original Signed on the Polish original
Malgorzata Kotakowska Oscar Edward Swan
Vice-President Vice-President

Signed on the Polish original Signed on the Polish original

Michat Szczurek
Vice-President
Signed on the Polish original

SIGNATURE OF THE PERSON ENTRUSTED WITH KEEPING THE ACCOUNTING BOOKS

Eugenia Sikore
Director of the Bank, Chief Account:
Signed on the Polish original

Katowice, 25.02.2009

Consolidated Balance Sheet shall be analysed tgeith the notes to the financial statement béirgintegral part thereof.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET - s B
(PLN '000) 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES

- Liabilities due to the Central Bank 30 5932 116 0

- Liabilities due to other banks 31 6 060 868 1810195

- Financial liabilities measured at fair valhedaugh profit and loss 32 5146 698 1214981

- Derivative hedge instruments 19 420 047 0

- Liabilities due to customers 33 47 066 918 44 501 837

- Provisions 34 50 579 72 507

- Current income tax liabilities 39 148 126

- Other liabilities 35 669 672 570 712
Total liabilities 65 386 046 48 170 358
EQUITY

- Share capital 36 130 100 130 100

- Supplementary capital - issuance of shares mvainal value 956 250 956 250

- Revaluation reserve from measurement of availor-sale financial assets 37 -100 981 -149 591

- Revaluation reserve from measurement of ptgpplant and equipment 37 52 864 57 998

- Revaluation reserve from measurement of dashtedging instruments 37 45 581 0

- Retained earnings 38 3138 316 2 844 026
Equity attributed to the holding company 4222 130 3838 783

- Minority equity 2299 1719
Total equity 4 224 429 3 840 502
Total equity and liabilites 69 610 475 52 010 860
Solvency ratio 10,39% 13,12%
Book value 4222 130 3838 783
Number of shares 13 010 000 13 010 000
Book value per share (PLN) 324,53 295,06

SIGNATURES OF THE MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF ING BANK SLASKI SA.

Brunon Bartkiewicz Mirostaw Boda
Presider Vice-Presider

Signed on the Polish original Signed on the Polish original
Michat Bolestawsk Justyna Kesler
Vice-President Vice-President

Signed on the Polish original Signed on the Polish original
Malgorzata Kotakowska Oscar Edward Swan
Vice-President Vice-President

Signed on the Polish original Signed on the Polish original

Michat Szczurek
Vice-President
Signed on the Polish original

SIGNATURE OF THE PERSON ENTRUSTED WITH KEEPING THE ACCOUNTING BOOKS

Eugenia Sikore
Director of the Bank, Chief Account:
Signed on the Polish original

Katowice, 25.02.2009

Consolidated Balance Sheet shall be analysed tgeith the notes to the financial statement béirgintegral part thereof.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED EQUIT YL ‘o00)

the period from 01 Jan 2008 to 31 Dec 2008

o Revaluation Revaluation Revaluation
& i':; B issuarrlz reserve from reserve from reserve from
Share capital 0‘: e p—— measurement of measurement of measurement ofRetained earnings Minority equity Total equity
Tl available-for-sal| property, plant |cash flow hedgin
financial assets and equipment,  instruments
Opening balance of equity 130 100 956 250 -149 591 5B99 0 2 844 026 1719 3840 502
- gains/losses on remeasurement of availaipledie financial assets|
charged to equity - - 240 366 - - - - 240 366
- reclassified to the financial result as suteof sale of available-for-
sale financial assets B ) -192191 ) B ) B -192 191
- adjustment of valuation of securities resslfied from the available: _ R 435 | _ R _ 435
for-sale portfolio to the portfolio of loans and:eé/ables
- disposal of property, plant and equipment - - - -569 - 1094 - 525
- remeasurement of property, plant and equipme - - - -4 565 - - 575 -3 990
- effective part of cash flow hedging instruniserevaluation - - - - 45 581 - - 45 581
- dividends paid - - - - - -152 217 - -152 217
Gains/losses recognised in equity 0 0 48 610 -5134 45581 1-183 575 -61 491
Net result for the current period - - - - - 445 418 - 445 4B
Share of minority shareholders in the net financia R ) R } R 5 5 0
result
Closing balance of equity 130 100 956 250 -100 981 52486 45 581 3138 316 2299 4 224 429
Note: 36,37,38
the period from 01 Jan 2007 to 31 Dec 2007
o Revaluation Revaluation Revaluation
& i':; B issuarrlz reserve from reserve from reserve from
Share capital 0‘: e p—— measurement of measurement of measurement ofRetained earnings Minority equity Total equity
T available-for-sal| property, plant |cash flow hedgin
financial assets and equipment,  instruments
Opening balance of equity 130 100 956 250 42 830 52 263 0 2 574 251 22 699 3778 393
- gains/losses on remeasurement of availaipledie financial assets|
charged to equity - - -174 090 - - - - -174 090
- reclassified to the financial result as suteof sale of available-for-
sale financial assets B ) -18 331 ) B ) B -18 331
- disposal of property, plant and equipment - - - -257| - 2030 - 1773
- remeasurement of property, plant and equipme - - - -2 979 - - 1098 -1881
- purchase of shares in subsidiary entity ftbenminority shareholder: - - - 8971 - - -28 176 -19 205
- dividends paid - - - - - -362 979 - -362 979
Gains/losses recognised in equity 0 0 -192 421 5735 0 -360 99 -27 078 -574 713
Net result for the current period - - - - - 636 822 - 636 82
rSehSaL\Jrlf of minority shareholders in the net financia } ) . ) . -6 098 6098 0
Closing balance of equity 0 0 -192 421 5735 0 269 775 -20 980 62 109

Note: 36,37,38

SIGNATURES OF THE MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF ING BANK SLASKI

Brunon Bartkiewicz
President
Sgned on the Polish original

Mirostaw Boda
Vice-President

Sgned on the Polish original

Michat Bolestawsk
Vice-President
Sgned on the Polish original

Justyna Kesler
Vice-President

Sgned on the Polish original

Matgorzata Kotakowska
Vice-President
Sgned on the Polish original

Oscar Edward Swan

Vice-President

Signed on the Polish original

Michat Szczurek
Vice-President
Sgned on the Polish original

SIGNATURE OF THE PERSON ENTRUSTED WITH KEEPING THE ACCOUNTING BOOKS

Eugenia Sikore
Director of the Bank, Chief Accountant
Sgned on the Polish original

Katowice, 25.02.2009

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity shall be @wblggether with the notes to the financial statement bleémtegral part thereof
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

the period

Note from 01 Jan 200¢

the period
from 01 Jan 2007

(PLN '000) to 31 Dec 2008 to 31 Dec 2007
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit (loss) 445 413 630 724
Adjustments -891 097 -3 395 827

- Minority shareholders' profit (®s 38 5 6 098

- Share in net profit (loss) of agated entities 10 -48 232 -43 598

- Depreciation and amortisation 7 133797 154 799

- Interest accrued (from the prafit loss account) 2 1152017 1047 870

- Interest paid 2142 243 1425679

- Interest received -3 064 794 -2 480 177

- Dividends received 4 -7 235 -2761

- Gains (losses) on investment #iets/ -671 6

- Income tax (from the profit andscaccount) 11 117 645 150 167

- Income tax paid -52 868 -253 989

- Change in provisions 34 -21 928 -17 817

- Change in loans and other recéggato other banks 15 7 651 699 -5723813

- Change in financial assets at\alue through profit or loss 16 -7 274 474 -887 290

- Change in available-for-sale ficahassets 17 -4 759 887 3976 334

- Change in held-to-maturity finaal@ssets 17 -6 639 365 -850 837

- Change in derivative hedge insents 19 273 197 -1243

- Change in loans and other recéggato customers 20 -7 381 064 -3495 251

- Change in other assets 6 429 4760

- Change in liabilities due to othemks 31 10 198 857 -279 671

- Change in liabilities at fair valthrough profit or loss 32 3931717 -1 896 232

- Change in liabilities due to cuséws 33 2 652 855 5961 332

- Change in other liabilities 98 960 -190 193
Net cash flow from operating activities -445 684 -2 765 103
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

- Purchase of property plant andpegant 24 -97 661 -71 216

- Disposal of property, plant andipqment 1123 1936

- Purchase of intangible assets 25 -52 705 -60 402

- Purchase of investments in sulmargid entities 0 -18 971

- Disposal of fixed assets heldate 516 4416

- Dividends received 4 7235 2761
Net cash flow from investment activities -141 492 -141 476
FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

- Long-term loans repaid 0 -19 140

- Interest on long-term loans repaid 0 -1763

- Dividends paid 13 -152 217 -362 979
Net cash flow from financial activities -152 217 -383 882
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 283545 -72874
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents -739 393 -3 290 461
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 4 872 755 8 163 216
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 47 4133 362 4872 755

SIGNATURES OF THE MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF ING BANK SLASKI SA.

Brunon Bartkiewicz
President
Sgned on the Polish original

Mirostaw Boda
Vice-President
Sgned on the Polish original

Michat Bolestawski
Vice-President
Sgned on the Polish original

Justyna Kesler
Vice-President
Sgned on the Polish original

Matgorzata Kotakowska
Vice-President
Sgned on the Polish original

Oscar Edward Swan
Vice-President
Sgned on the Polish original

Michat Szczurek
Vice-President
Sgned on the Polish original

SIGNATURE OF THE PERSON ENTRUSTED WITH KEEPING THE ACCOUNTING BOOKS

Eugenia Sikora
Director of the Bank, Chief Accountant
Sgned on the Polish original

Katowice, 25.02.2009

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement shall be analgggiher with the notes to the financial statenhbetg the integral part thereof.
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I nformation on the Bank and the Capital Group

ING Bank Slaski S.A. (,Parent company, parent entity, Bank”thwihe headquarters in Katowice,
Sokolska Str. 34, was entered into the entreprsndlational Court Register managed by the
Commercial Department of the Regional Court in Kate under the reference number KRS 5459.

The Parent entity statistic number is REGON 271894&nd the taxation identification number
is NIP 634-013-54-75. Entity authorised to auditaficial statements is Ernst & Young Audit
Sp. z o.0. having its registered office in WarsdwRondo ONZ, entered into the list under
number 130.

The life time of the Parent entity and other grenfities are unlimited.

The share capital of ING Bartaski S.A. is PLN 130,100,000 and is divided in 13,000 ordinary
bearer shares with a par value of PLN 10.00 edchreS of the Bank are quoted on the Warsaw Stock
Exchange (sector: banks).

ING BankSlaski S.A. is a subsidiary of ING Bank NV, which as3d December 2008 held 75%
share in the initial capital of ING Barfdaski and 75% shares in the total number of votethet
General Meeting of Shareholders. In 2008, the dtwdeng of the dominant entity did not
materially change.

ING Bank Slaski S.A. offers a broad range of banking servicemdered for individual and
institutional clients in line with the scope of @ees outlined in the Bank’s charter. The Bank’s
operations are denominated in both polish zloty fangign currencies as well as actively participate
in domestic and foreign financial markets. The gilibsy: ING Bank Hipoteczny S.A. undertaken
banking activities, including sales of mortgagenka Additionally through subsidiaries the Group
operates brokerage services, real estate, leadingab estate, advisory and acts as a financial
intermediary as well as provides other financialiees.

ING BankSlaski S.A. is the parent company of the ING Batiski S.A. Group (“Group”, “Capital
Group”), of the following composition as at 31 Dedser 2008:

ING Securities S.A. (subsidiary, 100% share),

ING Bank Hipoteczny S.A. (subsidiary, 100% share),

ING BSK Development Sp. z 0.0. (subsidiary, 100%rsl,

Centrum BankiSlaskiego Sp. z 0.0. in liquidation (subsidiary, 108kare),

Solver Sp. z 0.0. (subsidiary, 82,3% share).

As at the balance sheet date the Bank held the stiaffiliated entity:
ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. (asseck0% share).

The composition of the Capital Group did not chawrigea-vis the status as at 31 December 2007.

The consolidated financial statements of the Grdap 2008 comprise the Bank and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Growpidl the Group's interest in associates and jointly
controlled entities.

The consolidated financial statements of the Gréoup 2007 were approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank on 24 April 200

6
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Selected financial data from the consolidated Financial Statements

PLN thousand

period

from 01.01.2008

period

from 01.01.2007

EUR thousand

period

from 01.01.2008

period

from 01.01.2007

to 31.12.2008 to 31.12.2007 t0 31.12.2008 to 31.12.2007
Interest income 3398 102 2 480 688 962 063 656 823
Commission income 1034 184 1020 148 292 796 270 109
Result on basic activities 2 079 464 2 029 304 588 733 537 308
Result before tax 563 063 786 989 159 413 208 375
Net result of shareholders of the holding company 445 413 630 724 126 104 167 000
Net result of minority shareholders 5 6 098 1 1615
Net cash flows -739 393 -3290 461 -209 335 -871 230
Earnings per ordinary share (PLN / EUR) 34.24 48.48 9.69 12.84

PLN thousand EUR thousand
31.12.612508':8 31.122%8; 31.122508;3 31.12250?7

Total assets 69 610 475 52 010 860 16 683 557 14 520 061
Equity of shareholders of the holding company 4222 130 3838 783 1011919 1071687
Share capital 130 100 130 100 31181 36 320
Numer of shares 13 010 000 13 010 000 - -
Book value per share (PLN / EUR) 324.53 295.06 77.78 82.37
Solvency ratio (%) 10.39% 13.12% - -

In order to determine the basic figures in EUR,ftlil®ewing exchange rates were applied:
for balance-sheet items — PLN 4.1724 NBP exchamge of 31.12.2008; 3.5820 NBP
exchange rate of 31.12.2007,
for the profit and loss items and cash flow iteims31.12.2008 — PLN 3.5321 exchange rate
calculated as the average of NBP exchange rates the last day of each month in 2008;
3.7768 exchange rate calculated as the averagd3Bf ékchange rates as at the last day of
each month in 2007.
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Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance with International Financid Reporting Standards

This financial report was prepared in compliancthilie International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS") and IFRS approved by the European Unioa.aAthe date of the approval of this report for
publication, taking into account the process of langentation of the IFRS in the EU, and the
Company’s operations, there are no differencesgards the accounting principles applied by the
Company between the binding IFRS and IFRS apprdsedhe EU.IFRS include standards and
interpretations accepted by the International Aatiog Standards Board (“IASB”) and International
Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (“IER).

A consolidated balance sheet, consolidated praiit l@ss account, breakdown of changes in the
consolidated equity and a consolidated cash flomoat for the accounting year ended on 31
December 2008 together with comparable financiah deere developed with the application of

the same accounting principles for each of theqasti

These financial statements have been prepared h fdunded to one thousand zlotys (unless
otherwise noted).

In 2008, the Group took account of the followinganges in the effective accounting standards
and new interpretations:

« Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Reciigmiand Measurement — effective as of 1
July 2008,

« Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Diaales — effective as of 1 July 2008,

* Interpretation of IFRIC 11 — IFRS 2 Group and TregsShare Transactions, applicable to
yearly terms commencing after 1 March 2007

« IFRIC 12 Interpretation of Service Concession Agements, effective for annual periods
commencing as of 1 January 2008,

* IFRIC 13 Interpretation of Customer Loyalty Prograges — effective as of 1 July 2008,

e IFRIC 14 Interpretation of IAS 19 — The Limit onefined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction — effective donual periods commencing as of 1 January
2008.

The adoption of the abovementioned new interpraadf accounting standards did not cause any
material changes in the Group’s accounting, ext@ptAS 39 and IRFS 7 in the form of possible
reclassification of the financial instruments hélthe Group seized that opportunity.

(b) Term and scope of the report

These consolidated financial statements of the t@laroup of ING BankSlaski S.A. cover the
period from ' January 2008 to $1December 2008 and include the comparatives data:

for the balance sheet as®3Mecember 2007 and financial year ending that oy as
31 December 2007,
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for the profit and loss account, movement on eqaitgd cash flow statement for the
period from %' January 2007 till $1December 2007.

(©) (Earlier) Adoption of Standards which are notin force as at the Balance Sheet Date

The Group has not taken advantage of the earljicagion of standards and interpretations thatewer
approved by the European Union, but became orheitlome effective only upon the balance sheet
date. As at the balance sheet date, the Groupdia®mpleted the process of estimating the imphct o
these standards and interpretations on consolidatedcial statements for the period in which they
will be applied for the first time:

« Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial $tatgs (revised in 2007) — effective for
annual periods commencing as of 1 January 2009,

« Amendments to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (revised ir020- effective for annual periods
commencing as of 1 January 2009,

« Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (revisddriuary 2008) — effective for annual
periods commencing as of 1 January 2009,

* IFRS 8 Operating Segments — effective for annuabge commencing as of 1 January 2009.

The published Standards and Interpretations thed i8sued but are not effective yet as they hate no
been approved by the European Union and have eot fixeeviously applied by the Group include:

* Changes in IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of InternatibFinancial Reporting Standards (updated in
May 2008) — applicable to yearly terms commenciftgrd January 2009,

» Changes in IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of InternatibFinancial Reporting Standards (updated in
November 2008) — applicable to yearly terms comnmgnafter 1 July 2009,

* Changes in IFRS 3 Business Combinations (updat@dnnary 2008) — applicable to yearly terms
commencing after 1 July 2009,

* Changes in IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statésn@mpdated in February 2008) — applicable to
yearly terms commencing after 1 January 2009,

* Changes in IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate FiaaBStatements (updated in January 2008) —
applicable to yearly terms commencing after 1 Jan@09,

» Changes in IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate FialaBtatements (updated in May 2008) —
applicable to yearly terms commencing after 1 2099,

* Changes in IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presemtdtipdated in February 2008) — applicable to
yearly terms commencing after 1 January 2009,

» Changes in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognitiod Measurement (updated in July 2008) —
applicable to yearly terms commencing after 1 2099,

¢ IFRIC 15 Interpretation of Agreements for the Camstion of Real Estate — effective for annual
periods commencing as of 1 January 2009,

* IFRIC 16 Interpretation of Hedges of a Net Invegtin a Foreign Operation — effective for
annual periods commencing as of 1 October 2008,

e IFRIC 17 Interpretation of Distributions of Non-tagssets to Owners — effective for annual
periods commencing as of 1 January 2009,

e IFRIC 18 Interpretation: Transfers of Assets froos@mers — effective as of 1 July 2009.
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(d) Going Concern

The consolidated financial statement was draftedaogoing concern basis, assuming that the
Group’s entities (apart from the issue mentionedowg would continue operations in a
foreseeable future, i.e. at least 1 year of tharzd sheet date. As of the date of approval of this
statement by the Bank Management Board, no circamests posing threats to the continued
operations of the Capital Group were identified.

On 23 December 2008, at the Extraordinary Sharem®ldMeeting of ING BSK Development
Sp. z o.0. there was adopted resolution on windimghat Company and commencing its liquidation
as of 1 January 2009.

(e) Basis for preparation of consolidated financiastatements

The concept of fair value has been applied in tta¢ements for real property and investment
property as well as financial assets and liabgitreeasured at fair value, including derivative
instruments, and financial assets classified af#aba-for-sale, excluding those for which the fair
value cannot be determined in a reliable manndreiQtems of financial assets (including loans and
receivables) are presented at amortized cost legsiiment charges or at purchase price less
impairment charges.

Fixed assets for sale are recognised at the lofvéneair balance sheet value and the fair value
minus sales costs.

)] Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accardanith IFRS requires from the Group the use of
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the consolidated financial statements an
notes thereto. Estimations and assumptions appligtie presentation of value of assets, liabilities
revenues and costs, are made on basis of histoiatal available and other factors considered to be
relevant in given circumstances. Applied assumptioelated to the future and available data
sources are the base for making estimations remgrdarrying value of assets and liabilities,
which cannot be determined explicitly on the basfisother sources. The estimates reflect the
reasons for/ sources of uncertainties as at thenbalsheet date. The actual results may differ from
estimates.

The estimations and assumptions are reviewed oonagoing basis. Adjustments to estimates are
recognized in the period when the estimation wasigad, provided that the adjustment applies to this
period alone, or in the period when the estimati@s changed and in the following periods, should
the adjustment impact both the current and futereogds.

Major accounting estimations adopted by the Group ee as follows:

I mpairment of loans

At each balance sheet date, the Group assessethewtigere is objective evidence of impairment
of a given financial asset or of a group of suckets Impairment of a financial asset or of a
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group of financial assets is incurred only if thésebjective evidence for the impairment due to
one or many events. The occurrence of such evegtaup of such events affects the estimation
of expected cash flows regarding these assets.

The estimates may take into account any obsenvablieations pointing at the occurrence of an
unfavourable change in the solvency position oftalsbbelonging to any particular group or in the
economic situation of a given country or part ofauntry, which is associated with the problems
appearing in that group of assets.

Historical parameters of recoveries are adjustedthen basis of the data coming from current
observations, so as to take into considerationirtfieence of current conditions and to exclude the
influencing factors from the prior periods that agt currently present.

In order to estimate impairment or its recoverysihecessary to estimate the present value of the
expected cash flows. If there is objective evidetihat an impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortized cost has been incurred, theuatof the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the presdéund of estimated future cash flows discounted
using effective interest rate. If, in a subsequeeriod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively tovemt @ccurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reseigy adjusting a carrying amount of the financial
asset. The amount of the reversal shall be recedrisprofit or loss account up to the value obpri
impairment.

The methodology and the assumptions, on the bdsighizh the estimated cash flows and their
anticipated timing are determined, are regularlyien@ed and updated. Moreover, the tests on
historical data are carried out in order to comenteal results with estimations of impairment.

Credit risk connected with derivative instruments

In view of a considerable increase of credit risk-X option transactions made by the Group with
clients, the Group resolved to review a major pathe portfolio of those instruments. With the aim
of having the risk level outlined in a precise mante Group structured the approach as follows.

The approach adopted by the Group to estimatigheo€redit risk generated by derivative instruments
with future settlement dates (active transactiangstanding as at the balance sheet date) is én lin
with the approach adopted by the Group for the geef assessing the credit risk generated bytcredi
receivables. valuation adjustments are estimatetieatevel of individual counterparties, using the

formula based on PD, LGD and EAD ratios, where:

PD (probability of default- in %) is the probability resulting from the apped of the risk
assigned by the Group to the client based on themuassessment of the client’s financial
standing. To make the assessment as correct ablppghe clients’ financial data take
account of the effects of the measurements of dviss concluded with the Group, and if it
is known to the Group, the effects of the measungsnef transactions concluded with other
banks. The same PD parameter is used in the protestablishing provisions against credit
risk.

EAD (Exposure At Default in PLN): valid - as of the estimates date - markeasurement

of the exposure resulting from the transaction ervatives concluded with the Group. EAD
is used to measure the client’s exposure in thei®rGalculating EAD, the Group takes into
account also whether the client signed a mastezeaggnt with the Group allowing for
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netting transactions with positive and negative sueaments when the agreement is
terminated either by the Group or by the clienciSagreements lower EAD.

LGD (loss given default — in %): this parametecasculated taking into account the collateral
(if any) presented by the client to the Group; vélasrfor each non-collateralized exposure,
we use LGD for the non-collateralized exposurescldise same value that is used to assess
provisions against the credit risk for credit expes). In case of material value of
receivables, the Group applies individual appraadhGD calculation.

In addition, for mature transactions or terminaed unsettled as at the balance sheet date, thg Gro
made charges using the methodology for assessmsthof impaired loans.

The two types of fair value adjustments, as meetiombove, were differently reflected in the
consolidated financial statement. Fair value adjesits due to risk for non-matured transactions were
presented under the iterResult on financial instruments carried through theome statement and
revaluation whereas the charges for matured transactionsr thdeitem: Impairment charges for
financial assets and provisions for off-balanceethibilities.

Uncertainty of the estimates

In 2008, the Group carried out an additional aseess of the level of the risk related to FX options
The appraisal was made as of the balance sheetadataming the measurement level as of that date,
and taking into account the risk appraisal perfatras of the same date. The Group will perform
periodical appraisal of the financial standingle# tlients holding similar instruments. The follogi

key factors taken into account in case of chanfesloestimates are: (i) changes of measurement at
the fair value of derivatives, (ii) changes in gwpe of the credit risk appraisal of the contragti
parties by the Group. However, considering thetgrekatility of the business environment, therd sti
remains some uncertainty as to the Group’s estsnate

I mpairment of other non-current assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assessesxistence of circumstances indicating of
impairment of a non-current asset. If such indicatexist, the Group performs an estimation of
recoverable value. Estimation of value-in-use nba-current asset (or cash generating unit) reguire
assumptions to be adopted, regarding, among othemsunts and timing of future cash flows,
which the Group may obtain from the given non-cotrasset (or cash generating unit). Adoption
of different measurement assumptions could affeetdarrying value of some of the non—current
assets.

The Group performs an estimation of the fair valegs costs to sell on the basis of available
market data regarding this subject or estimatioaslenby external bodies, which are also based
on estimations.

Measurement of financial instruments that do not have a quoted market price

The fair value of financial instruments not quotad active markets is measured using valuation
models. For non-optional derivatives and debentaneslable for sale, the Group uses valuation
models based on discounted cash flows. Optionsated using option valuation models including
the assessment of counterparty risk.

Valuation models used by the Group, are verifiedrimependent bodies before/prior to their usage.
Where possible, in models the Group uses obsenrdattefrom active markets. However, the Group

12



Annual consolidated financial statements of the BaBkSlgski S.A. Group
for the period from ¥ January 2008 to $iDecember 2008

also adopts assumptions as to probability (as ewpatty risk, variables and market correlations).
Any change in these assumptions may affect thevédire of some financial instruments. The change
of assumptions concerning these factors may inflaaraluation of some financial instruments.

Retirement and sick pension severance payments provision

Retirement payments provision is calculated usingetuarial method by an independent actuary
as the present value of future liabilities of theo@® towards the employees according to
headcount and remuneration at the updating date.estimation of the provision is made on the
basis of several assumptions both about macroedonemvironment and employee turnover,

mortality risk and other. The estimated provisismpdated annually.

The Group adopts a corridor approach to recognitifom determined portion of the cumulated net
value of actuarial gains and losses. Under thishowtwhen determining an obligation due to
certain benefits, the Group recognises some aetlugains and losses as revenue or costs, when
the net value of accumulated unrecognised actugaiigls and losses as at the end of the previous
reporting period exceeds the higher of the follayviwo values:

a) 10% of the current value of the obligation dueértain benefits as at that day (before deduatfon
the plan’s assets)

b) 10% of the fair value of the plan’s assets abatday.

A portion of the actuarial gains and losses abdeedaid limit is recognised in the profit and loss
account as the quotient of the above named exocelstha average expected remaining working life of
the Group employees. Following that change, theu@aresents in the balance sheet the net value
of the liability comprising the current value ofethiability and unrecognised actuarial gains/
losses.

Provisionsfor the bonus for employees and top executives

Provisions for the bonus for employees shall berséfte amount resulting from the effective bonus
regulations.

The provisions for top executive staff bonuses esemated by the Management Board of the
Group parent entity which calculates the amourtiasfefits as of the balance-sheet date. The final
amount of the bonuses is approved by the SupegvBoards of the Group’s Companies.

(g9  Consolidation policies

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are any entities controlled by thekBdie control exists, when the Bank has direct or
indirect influence on the financial and operatirgdigies of an entity so as to obtain benefits fribn
activities.
Control is presumed to exist when the parent owasernthan a half of the voting rights of an entity
and when there are:

a) rights to more than a half of the voting rightsviyue of an agreement with other investors;

b) power to govern the financial and operating pofice the entity under a statute or an

agreement;
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c) power to appoint or remove the majority of the mersbof the board of directors or
equivalent governing body and control of the entipy that board or body; or

d) power to cast the majority of votes at meetingsthef board of directors or equivalent
governing body and control of the entity is by theard or body.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are inetLish the consolidated financial statements from
the date of acquisition until the date on which {herent ceases to control the subsidiary, if
applicable.

(i)  Purchase method

The purchase method of accounting is used to atdouthe acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as thevédire of the assets given, equity instruments tsue
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the datexafhange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Assets, liabilities and contingentblidies acquired in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair value at the asifion date, irrespective of the extent of any miiyo
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisitiorr ¢ve fair value of the Group’s share in identifeab
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Ifcthet of acquisition is less than the fair valuehaf
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the diftexémrecognized directly in the income statement.

(iif) Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group s$ignificant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a share of between 20% and 50% o¥dtiag rights. The consolidated financial
statements include the Group’s share in profits lmsdes of associates according to its share in
net assets of associates, from the date of obtuisignificant influence until the date, the
significant influence ceases.
Investments in associates are initially accounteguachase price and then accounted for using the
equity method. The Group’s investment in associatekides goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) identified on acquisition. The rghaf the Group in the profits (losses) of assesiat
since the date of acquisition is recognised inpitedit and loss, whereas its share in changesharot
reserves since the date of acquisition — in otheemves. The carrying amount of the investment is
adjusted by the total changes of different itemeapfity after the date of their acquisition.
When the share of the Group in the losses of ancede becomes equal or greater than the share of
the Group in that associate, the Group discontitliesrecognition of any further losses or creates
provision only to such amount, it has assumed abbgs or has settled payments on behalf of the
respective associate.

(iv) Transactions eliminated in consolidation pess

Intragroup balances and gains and losses or regelane costs resulting from intragroup
transactions are eliminated in full in the consatietl financial statements.

(h) Foreign currency

(i) The functional currency and the presentatiacisrency

The items contained in presentations of particufats of the Group are priced in the currency ef th
basic economic environment in which a given entifyerates (“the functional currency”). The
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consolidated financial report is presented in Poli$oty, which is the functional currency and the
presentation currency of the Group.

(ii) Transactions and balances in foreign currency
Transactions expressed in foreign currency areshatad into the functional currency by applying the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Egehsate profits and losses due to settlements of
these transactions and to the balance sheet \@iuaitassets and monetary commitments expressed in
foreign currency are accounted for in the profid &oss account.
The measurement of financial assets carried atvidire through the income statement, resulting
from the change in FX rates, is recognised in tltdme statement due to changes in fair value.
Exchange rate differences due to items, such agyempstruments classified to financial assets
available for sale, are included in the revaluatieserve.

(i) Financial statements of investments in a fgneoperation
The Group does not have any investments nor ruasatipns abroad.

0] Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Classification

The Group classifies financial instruments to tlwlofwving categories: financial assets and
liabilities valued at fair value through the prddiihd loss, loans and receivables, investmentstbeld
maturity, available for sale financial assets.

(@) Financial assets and liabilities valued at fa@lue through profit and loss

These are financial assets or financial liabilitiest meet either of the following conditions.

- Are classified as held for trading. A financial etser financial liability is classified as held for
trading if it is: acquired or incurred principallgr the purpose of selling or repurchasing it ia th
near term or are a part of a portfolio of identfiiancial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent aqgbadtlern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading (other ttherse that are designated and effective hedging
instruments).

— Upon initial recognition it is desighated by theoGp as at fair value through profit and loss. Such
designation can be made only if (i) the designéiteahcial asset or financial liability is a hybrid
instrument containing one or many embedded deviestiwhich qualify for separate recognition
and embedded derivatives cannot change significahtd cash flows resulting from the host
contract or separation of embedded derivative ibidden; (i) usage of such classification of
financial asset or liability eliminates or decreasgnificantly the inconsistency of measurement
or recognition (so called accounting difference doievarious methods of assets and liabilities
valuation or various recognition of gains and Igssdtributable to them); (iii) the group of
financial assets and liabilities or both categoisesianaged properly, and its results are measured
using fair value, in accordance with documente#t risanagement principles or the Group’s
investment strategy.

(b) Investment held to maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivativeafinial assets with fixed or determinable payments

and fixed maturity that an entity has the posiiivention and ability to hold to maturity. In casg

sale or reclassification of more than an insigaificamount of held-to-maturity investments in lielat
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to the total held-to-maturity investments beforegurity all the assets of this category are reclasbi

to the available sale category.

The Group is not allowed to classify any financaisets as held to maturity during the current

financial year or during the two preceding finahgigars.

(c) Loans and advances

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments that are

not quoted in an active market, other than:

— those that the entity intends to sell immediatelinahe near term, which are classified as hetd fo
trading, and those that the entity upon initialogrtition designates at fair value through profid an
loss;

— those that the entity upon initial recognition desites as available for sale; or

— those for which the holder may not recover subithytall of its initial investment, other than
because of credit deterioration, which are clasgifis available for sale.

The category of loans and receivables include laans cash loans extended to other banks and
clients, including the debts purchased and dehirgis reclassified from the portfolio of finanktia
assets available for sale.

(d) Financial assets available for sale
Available-for-sale financial assets are those nerivdtive financial assets that are designated as
available for sale or are not classified as loand eeceivables, held-to-maturity investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit ado

(e) Other financial liabilities
A financial liability is a contractual obligatio deliver cash or other financial asset to anodmity
not valued at fair value through the profit andsldseing a deposit or loan received.

(H  Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract theuires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs beeauspecified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified termi@aebt instrument.

(i) Recognition
The Group recognizes financial assets or liabdlitten the balance sheet when, and only when it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions efitistrument. Purchase and sale transactions of
financial assets valued at fair value through praxfid loss, held-to-maturity and available for saie
recognized, in accordance with accounting poliaigglied to all transactions of a certain type hat t
settlement date, the date on which the asset igedetl to an entity or by an entity. Loans and
receivables are recognized on distribution of @xEhao borrower.

(iii) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset whengallydvhen: the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or the Group trarsthe contractual right to receipt of the casiwfl
from the financial asset. On transferring a finahaisset, the Group evaluates the extent to which i
retains the risks and rewards of ownership of ihenicial asset. Accordingly, where the Group:
- transfers substantially all the risks and rewarfdgwmership of the financial asset, it derecognises
the financial asset.
- retains substantially all the risks and rewardewhership of the financial asset, it continues to
recognise the financial asset.
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— neither transfers nor retains substantially all ilsks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, it determines whether it has retained clootrine financial asset. In this case if the Group
has retained control, it continues to recognisditfacial asset, and if the Group has not retained
control, it derecognises the financial asset to g¢ktent of its continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

The Group removes a financial liability (or a pafta financial liability) from its balance sheet e

and only when the obligation specified in the cactis realised or cancelled or expires.

Particularly, the Group derecognizes loans andivabkes or its part from its balance sheet, if tsgh

pertaining to the credit agreement expire, the @roaives such rights, or sells the loan.

When irrevocability of financial assets is declarb@ Group most frequently writes down receivables
as impairment charges.

The amounts of receivables written down as lossrandvered thereafter shall diminish the value of
impairment loss in the income statement.
(iv) Measurement
When a financial asset or financial liability iscognised initially, the Group measures it at itis fa
value plus, in the case of a financial asset arfonal liability not at fair value through profit toss,
transaction costs that are directly attributablethe acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability.
After initial recognition, the Group measures finih assets, including derivatives that are asseéts,
their fair values, without any deduction for tractsan costs it may incur on sale or other disposal,
except for the following financial assets:
- loans and receivables which are measured at amortizst using the effective interest method,;
- held-to-maturity investments are measured at asamttost using the effective interest method;
and
— investments in equity instruments that do not hagioted market price in an active market and
their fair value cannot be reliably measured amivdgves that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,raeasured at cost.
After initial recognition, the Group measures atahcial liabilities at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, except for:

- financial liabilities at fair value through profir loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives
that are liabilities, are measured at fair valueegx for a derivative liability that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquotedtgdustrument which fair value cannot be
reliably measured, are measured at cost,

- financial liabilities resulting from the transfef a financial asset which does not qualify for
being excluded from the balance sheet or recogmisetontinuing involvemeriasis.

The other financial liabilities are measured atrdejated cost or the amount of due payment.
Granted financial guarantees are measured at ghehof:
(@) the amount being the most appropriate estimatiothe expenditures needed to fulfil the
current obligation arising from the financial guatee, upon consideration of the probability of
materialisation thereof;
(b) the amount recognised at the initial entry,uatd with the settled amount of commission
received for granting the guarantee.
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(v) Reclassification
A particular financial asset classified as avaddior-sale may be reclassified from this category
should it fulfil the definition of loans and recaisles and should the Group intend and be able to
maintain this financial asset in the foreseeabtar&ior until its maturity. Fair value of the firaal
asset on the reclassification date is deemed as\scost or new depreciated cost, respectively.

In the event of a maturing financial asset, thdifr@r losses recognised as equity until the déite
reclassification are amortised and carried throtighincome statement for the remaining term until
maturity. All differences between the new amortisedt and the amortisation amount are amortised
for the remaining term until the instrument’s mégyrsimilarly to the amortisation of premium or
discount. Amortisation is based on the effectiver@st rate method.

In the event of a non-maturing asset, the profit$ lasses remain with equity until the asset hasn be
sold or disposed of otherwise when it is carrigdulgh the income statement.

(vi) Gains and losses resulting from subsequetsomement
A gain or loss arising from a change in the faiuezof a financial asset or financial liability tha not
part of a hedging relationship is recognised, devs.
— A gain or loss on a financial asset or financiability classified as at fair value through pratfit
loss is recognised in profit or loss;
— A gain or loss on an available-for-sale financiedet is recognized directly in equity;

Interest calculated using the effective interesthoé is recognised in profit or loss. Dividendsam
available-for-sale equity instrument are recognigegrofit or loss when the entity’s right to reeei
payment is established. Foreign exchange gaingoasds arising from a change in the fair value of a
non monetary financial asset available for saleodenated in foreign currency are recognized
directly in equity. Foreign exchange gains anddesarising from monetary financial assets (e.g debt
securities) denominated in foreign currency aregazed directly in the profit and loss account.

At the moment of derecognition of financial as$eis the balance sheet, cumulated gains and losses
recognized previously in equity, are transferredthie profit and loss account. If any objective
evidence exists that a financial asset or groufinaincial assets is impaired, the Group recognizes
impairment in accordance with the established rwiksletermination of impairment of financial
assets.

The fair value of securities for which there isaaive market is determined by the current bidepric
The fair value of other financial assets/liabibtiguoted in an active market is determined on #sésb

of the bid price for long position and offer prifcg short position. Valuation techniques includags
recent arm’s length market transactions betweenwladgeable, willing parties, if available,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricingdet® and other techniques used by market
members.

Based on the employed methods of determining thevdidue, financial assets/liabilities are clasifi

to the following categories:

Level I: financial assets/liabilities measured dilg on the basis of prices quoted in the activekeia

or measurement techniques based solely on mariaet da

Level II: financial assets/liabilities measured tve basis of measurement techniques based on
assumptions using data from an active market okehabservations.
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Level llI: financial assets/liabilities measuredthe basis of measurement techniques commonly used
by the market players, the assumptions of whicmatdased on data from an active market.

)] Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are effand the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to oftbet recognised amounts and there is an intention t
settle on a net basis, or realise the asset athe 8t liability simultaneously.

In order to mitigate credit risk, the Group con@sadspecial master agreements with contracting
parties, with which the Group concludes transastioh significant volume. These special master
agreements do not enable the offsetting finangakts and liabilities, because they are generally
settled gross.

(k) Repo, Reverse Repo, sell-buy—back, buy-sell-liacansactions

The Group presents financial assets with the réyasee clauses (repo, sell-buy—back transactions)
its balance sheet, by simultaneously recognizifigamcial liability resulting from repurchase claus
This is done in order to reflect the risks anddfis arising on this asset that are retained lgy th
Group after the transfer. When the Group purchasesirities with a repurchase clause (Reverse
Repo, BSB,), the financial assets are presentegcag/ables arising from repurchase clause.

Repo and reverse repo transactions are measuagabatized cost, and securities which are subject to
repo/reverse repo transactions are derecognised lfedance sheet and are measured in accordance
with principles applicable for particular securdtigortfolio.

The difference between sale and repurchase priceated as interest income or cost, respectivady a
Is accrued over the period of the agreement byicgifmn of an effective interest rate.

The Group designates sell-buy-back and buy-sek-bi@mnsactions to be valued at fair value through
profit and loss. The change in fair value of finahassets and liabilities is recognized in prafid
loss account in the caption “Net income on instratat fair value through profit or loss”.

Securities borrowed from other entities are notogaised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statement. If sold by the Group, there will be gated financial assets in the form of cash froresal
and the liability measured at fair value that retethe need to return the borrowed securities.faine
value of the liability equals the fair value of bmwed securities.

0] Derivative instruments

Derivative instruments are valued at fair valuehaitt cost of transactions, which are to be incuated
the moment of its sale. The base of initial faillegameasurement of derivative instruments is value
cost, i.e. fair value of received or paid amount.

The Group separates and recognizes in the bal&ieet derivative instruments being a component of

hybrid instruments. A hybrid (combined) instrumentludes a non-derivative host contract and
derivative instrument, which causes some or athefcash flows arising from the host contract to be
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modified according to a specified interest rateafficial instrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credigair credit index, or other variable.

The Group separates embedded derivatives from tis¢ ¢ontract and accounts for them as a
derivative if, and only if the economic charactécs and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to the economic characteristics r@sig of the host contract, and the host contisact
not valued at fair value through profit and loss.

An embedded derivative is valued at fair value, iimdhanges are recognized in profit and loss.

The Group uses derivative instruments in orderetiigle against FX and interest rate risk, arisinmfro
activity of the Group. Derivative instruments tlaa& not subject to hedge accounting are classifsed
financial instruments held for trading and are edlat fair value.

0] Derivative instruments not qualifying as hedgingtinoments
The changes in fair value of derivative instrumethizt do not meet hedge accounting criteria are
recognized in profit and loss for the current pgri@hange in fair value of derivative instrumemts i
foreign currencies represents the source of FXatianis, carried through the income statement of the
current period and present in the result on rev@naf balance sheet items.

(i) Hedge Accounting

Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effectprofit or loss of changes in the fair valueshaf

hedging instrument and the hedged item.

The Group designates certain derivative instrumestdair value hedge or cash flow hedge. The

Group uses hedge accounting, if the following ctods are met:

— At the inception of the hedge there is formal deaipn and documentation of the hedging
relationship and the Group’s risk management objecnd strategy for undertaking the hedge.
That documentation includes identification of thedfing instrument, the hedged item or
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged laow the entity will assess the hedging
instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the expesio changes in the hedged item’s fair value or
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.

— The hedging instrument and hedged instrument andasj especially nominal value, maturity
date, and volatility for interest rate and foreagthange changes.

— The hedge is expected to be highly effective inecdhg offsetting changes in fair value or cash
flows attributable to the hedged risk, consisteniith the originally documented risk management
strategy for that particular hedging relationship.

- For cash flow hedges, a forecast transaction thahe subject of the hedge must be highly
probable and must present an exposure to variatiomssh flows that could ultimately affect
profit or loss.

- The effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably oreds ie. the fair value or cash flows of the
hedged item that are attributable to the hedgddaigl the fair value of the hedging instrument
can be reliably measured.

— The hedge is assessed on an ongoing basis andchihetdractually to have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for whtbe hedge was designated.
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. Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge: a hedge of the exposure to clsandair value of a recognised asset or liabitity
an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identifieortipn of such an asset, liability or firm
commitment, that is attributable to a particulakrand could affect the profit or loss.

A fair value hedge is accounted for as follows: gan or loss from remeasuring the hedging
instrument at fair value (for a derivative hedgingtrument) is recognised in profit and loss; thég

or loss on the hedged item attributable to the bddisk adjust the carrying amount of the hedged
item and are recognised in profit and loss. Redmgniof the gain or loss attributable to the hedged
risk in profit and loss applies if the hedged itsran available-for-sale financial asset.

The Group applies the fair value hedge accountihgreby it hedges against any changes to the fair
value of the real estates following the changdbhéncurrent foreign exchange rates and the changes
the fair value of debt papers of fixed intereserelffassified as the assets available for saleviioiigp

the changes in the interest rates.

The Group applies the fair value hedge accountimgrder to hedge changes in fair value of fixed-rat
debt instruments classified to the portfolio of ikalale-for-sale assets and fixed-rate debt instnise
classified to the portfolio of loans and receivahiesulting from interest rate changes.

. Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedge: a hedge of the exposure to vityatih cash flows that (i) is attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asesdiability (such as all or some future interest
payments on variable rate debt) or a highly prabédalecast transaction and (ii) could affect profit
loss.

A cash flow hedge is accounted for as follows: gwetion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be an effectivdgeeis recognised directly in equity through the
statement of changes in equity and the ineffegitm@ion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrotme
is recognised in profit or loss.

The associated gains or losses that were recogdisexdly in equity (effective hedge), at the moinen
of recognition of a financial asset and liabilitgilg a result of planned future transaction, are
transferred into profit or loss in the same peogeriods during which the asset acquired or litgbi
assumed affects the profit and loss.

In case of a hedge of non-financial asset or afimamcial liability, the associated gains and Ia@sse
recognized directly in equity as an effective hedge transferred successively into the profit imsd
account in the same period or periods during wikhehasset acquired or liability assumed affects the
profit and loss account (such as in the periods die@reciation expense is recognised); or it is the
result of a one-off transfer as an adjustment ®itfitial purchase price or carrying amount of a
hedged item.

The Group has been applying cash flow hedge acomutd secure the size of future cash flows in a
specific portfolio of the Bank’s assets/ liabil#ier a portfolio of highly probable planned trarigats
against the interest rate changes.
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(m) Impairment
Assets valued at amortized cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet datemihette is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assetisnigaired and impairment losses are incurred ifl, an
only if, there is objective evidence of impairmasta result of one or more events that occurredl aft
the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss eVeand that loss event (or events) has an impadhen
estimated future cash flows of the financial assegroup of financial assets that can be reliably
stimated. Losses expected as a result of futurateveo matter how likely, are not recognised.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or groupssets is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the holder of the adsetitethe following loss events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer obtigor;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or delimcyué interest or principal payments above 90
days;

c) the lender, for economic or legal reasons relatntpe borrower’s financial difficulty, granting
to the borrower a concession that the lender woatdtherwise consider;

d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will @rdankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
e) the disappearance of an active market for thah@iizh asset because of financial difficulties; or

f) observable data indicating that there is a meakuddzrease in the estimated future cash flows
from a group of financial assets since the init@tognition of those assets, although the
decrease cannot yet be identified with the indigldinancial assets within the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidehempairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and indiially or collectively for financial assets thaeaot
individually significant. The Group classifies loagceivables by size of exposure, into the indigldu
and group portfolios. If the Group determines thatobjective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whetheristgmt or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk charaistiics and collectively assesses them for impaitmen
Assets that are individually assessed for impaitraed for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collectisseasment of impairment. In a group portfolio,
groups of similar credit risk characteristics atentified, which are then assessed collectivelyttier
impairment.

If there is any objective evidence of impairmentl@ins and receivables, or investments held-to-
maturity, then the amount of the impairment isdifeerence between the carrying amount of an asset
and the current value of estimated future cashd]aiscounted using an original effective interagt
established with the initial recognition of a giviemancial asset.

If there is any objective evidence of lack of expdcfuture cash flows arising from these financial
assets, then the amount of impairment is equdildio tarrying amount.

Future cash flows concerning groups of financigkts assessed collectively in terms of their ptessib
impairment are estimated on the basis of historloas experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the Group.

Historical loss experience is adjusted on the bakiurrent observable data to reflect the effefts
current conditions that did not affect the perinduhich the historical loss experience is basedtand
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remove the effects of conditions in the historipariod that do not exist currently. The Group
regularly verifies the methodology and assumptiadspted to estimate future cash flows in order to
mitigate the differences between estimated andabltisses.

For the purposes of the calculation of the provisagainst balance sheet exposures analysed
collectively, the probability of default (PD) methchas been applied. Modification of the PD
parameter takes into account characteristics afifipgroducts and emerging periods for losses on
those products. This approach allows specifically 1) detecting the losses that already occurned a
2) losses that occurred as at the impairment diatehave not been documented yet (incurred but not
reported IBNR).

The impairment is presented as a reduction of &ng/ing amount of the asset either through usenof a
allowance account and the amount of the loss bbaiécognized in profit and loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the immpant loss decreases and the decrease can be relate
objectively to an event occurring after the impannwas recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognisegbairment loss is recognised in the profit andslos
account.

Financial assets availablefor sale

When a decline in the fair value of an availabledale financial asset has been recognised diractly
equity and there is objective evidence that thetaissimpaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognized directly in equity is removed from eguand recognised in the profit and loss account
even though the financial asset has not been dgmeszal.

The amount of the cumulative loss that is removethfequity and recognised in profit and loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of pinigcipal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that finangsset previously recognised in profit and loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the profit and &xount for an investment in an equity instrument
classified as available for sale is not reverseouph profit and loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of atdestrument classified as available for sale iasps
and the increase can be objectively related to \amteoccurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the profit and loss, the impairmesslis reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognized in profit and loss.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairmesgs| has been incurred on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value beeaitss fair value cannot be reliably measured, oaon
derivative asset that is linked to and must bdesklty delivery of such an unquoted equity instrome
the amount of the impairment loss is measured aglifference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the present value of estimitiesle cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset). Sunpairment losses are not reversed.

(n) Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a buildingr part of a building—or both) held by the Group
(acting as the owner or the lessee under a finlas®e) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
both. At the same time, such a real property iscalpied by the Group only to a small extent and b)
it is not for sale as part of the regular operatiah the Group. Therefore, an investment property
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generates cash flows largely independently of theraassets held by the Group.

An investment property is measured initially atdtsst (purchase price and any directly attributable
expenditure). After the initial entry, investmemnoperty assets are measured in accordance with
requirements of the fair value model. A gain orsl@gising from a change in the fair value of
investment property is recognised in the profit &w$ account for the period in which it arisese Th
fair value of investment property reflects markenditions at the balance sheet date.

(o) Tangible fixed assets

(i) Own tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets consist of fixed assets astsdo construct such assets. Tangible fixed asset
include fixed assets with an expected period ofale®/e one year, maintained to be used to serve the
Group’s needs or to be transferred to other estitiased on the lease contract or for adminiserativ
purposes.

Tangible fixed assets, with the exception of land buildings are recorded at historical costs reduc
by depreciation/amortization and any impairmentevdowns. The historical costs are made up of the
purchase price/cost of creation, and costs direethted to the purchase of assets.

Each component part of property, plant and equipriems, whose purchasing price or generation
cost is material in comparison with the purchaseepor generation cost of the entire item, is
depreciated separately. The Group allocates thalimalue of the property, plant and equipment int
its significant parts.

Lands and buildings are carried in accordance thighrevaluation model, after initial recognitionaat
revalued amount, being its fair value at the ddtéhe revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairtnesés. Revaluations are made with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount doesdiffer materially from that which would be
determined using fair value at the balance sheet da

The revaluation effect is reflected in the revalwatreserve/ revaluation capital in case of thaieal
increase, or carried through the income statenmenase of the balance sheet asset’s value decrease.
However, the increase of value is recognised amimcinsofar as it reverses the decrease of valge du
to revaluation of the same asset that was prewiagesiognised as costs of a given period. Similarly,
the decrease of the asset’s value resulting fraraluation shall be set off against the relevanplsisr
resulting from the previous revaluation of the sasset.

The entire revaluation surplus shall be realisati@time of withdrawing from use or selling thesets

(ii) Subsequent Costs

Costs of modernization of property, plant and eogpt increase their carrying value or are
recognized as a separate item of property, pladtemuipment only when it is probable that such
expenditures will result in an inflow of economienefits to the Group, and the cost of such expenses
can be reliably measured. Costs of repairs and tarx@ance of property, plant and equipment are
charged to the profit and loss account in the tampperiod in which they were incurred.

(p) Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetsyet without physical substance
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Intangible assets are deemed to include asset vliiit the following requirements:

- they can be separated from an economic entity aldd tsansferred, licensed or granted for use for
a fee to third parties, both separately, and tagetith their accompanying contracts, assets or
liabilities, or

— arise from contractual titles or other legal tiflesespective of whether those are transferable or
separable from the business entity or other rightsobligations.

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of a business entity idially recognized at cost, which is the surplughef

costs of merger of business entities over the shhrthe acquiring entity in the net fair value of

identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingerabillities. After the initial recognition, goodwilis
presented at cost less all accumulated impairmeité-offs. The test for impairment is conducted at
the balance sheet date.

Impairment is established by estimating residuflev®f cash generating units, to which goodwill is

allocated. If the residual value of the cash gdmegaunit is lower than the carrying value, the

impairment is made.
(i) Computer software

Purchased computer software licences are capifalisthe amount of costs incurred for the purchase

and adaptation for use of specific computer sokwdExpenses attached to the development or

maintenance of computer software are expensed inbarred.

(iif) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets purchased by the Groupeamgnized at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment write — offs.

(iv) Subsequent Costs

Subsequent costs incurred after initial recognitbacquired intangible asset are capitalised when

is probable that such expenditures will ensurendlow of economic benefits to the Group. In other

cases, costs are charged to the profit and lageireporting period in which they were incurred.

(q) Depreciation and amortization charges

The depreciation charge of tangible and intangfixed assets is applied using the straight line
method, using defined depreciation rates throughimitperiod of their useful lives. The depreciable
amount is the cost of an asset, or other amourstitutled for cost, less its residual value. Thefulse
life, amortization/ depreciation rates and residwilies of tangible and intangible assets are wade
annually. Conclusions of the review may lead tohmnge of depreciation periods recognized
prospectively from the date of application (theeeffof this change is in accordance with IAS 8
charged to profit and loss)

In case of buildings valued at fair value, the acglated depreciation balance at the revaluatioa dat
is removed from the carrying value gross, and #tecarrying value adjusted to the revalued value.
Depreciation and amortization charges are recodnizeéhe profit and loss account. At each balance
sheet date goodwill and other intangible assetd witlefinite useful life are regularly tested for
impairment. The depreciation periods are as follows

* lands and buildings 50 years

« leaseholds improvements period of the lease or hire
* vehicles and others 3-5years

e equipment 5 years

» costs of development of software 3 years

« software licenses, copyrights 3 years
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(N Leasing contracts

(i) The Group as lessor

The Group is a party to lease contracts, on this lmdisvhich it grants and is paid for the use oa th
benefits on the current assets.

In case of lease contracts, which result in trarisig substantially all the risks and rewards faiilog

the ownership of that asset under lease, The dulijestich lease agreement is derecognized from the
balance sheet. A receivable amount is recognipeal) iamount equal to the present value of minimum
lease payments. Lease payments are divided inémdial income and reduction of the balance of
receivables in such a way as to achieve reachirfixesl rate of return from the outstanding
receivables.

Lease payments for contracts which do not fulfjuieements of a finance lease are recognized as
income in the profit and loss account, using thaigit-line method, throughout the period of the
lease.

(i) The Group as lessee

The Group is also a party to lease contracts, uwtéh it takes another party’s non-current aseets
intangible assets for an agreed period for paicbusgher benefits.

In case of lease contracts, under which essentdllsisks and rewards resulting from ownership of
the leased assets are transferred, subject oflsasl agreement is recognized as a non-currerit asse
and a liability is recognized in the amount eqoahie present value of minimum lease payments as of
the date of commencement of the lease. Lease pagmendivided into financial costs and reduction
of the balance of the liability in such way as thiave obtaining a fixed rate of interest on the
outstanding liability. Financial costs are recoguidirectly in profit and loss account.

Fixed assets which are the basis of the finane®eleantract are depreciated in the manner defiored f
the Group’s non-current assets. However, if itnisartain whether the ownership of an asset has been
transferred, then non-current assets used pursodimance lease contracts are depreciated over the
shorter of two: the expected useful life or theiqgubof lease.

Lease payments for contracts which do not fulfiblifications of a finance lease agreement are
recognized as costs in the profit and loss accouatstraight-line method throughout the periodhef
lease.

(s) Other balance sheet items

(i) Other trading receivables and other receivables

Trading receivables and other receivables areethati cost less an allowance.
(i) Liabilities

Liabilities, other than financial liabilities hefdr trading are recognized at cost.
(i) Non current assets held for sale and discmntd operation

The Group classifies a non-current asset (or dameup) as held for sale if its carrying amouiit w
be recovered principally through a sale transaatimer than through continuing use.

For this to be the case, the asset (or disposapymust be available for immediate sale in itsen
condition subject only to terms that are usual angtomary for sales of such assets (or disposal
groups) and its sale must be highly probable, the. appropriate level of management must be
committed to a plan to sell the asset (or dispgsalip), and an active programme to locate a buyer
and complete the plan must have been initiated.

26



Annual consolidated financial statements of the BaBkSlgski S.A. Group
for the period from ¥ January 2008 to $iDecember 2008

Further, the asset must be actively marketed fla aaa price that is reasonable in relation to its
current fair value. In addition, the sale shouldexpected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classifiaatio

Non current assets held for sale are priced alother of: its carrying value or fair value less tts
sell. Assets classified in this category are npréeated.

Where the criteria for classification as non-cutr@ssets for sale are no longer met, the Groupnwill
longer classify that asset as an asset for salea (Qroup of assets for sale) but reclassify it as
appropriate. In such a case, the Group measures$#e¢ that is no longer classified as an asseafer
(or that is no longer part of a group for salethatlower of the following amounts:

- its carrying amount from the period before the aésedisposal group) was classified as held for
sale, adjusted for any depreciation, amortisatioregaluations that would have been recognised
had the asset (or disposal group) not been cledsif held for sale, and

— its recoverable amount at the date of the subsé¢giaeision not to sell.

Discontinued operations are components of the Griap either have been disposed of or are
classified as held for sale and represent a sepamnajor line of business or geographical area of
operations, are a part of a single co-ordinated padispose of a separate major line of business o
geographical area of operations or are a subsidizguired exclusively with a view to resale.

The classification to this category takes placéhat moment of sale or when the operation meets
criteria of the operation classified as held fde sé this moment took place previously.

Operations held for sale, which are to be no longgxd, can be also classified as a discontinued
operation.

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of la Elas/ statement include: Cash in hand and cash
held at the Central Bank, cash equivalents e.danbas on current accounts and overnight deposits
held by the other banks.

(® Impairment of other non- financial assets

For each balance sheet date, the Group assessexxifftence of objective evidence indicating
impairment of a non-current asset. If such evidezxists, the Group performs an estimation of the
recoverable value. If, and only if, the recoveradmeount of an asset is less than its carrying amoun
the carrying amount of the asset shall be reduzé@d tecoverable amount.

If such evidence exists, the Group performs ammeasion of recoverable value. If, and only if, the
recoverable amount of an asset is less than itgicgramount, the carrying amount of the assetl shal
be reduced to its recoverable amount.

If there are indications of impairment of commorogerty, i.e. assets which do not generate cash
independently from other assets or groups of asaetsthe recoverable value of the individual asset
included among common property cannot be determitedGroup determines the recoverable value
at the level of the cash generating unit, to whiehgiven asset belongs.

An impairment charge is recognized, if the bookueabf the asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. The impairment charge is razednn the profit and loss account.

In case of a cash generating unit (group), impaitneharges in the first place reduce goodwill
attributable to cash generating units, and thenaegroportionally the book value of other asséts o
this cash generating unit (groups)
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Measuring Recoverable Amount

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-gameuait is the higher of its fair value less ki

sell and its value in use.

In order to measure the value in use, estimataddutash flows are discounted to their presentevalu
by using a discount rate before taxation, whichsaers the current market assessment, time value of
money and specific risk attributable to the undagyasset.

Reversing impairment loss

Goodwill impairment loss is not subject to reversal

An impairment loss of an asset other than goodwileversed if, and only if, there has been a chang
in the estimates used to determine the asset'seeaole amount.

An impairment loss can be reversed only up to theumt, at which the book value of impaired asset
does not exceed its book value, which decreasatkpyeciation charge, would be established, if any
impairment loss had not been recognized.

(u) Equity

Equity comprises of the share capital, share premiavaluation reserve and retained earnings.
All balances of capital and funds are recognizeabatinal value.

Share capital

Share capital is presented at nominal value, iror@emce with the charter and entry into the
commercial register of the dominant entity.

(i) Own shares
If the Group acquires its own shares, then the aaidunt together with the costs directly attributed
such purchase is recognized as a change in théyEgouired own shares are treated as own shares
and disclosed as reduction of the Equity.

(i) Dividends
Dividends for the financial year which have beepraped by the General Shareholders’ Meeting, but
not paid as of the balance sheet day are disclosddr the balance sheet recognized in the balance
,Other Liabilities”.

Share premium
Share premium is formed from agio obtained from idsie of shares reduced by the attributable
direct costs incurred with that issue.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve is created as a result of:

- revaluation of financial instruments classifiedaa&ailable for sale,

— revaluation of cash flow hedge financial instrunsent

— revaluation of tangible fixed assets carried at\alue,

The deferred tax resulting from above mentionedltaation is included in the revaluation reserve.
The revaluation reserve is not subject to proftrithution.
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Retained earnings

Retained earnings are created from charges agaiofit and are allocated for purposes specified in
the Articles of Association (the company’'s Charter)other legal regulations. Retained earnings
comprise of:

— other supplementary capital,

— other reserve capital,

— general banking risk fund,

— undistributed result from previous years,

— net result assigned to shareholders of the holdbmgpany of current year.

Other supplementary capital, other reserve capital general banking risk fund are created from
charges against profit and are allocated for pwpapecified in the Articles of Association (the
company’s Charter) or other legal regulations.

General banking risk fund is created in accordamitie the Banking Act dated 29 August 1997 with
subsequent amendments, from profit after tax.

The net financial result allocated to the dominantity represents the gross result under the
performance statement for the current year, adjusi¢h the corporate income tax and the result
allocated to the minority shares.

(w)  Prepayments and deferred income

Prepayments

Prepayments comprise of particular expenses whilthb&settled against the profit and loss as being
accrued over the future reporting periods. Defewests include primarily provisions for material
costs due to services provided for the Group byntaparties, as well as insurance costs paid in
advance to be settled in the future periods. Prepays are presented in the balance sheet in ‘Other
assets’ caption.

Deferred income

This caption comprises mainly of fees amortizedaostraight-line basis and other types of income
collected in advance which will be settled agaprsffit and loss account in future reporting periods
Deferred income is presented in ‘Other liabilitieglance sheet caption.

(x) Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

Expenses incurred due to a programme of certaitribations are recognised as costs in income
statement.

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits of the Group (othemthermination benefits) comprise of wages,
salaries, paid annual leave and social securityribomtions.

The Group recognizes the anticipated, undiscoumtdde of short-term employee benefits as an
expense of an accounting period when an employeedmalered service (regardless of payment date)
in correspondence with other on-balance liabilities
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The amount of short-term employee benefits on tigsed holidays to which Group employees are
entitled is calculated as the sum of unused hosidayvhich particular Group employees are entitled.

(i) Long-term employee benefits
Group liabilities due to long-term employee bemefibther than pension schemes, constitute the
amount of future benefits that will be obtainedanyemployee for performance of his/ her services in
the current or previous periods which are not dudotal within 12 months of work completion.
Provisions for retirement severance pay grante@mubdnefits due to regulations of the Labour Code
are estimated on the basis of the actuarial valnafihe provisions being the result of an actuarial
valuation are recognised and adjusted on an atasés.
Provisions for long-term employee benefits are gatged in the balance sheet item “Provisions” in
correspondence with costs of labour in the prafit bnss account.

The Group adopts a corridor approach to recognivioa determined portion of the cumulated net
value of actuarial gains and losses. Under thishott when determining an obligation due to
certain benefits, the Group recognises some aetugsins and losses as revenue or costs, when
the net value of accumulated unrecognised actugaigls and losses as at the end of the previous
reporting period exceeds the higher of the follayiwo values:

a) 10% of the current value of the obligation duedrtain benefits as at that day (before dedudfon
the plan’s assets)

b) 10% of the fair value of the plan’s assets dbattday.

A portion of the actuarial gains and losses abteesaid limit is recognised in the profit and loss
account as the quotient of the above named exoestha average expected remaining working life of
the Group employees. Following that change, theu@mpresents in the balance sheet the net value
of the liability comprising the current value ofetHiability and unrecognised actuarial gains/
losses. The Group changed the estimates in progpéetms in view of immateriality.

The Group is a participant of a long-term LEO (Ldaagn Equity Ownership) incentive system,
introduced by ING Group. This system motivates @ygés of ING Group units by linking their
financial results with financial results of the @po LEO is addressed to Bank Management Board
members, senior management and high-level spdsidlise system operates in two variants:

1) Standard — an employee may become a holder of IN&es or receive cash benefit; two
following instruments are offered in the Standarstam:

— Share options
— Performance shares

2) Phantom — an employee may receive cash benefitfdlkawing instruments are offered in the
Phantom system:

- Phantom options
- Performance units
Share options / Phantom options have a 10-yearrityaperiod and may be exercised after three years

from their issue, provided that an option holdeaiBank employee (or employee of another unit of
ING Group) or has retired. The exercise price afference between the exercise price determined by
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Euronext Amsterdam as at the exercise date ingiba period after the General Shareholders Meeting
of ING Group and the strike price.

Performance shares/ Performance units are condlijogranted. The number of received instruments
depends on ING Group results at the end of a 3-peaind. To this purpose, a so-called Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) is determined for eachea@-yperiod against the ratio calculated for
financial institutions similar to ING Group. Depeng on the place of ING Group in the ranking, the
number of Performance shares / Performance urdtifable for exercise may total from 200% for 1-3
ranking to 0% for 18-20 ranking. The price of exegds determined as for Share options / Phantom
options.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group recogimsés books the measurement of options and
performance shares held by the employees of thepgGro

) Provisions

Provisions, including provisions for off-balanceesh commitments, are recognized in the balance
sheet when the Group has a legal or constructiligation (common law) as a result of past everds, a
well as when it is probable that an outflow of nases will be required to settle the obligation. If
the effect is material, the amount of provisionmisasured by discounted, expected cash flows using
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessmanthe time value of money and those risks
specific to the liability. This is also applicalfiler the recognition of provisions for risk-bearinff-
balance sheet commitments including guarantedsrdadf credit, and irrevocable unused credit lines

As the committed unused credit lines for wholesatposures are treated as equivalent of balance
sheet exposures, the provisions against the exg®afr that type are established and recognised
together with impairment loss.

The Group accumulates provisions for restructudosts only if the general criteria for recognitimin
provisions according to IAS 37 are fulfilled. Theopisions cover only the direct and indispensable
restructuring costs, not related to current opensti

2 Net interest income

Interest income on financial assets classifiedvaslable for sale, loans and advances and financial
assets held to maturity are recognized in the fpeofd loss at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate.

Interest income/expense on derivatives classifeettading derivatives is recognized under ‘Resalt o
financial instruments at fair value through praefitd loss’. Interest income on debt securities iflads

to trading portfolio or designated at fair valueotigh profit and loss are recognized under theiaapt
‘Interest income’.

The effective interest method is a method of caling the amortized cost of a financial asset or
a financial liability (or group of financial assats financial liabilities) and of allocating thet@mest
income or interest expense over the relevant pefibd effective interest rate is the rate thatalists
estimated future cash payments or receipts thrdlghexpected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net oagramount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective intereste, an estimate of cash flows in made considexiing
contractual terms of the financial instrument bogsinot consider future credit losses. The caloulat
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includes all fees and commissions paid or rece{estbrnal) between parties to the contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest ratensaction costs, and all other premiums or dissount
Interest income comprises interest and commisdi@teived or due) included in the calculation of
the effective interest rate on: scheduled loansrlyank deposits and securities

In case impairment is recognized for a financiaeasor group of similar financial assets, interest
income is accrued based on the carrying amourgagfivable (this is the value reduced by revaluation
charge) with the use of the interest rate accordingvhich future cash flows were discounted for
impairment valuation.

(@a) Net commission income

Fee and commission income arises on providing @izuservices by the Group and comprise of fees
and commissions on loan granting, pledge to grdoaam, issue of cards, cash management services,
brokerage services and asset management servio@smi€sion income also comprises margins
on FX derivatives transactions concluded with coaeclients.

Fees and commissions (both income and expense}igiettributed to initial recognition of financial
assets with repayment schedule are recognizeddiit pind loss account as effective interest rate
component and are part of interest income. Otheibated to initial recognition of financial assets
without repayment schedule (e.g. commission on drefis) are amortized using a straight-line
method through the expected life of the finanaigtiument. Fees and commissions on pledge to grant
a loan, which is probable to be drawn, are defearstisince initial recognition of financial assats
amortized as component of effective interest rateusing straight-line method based on above
mentioned criteria.

Other fees and commissions resulting from finansialvices provided by the Group, like cash
management services, brokerage services and aasagament services are recognized in profit and
loss account at the time of performance of theaetbpe services.

(bb) Netincome on investment financial assets

The net income on investment financial assets ca@prprofits and losses resulting from sale of
financial assets classified as available for sald aarnings from dividends. Dividend income is
recognized in the profit and loss account when shareholders’ right to receive payment is
established.

(co) Result on financial instruments at fair valughrough profit and loss and revaluation

Result on financial instruments at fair value tlglorofit and loss and revaluation includes gaims a
losses arising from disposal and change of fainevalf assets and liabilities held for trading and
designated at initial recognition at fair valueotingh profit and loss.

Result on financial instruments at fair value tlgloyprofit and loss and revaluation also covers the
swap points from derivative transactions that tl@iBenters into in order to gain liquidity in fagai
currencies.

The result on financial instruments carried throtigh income statement and revaluation also covers
fair value adjustments for risk of unrealised FXtiOmp transactions.

Result from accrued interest and settlement ofodistor premium on debt securities held for trading
or designated at fair value through profit and iss®cognized as interest income.
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(dd)  Net income on other basic activities

Net income on other basic activities comprise gbemse and income not attributed directly with
Group’s banking and brokerage activity.These ineliil particular: the result due to holding an
investment property, sale of assets (non-curresgtasand intangible assets); revenues from sales of
other services; revenues due to recovered bad;deb&ved and paid damages, penalties and fines.

(ee) Net profit attributable to minority shareholders

Net profit attributable to minority shareholdersrqwises of that part of the profit or loss, neufefor
the period and net assets of subordinated entity ¢an be attributed to shares not held by parent
company (directly or indirectly through subordirchmtities) .

(ff) Income tax

Income tax is recognized as current and defernedGarrent income tax is recognized in the profit
and loss account. Deferred income tax is recogriizguofit and loss or equity depending on type of
temporary differences.

Current tax is a liability calculated based on td@dncome at the binding tax rate at the balaheets
date including adjustments of prior year tax lidpil

(gg) Deferred income tax

The Group creates a provision for deferred taxespect of all taxable temporary difference and

deferred tax asset with regard to all deductibtepierary differences to extent that it is probahiat t

taxable profit will be available against which tbeductible temporary differences can be utilised

according to accounting regulations and accordintegal regulations concerning corporate income

taxation. A positive net difference is recognized liabilities as "Deferred tax reserve".

A negative net difference is recognized under "Defibtax assets".

The deferred tax reserve is created by using th@nba sheet method for all positive temporary

differences as of the balance sheet date arisihgela tax value of assets and liabilities and their

carrying value disclosed in the financial reporzept for situations where deferred tax reserveeari

from:

— initial recognition of goodwiill;

— goodwill, which amortization has no taxable expense

- initial recognition of an asset or liability withteansaction which does not constitute a merger of
economic entities and which on its origination hasmpact on the net financial profit or taxable
income or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognized with respeatl toegative timing differences as of the balance

sheet date between the tax value of assets arititiBgband their carrying value disclosed in the

financial statement and unused tax losses. Deféaredssets are recognized in such amount in which

taxable income is likely to be achieved allowingstd off negative timing differences, except fa th

situations when the component of deferred tax assites from the initial recognition of an asset o

liability with a transaction which does not congit a merger of economic entities and on its

origination have no impact on the net financialfiprar taxable income or loss.

The carrying value of a deferred tax asset shalldodied for each balance sheet date and reddged i

is no longer likely to achieve taxable income suidint for a partial or full realization of the defed

tax component.

33



Annual consolidated financial statements of the BaBkSlgski S.A. Group
for the period from ¥ January 2008 to $iDecember 2008

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax reservesséimeaged with the use of the tax rates which are
expected to be in force when the asset is reabzedserve eliminated, assuming the tax rates t@nd
provisions) legally or factually in force as of thalance sheet date.

Income tax pertaining to items directly presentedquity is presented in equity.

Deferred tax assets and reserves are recognizéiateb@roup in the balance sheet after offsetting at
level of each entity included in consolidation. TBeoup offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax
reserves, where it has legal title to effect sutbetting, and the deferred assets and reservésipes

the same taxpayer.

(hh)  Other taxes

Revenues, costs and assets are recognised legaltieeadded tax, tax on civil law acts, and other
taxes on sales, except where the tax on sale, yg@oth purchase of goods and services, is not
recoverable from the tax authorities; in that cdise,sales tax is recognized accordingly as agdart
the cost of acquisition of an asset, or as paat @jst item.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from oalpi@yto the tax authorities is recognized on tice fa
of the balance sheet as a part of receivablesiaoifity.

Comparability of financial data

In the consolidated financial statements coverimg period from 1 January 2008 to 31 December
2008, the Group introduced changes compared wittstdtements for the period from 1 January 2007
to 31 December 2007 with regard to the presentatiGome items of the income statement.

The changes derive from an in-depth analysis ofet@nomic contents for individual operations as
well as their assignment to relevant items of titwime statement.

The most important change consists in moving thesimg part of the transactional margin in the
amount of PLN 30.7 million from the “Commission @me” to the “Foreign exchange result”.

Detailed specification of modifications is presehite the table below.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Segment reporting

The primary reporting format of the Group is busgeegments. This arises from the management
structure and internal reporting structure funatgrin the Group.

Measurement of segment assets and liabilities @&gdnent revenues and results is based on the
accounting policies set out in the accounting pofiotes.

Measurements of internal and external interest nmcoand costs for individual segments are
conducted using of the transfer pricing system. ffaesfer prices are calculated on the basis of one
profitability curve for the given currency, commdor assets’ and liability’ products. The transfer
price designated for assets’ and liabilities’ pratguvith the same location on the profitability veiis
identical. Modifications of the baseline transfeice obtained from valuation of the product on the
profitability curve are possible, and the factoosrecting the transfer price may be the premium for
acquisition of long-term liquidity, matching of tf@@roup’s positions, the cost of hedging in case of
complex products and pricing policy. Profitabiliturves are built using mathematical equations, on
the basis of quotations available in informatiorvees.

Segment revenues and costs, results, assets éilitidm include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated@®asanable basis.

Segments of operation (business lines)

The management of the ING Baflkiski Group is conducted through breaking down therajons
into the following business segments:

* retail banking,

» corporate banking,

e Own operations.

Wholesale and retail segments are separated bagbeé @inancial criterion (especially turnover, ébv
of collected assets) and subject related critespecified by internal regulations of the dominantitg
of the Group.

Within the framework of retail banking, the Bank&oup provides services for individual customers
(segments of mass customers and wealthy customeds3mall enterprises. This activity is analysed
by the following products: credit products (oveftien the savings and settlement account - ROR,
loans related to cards, hire purchase loans, hgusans, mortgage loans), contract loans granted by
the Building Society, mortgage loans granted by IB&nk Hipoteczny, deposit products (current
accounts, term deposits, savings accounts), IN@ fumts, brokerage services provided by ING
Securities SA, and bank cards.
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The wholesale activity includes services to insital clients, including strategic clients, large

corporate entities and mid-sized companies. Foparate banking, the Group provides reporting
broken down by loan products (working loans, innesit loans), deposit products (current accounts,
term deposits and negotiated deposits, savingsuats)p trust services, capital market operations
conducted by the parent and by ING Securities,apadlations of intermediation in lease services.

Proprietary operations are carried out by Finaridiatkets and ALCO.

Financial markets encompass operations performesbimey and capital markets, conducted both on
the proprietary basis as well as for the custonmszakfit.

Within the framework of this activity, currency, mgy and derivative instrument market products and
securities operations (Treasury securities, stamdsnotes) are specified. The it&nancial markets

- total segment incompresents the income from proprietary trading. Twme from the sale of
financial market products for the corporate bankamgl retail banking segments are disclosed in the
income of these segments.

ALCO comprises above all of investing funds origimg from own funds and funding some assets of
the Bank. The main element of the core busineseniecof ALCO is income from investing
proprietary funds (book capital). This income i®rthadjusted by the interest calculated on the
economic capital required by individual businesdi (retail banking segment, corporate banking
segment, financial markets). Interest on econonapital is allocated from the ALCO line to
individual business lines in the manner correspaytth their demand for economic capital.

Geographical segments

The business activities of the Capital Group aréopmed on the territory of the Republic of Poland.
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Segment reporting — continued
The year ended 31.12.2008 The year ended 31.12.2007
PLN thousand Retail Corporate Own operations Non- Total Retail Corporate Own operations Non- Total
customers  customers Proprietar ~ ALCO allocated customers  customers Proprietar ~ ALCO allocated
segment segment vy trading items segment segment  y trading items

Revenue total 1271880 814 076 59 181 -17 441 2127696 1208801 749 677 42 281 72 142 2072902
Core business 1247 092 768 612 44 061 67 931 2127696 1191807 720 423 34 023 126 649 2072902
Income on lending 282 024 236 214 518 238 22391 207 662 431 454

Interest income external 539622 1002992 339 182 638 137

Interest cost internal -334816 -840 003 -173522  -512 229

Income on fees/other income 77 218 73224 58 131 81754
Income on deposits 640 919 309 728 950 647 616 007 276 522 892 529

Interest,costs external -1248955  -369 972 -719 888 -368 122

Interest income internal 1601967 571880 1091 432 534 934

Income on fees/ other income 287 907 107 820 244 462 109 710
Income on mutual funds 108 728 108 728 203 096 203 096
Income on brokerage and custody 30173 57 977 88 150 47 184 87 490 134 675
Other income on core business -22 241 -7 599 375 61 67 931 413701 -10 950 -2 077 253 929 126 649 367 551
FM products sales 159 257 172 293 -331 549 0 69 081 150 825 -219 906 0
Income on Pension Funds Shares 48 232 48 232 43 598 43 598
Result on economic capital 24 788 45 464 15120 -873 0 16 994 29 255 8 259 -54 507 0
Expenses total 956 686 484 827 58 531 3331 -4 343 499 032 884 173 451 646 54 850 2561 -4119 11389
Operational costs 956 686 484 827 58 531 3331 434 3 1499 032 884 173 451 646 54 850 2561 -4 119 3891110
including depreciation 99 509 27 268 6 605 415 133797 115129 31549 7642 480 154 799
Result before risk 315 195 329 249 650 -20772 834 628664 324 629 298 032 -12 569 69 581 4119 7623
Risk cost 10181 55 420 0 0 65 601 -40 020 -63 177 0 0 -103 197
Result before tax 305 014 273 829 650 -20 772 4343 563 063 364 649 361 209 -12 569 69 581 4119 886 9
CIT 117 645 150 167
Result after tax 445 418 636 822
;:grs‘%igrr:sd to shareholders of the holding 445 413 630 724
- assigned to minority shareholders 5 6 098
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31.12.208 31.12.200
Retail Corporate  Proprietary ALCO Non-allocated Total Retail Corporate  Proprietary ALCO Non-allocated Total
customers  customers trading items customers  customers trading items
Segment Segment Segment Segment
Assets and liabilities
Assets of the segment 7159738 21741 52B9 129 655 245 448 68276368 4519063 13994 252 31 535 951 655 671 50 704 937
Segment investments in
cubordinates 107 261 107 261 97 326 97 326
Other assets (not 1226846 1226846 1208597  1@8597
allocated to segments)
Total assets 69 610 475 52 010 860
Segment liabilities 32047707 19663611 12 91% 32 64 626 647 27453096 17224624 2849 293 47 527 013
Rother liabilities (not 759 399 759 399 643 345 643 345
allocated to segments)
Equity 4224 429 4224 429 3 840 502 384 502
Total liabilities 69 610 475 52010 860
Capital expenditure 164 338 83 283 9881 0 257 501 134 212 68 557 8089 0 210 859
Depreciation 99 509 27 268 6 605 415 133 797 11529 31549 7 642 479 154 799
Total net cash from 1259156  -5281745 -14461557 17 786 309 252 153 -445 684 3114 459 224 158 335805 -5972903 668 -2 765103
operating activity
Net cash flow from
inwesting activity 94918 -48 102 -5 707 7235 -141 492 -91 807 -4896 5533 2761 -141 476
Net cash flow from 0 0 0 -152217 152217 0 -20 903 0 - 362979  -38882

finacial activity
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2. Net interest income

Interest and similar income

2008 2007

Interest on deposits, loans and advances to banks 64 248 869 739
Interest on loans and advances to customers 1483 30 923 330

- interest on entities from the financial seatther than banks 167 608 101 752

- interest on entities from the non-finandattor 1268 283 784 342

- iirr::tei;i?igzg’esgt(i:ttigf from the government selfgovernment 47 469 37 236
Interest on debt securities held for trading 230 906 176 769
Interest on available-for-sale debt securities 669 515 492 095
Interest on held-to-maturity debt securities 320 864 13922
Reverse repos 27 754 3148
Rother 1455 1685
Total 3398 102 2 480 688

With regard to interest revenue for the year 2@08,amount of PLN 19,967,000 represents revenue
from financial assets for which impairment loss wasognised. In the year 2007, respectively, the
amount reached PLN 21,925,000. Interest revenagerkto financial assets is calculated using thhe ne
exposure amounts; i.e. the amounts including effeanpairment losses.

Interest expense and similar charges

2008 2007

Interest on deposits from banks 191 565 109 445
Interest on deposits from customers 1973 320 1231297

- interest on entities from the financial seatther than banks 97 633 103 184

- interest on entities from the non-finandattor 1761 492 1062981

- iirr::tei;i?igzg’esgt(i:ttigf from the government selfgovernment 114 195 65 132
Interest on Loans and advances received 258 2319
Repos 80 942 89 757
Total 2 246 085 1432818
Net interest income 1152 017 1047 870
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3. Net commission income

Commission income

2008 2007
Commission related to brokerage activity 75 410 124 861
Commission and fees related to customer accounts 87 7923 266 495
Commission for loans and advances 122 882 109 915
Commission for loans and advances insurance 17 625 0
Commission and fees for payment and credit cards 4978 142 871
Commission and fees due to distribution of parttign units 98 549 213 206
Fiduciary and custodian fees 29 145 26 879
Foreign commercial business 15 800 21 603
Commission related to subscription of structurestprcts 23 506 0
The transaction margin on currency exchange traiosec 139 391 98 795
Commission on intermediation in the financial prousale 19 362 4209
Other 19 742 11 314
Total 1034 184 1020 148
Commission expense

2008 2007
Brokerage fees 25343 28 392
Commission paid on cards 51203 38 347
Commission paid on intermediation in selling deppsbducts 15 336 8 727
Commission paid on loan insurance 8 861 0
Commission paid on trading in securities 10 159 7 438
Commission paid on disclosing credit information 6428 5008
Commission paid on electronic banking services 299 0
Costs of the Bank Guarantee Fund (BFG) 4684 4037
Costs of the National Clearing House (KIR) 4490 4599
Other 13 028 24 837
Total 144 461 121 385
Net commission income 889 723 898 763
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4. Net income on investment financial assets

2008 2007

Equity instruments 27 974 14 640
Debt instruments -4 388 7 600
Dividend income 7 235 2761
Valuation of the transaction hedged under theviaine hedge accounting 326 958 5317
for securities, of which:

- regarding debt securities reclassified frdm twvailable-for-sale 113 253 0
portfolio to the loans and other receivables one
Valuation of the hedging transaction under the yalue hedge accounting 313 056 6 096
for securities
Net income on investment financial assets 44 723 25780

5. Net income on instruments measured at fair value ttough profit and loss and revaluation

2008 2007

Net income on financial assets and liabilities helfbr trading 20073 371973
Net income on equity instruments -18 853 -3 127
Net income on debt instruments -82 583 -49 096
Net income on derivatives 121 509 424 196

- Currency derivatives 426 999 438 538

- Exchange rate derivatives -337 420 -31 775

- Securities derivatives 31930 17 433
5:; r:ni%(i)tg(larzz ;ggggﬁll assets and liabilities meased at fair value 2 838 6 345
Net income on debt instruments 528 6 345
Net income on the measurement of the deposits ruEsid to be measured
at their fair value 2310 0
Ineffectiveness recognised in profit and loss accotithat arises from 5 0
cash flow hedges
Result on the revaluation of balance sheet items 8428 -342 197
Net income on instruments measured at fair value ttough profit and 26012 36 121

loss and revaluation

Net income on equity instruments includes net temutrading in equities.

Net income on debt instruments includes net incomé&rading in treasury securities, commercial debt
instruments, money market instruments (treasuftg)bMet income on derivatives includes net income
on interest rate derivatives — FRA, IRS/CIRS, fgneexchange derivatives — swaps and options,
as well as stock exchange index options.

Interest net income on debt securities is preseadquhrt of interest result.
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The results presented in the note were consideiadgted by a number of factors. The result on
valuation at fair value of available-for-sale instrents in the year 2008 was subject to:

- valuation of the portfolio of State Treasury Eurobe classified to the portfolio of financial assets
valued at fair value when initially recognised (F\O

Those instruments were purchased by the Groupdry#fars 2007-2008 for EUR 417 million and
hedged at the same time against the interest isktédoy Interest Rate Swap (IRS) contracts having
similar characteristics, transacted at the same.timthe year 2008 the valuation of those instmnise
was considerably affected the lower market liqyidithich resulted in reducing the bonds’ fair value
vis-a-vis the face value or negative valuationlal 23 million.

— valuation of the State Treasury bonds and the diha@ncial instruments:

Negative impact on the result on fair value valuatof available-for-sale instruments was made by
valuations of the State Treasury bonds and therdihancial instruments held by the Group.
Following the unfavourable changes in parametersd ulr valuation purposes and material
deterioration of the market liquidity, the pricestioose instruments considerably fell. It generatad
additional effect in the form of negative valuatiwiPLN 70 million.

— valuation of derivatives (among others FX Optianahsacted with the Group's clients:

Valuation of non-matured derivatives transactedhwvitie Group's clients was adjusted with the
counterparty risk charge. It was determined by dbhsessment of the financial standing of Group's
clients and assessment of the clients’ ratingectfig the exposure risk. The valuation of derixeti
transacted by the client was adjusted pro ratheaisk assessment. The total amount of derivatives
valuation adjustments, referred to the result orarfcial instruments carried through the income
statement was PLN 163 million.

The Group’s approach to estimates of valuatiorta@Bbovementioned transactions was described in
significant accounting principles under item “acobing estimates”.

There is a certain uncertainty as to the futuréleseénts due to the abovementioned derivative
transactions and the level of actual losses wilethel on the future FX rates’ movements and the
standing of counterpatrties.
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6. Net income on other basic activities

2008 2007
Received indemnities, penalties and fines -630 -368
Income from sales of other services 4683 5043
Net income on available-for-sale assets and aksédor sale 331 -107
Result on disposal of assets (fixed and intangibkets and own properties) 293 101
Impairment losses on other non financial assets -175 -2 395
Net income on the investment properties: 13704 5172
- income rental from of the investment proper 12 966 14 391
- maintance expenses relating to the investpmperty -4 896 -3 899
- measurement of the investment properthieafdir value 5634 -5 320
Fair value adjustment in hedge accounting 0 -8 214
Valuation (_)f the hedging transaction under the ¥alue hedge accounting 0 7813
for properties
Other, of which: 807 13725
- mortgage loans insurance premiums -2 359 1924
- returned amounts, material and personnédtes costs 855 826
- interest received, calculated on an offavede basis 377 1841
- other 1934 9134
Total 19 013 20 770

The item "Income from sales of other services" prity includes the sales of services at the
recreation centres of one of the Group’s subsigsari
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7. General and administrative expenses

2008 2007
Personnel expenses 782 539 700 442
wages and salaries, including: 640 640 582 372
special and retirement benefits 1611 2894
employee benefits, including: 141 899 118 070
training expenses 28974 21220
General and administrative expenses 590 544 525 332
on property, plant and equipment 114 470 103 541
taxes and charges (including PFRON) 3132 2 963
maintenance and rental of buildings 145 442 137 620
communication services 69 604 63 596
leasing services 14 415 12 022
refurbishment services 33039 30 560
licences and patents 18 151 17 198
consulting 72 756 82 965
lease of computer resources 23341 19 314
other external services 96 194 55 553
Depreciation and amortisation 133 797 154 799
on property, plant and equipment 79 964 96 509
on intangible assets 53 833 58 290
Total 1 506 880 1380573
8. Result on other operating income and expenses
2008 2007
Donations made 3002 2492
Other operating expenses due to disputed claims 5094 1348
Measurement of fixed assets at fair value -565 4 357
Other 4224 340
Total -7 848 8 537

Other operating expenses due to disputed clainlsdacexpenses concerning disputes related to the
improper performance of agreements, cases of cimiaiture and cases pertaining to claims made by
former employees.
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9. Impairment losses and provisions for off-balance et liabilities

2008 2007

Impairment losses on loans and advances and @&beivables 508 423 194 403
Reversed impairment losses on loans and advandestiaer receivables -347 374 -217 486
NeF mpawment losses on loans and advances and ettreceivables, of 161 049 .23 083
which:

- losses on loans and other receivables atafsknpairment 172 641 -29 943

- IBNR -11 592 6 860
Impairment losses on bad debts 48 221 79 118
Re_versed impairment of amounts recovered from lpaexgiously 129 017 161 012
written off
Net impairment losses on bad debts -80 796 -81 894
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financeseds 0 0
Reversed impairment losses on available-for-saknfttial assets 0 -6
Net impairment losses on available-for-sale finanal assets 0 -6
Recognised provisions for off-balance sheet litibgi 7 506 14 651
Reversed provision for off-balance sheet liab#itie -22 158 -12 865
Net provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities reognized, of which: -14 652 1786

- on the portfolio at risk of impairment -436 1786

- IBNR -14 216 0
Total impairment losses 564 150 288 172
Total reversed impairment losses -498 549 -391 369
Net impairment losses and provisions for off-balane sheet liabilities 65 601 -103 197

The level of 2008 charges was impacted by the hititae previously impairment losses on the credit
receivables and provisions against the risk relaadte derivative transactions (mostly FX Options)

a provision of PLN 71.6 million was establishedwhs partly compensated by release the amount of
the PLN 43.0 million of the provisions in relatibm the sales of debt in the irregular situatiorih
2008 (agreement with Bison Niestandaryzowany Seymagyjny Fundusz Inwestycyjny Zamikty

and Bison Il Sp. z 0.0.).
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The amounts of established and dissolved impairrobatges for loans and other receivables are

presented in the table below per classes of reloleiva

2008 2007
IOT\E)Vzilirg;fnt losses on loans and advances and othegaeivables, 508 423 194 403
- banks 2514 68
- entities from the financial sector other thizanks 237 2737
- entities from the non-financial sector, dfigh: 504 565 188 023
- business entities 417 402 151 351
- households 87 163 36 672
- entities from the government and self-gorreant institutions’ sector 1107 3575
Ir?ei\éeiz\z%(lje;r?g?ilrvrgiﬂt: losses on loans and advancesdaother -347 374 217 486
- banks -243 -113
- entities from the financial sector other mhiaanks -3 208 -6 241
- entities from the non-financial sector, dfigh: -331 279 -210 326
- business entities -198 493 -136 978
- households -132 786 -73 348
- entities from the government and self-goremt institutions’ sector -12 644 -806
l(:lfe\;[vir?&a:\irment losses on loans and advances and ettreceivables, 161 049 23083
- banks 2271 -45
- entities from the financial sector other thiaanks -2971 -3 504
- entities from the non-financial sector, dfigh: 173 286 -22 303
- business entities 218 909 14 373
- households -45 623 -36 676
- entities from the government and self-goremt institutions’ sector -11 537 2769
10. Share in net profit (loss) of associated entitiesecognised under the equity method
2008 2007
ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. 48 232 3598
Total 48 232 43 598
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11. Income tax

Recognised in the profit and loss account

2008 2007
Current portion 137 746 123 550
Current year 129 436 117 218
Adjustment of last-year tax settlement 8 310 6 332
Deferred tax -20 708 25 347
Recognised and reversed temporary differenc -20 708 25 347
Increases/decreases of the receivables due tol&¥oretated to provisions 607 1270
for receivables
Total income tax recognised in the profit and losaccount 117 645 150 167
Effective tax rate calculation
2008 2007
Profit before tax 563 063 786 989
19% income tax 106 982 149 528
Increases — non-deductible expenses 26 035 12 008
- setting up a provision against disputable atdims 1353 657
- PFRON 971 915
- provisions / impairment for the receivablesipart not covered
with the deferred tax 811 96
- representation expenses 1783 1477
- expenses due to foreign payments 202 264
- expenses due to loan and non-loan receivaligen off 1868 6 384
- tax loss on the sale of the portfolio of reebies 7 875 0
- debt amortization related to derivatives 2216 0
- thin capitalisation 7964 0
- other 1492 2215
Decreases — tax exempt income 15979 12 639
- income exempt due to the entity 777 592
- dividend income 423 523
- release of provisions against disputable diiins 3929 424
- depreciation on real estate 0 2073
- share in net profit (loss) of associated &it 9 164 8 284
- settlement of tax loss 898 0
- other 788 743
19% income tax /+/ increases /-/ decreases 117 038 148 897
Increases/decreases of the receivable due to 8bnelhted to provisions
for receivables 607 1270
Income tax from profit and loss account 117 645 150 167
Effective tax rate 20,89% 19,08%
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12. Earnings per ordinary share (PLN)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per one shateeoparent company as for the year 2008 was based
on net profit amounting to PLN 445,413,000 (in ylear 2007, it was PLN 630,724,000) and weighted
average number of ordinary shares in the samedexgualling 13,010,000 (year 2007: 13,010,000).

2008 2007
Net profit (loss) assigned to shareholders of tdihg company 445 413 630 724
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 130000 13010000
Earnings per ordinary share (PLN) 34,24 48,48

Diluted earnings per share

During the year 2008 and throughout 2007, the nurobshares making up the share capital of the
Group remained unchanged. In the analysed pefiedGroup issued neither convertible bonds nor
share options. The entire share capital is dividea ordinary shares (there are no preference share
Consequently, diluted earnings per share are the s& basic earnings.

13. Dividends paid/proposed

On 24 April 2008, the General Shareholders' Meetiogepted the dividend payout for 2007 in the
gross amount of PLN 11.70 per share, or PLN 1520@07in total. The dividend was paid on 2 June
2008.

The Management Board of ING BaSkiski S.A. decided to make a recommendation to thee€é
Shareholders’ Meeting to allocate the entire 20@8 profit of the parent company for raising
shareholders’ equity.

14. Cash in hand and balances with the Central Bank

end of 2008 end of 2007

Cash in hand 946 212 678 072
Balances with the Central Bank 423 583 1163 653
Total 1 369 795 1841 725

The parent company of the Group maintains a mangdatovision - at the level of 3.5% of the value
of deposits received by the Bank - in its curresdoant kept with the National Bank of Poland. The
amount of the calculated provision is reduced bgauivalent of EUR 500,000, which represented:

- PLN 1,879,000 as of 28 November 2008,
- PLN 1,813,000 as of 30 November 2007.

The arithmetic mean of balances of the mandatagrie that the Group’s dominant entity is obliged
to maintain during a given period in the currerd@mt with NBP amounts to:

- PLN 1,831,271,000 for the period from 31 Deceni8 to 01 February 2009,
- PLN 1,497,935,000 for the period from 31 Decengi®7 to 30 January 2008,
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The Group may utilise the credit limit with the IMatal Bank of Poland representing 85% of the face
value of Treasury securities subject to pledge,ctwtas at 31 December 2008 represented PLN
11,076,025,000; compared with PLN 9,388,779,00& & December 2007.

15. Loans and receivables to other banks

end of 2008 end of 2007

current accounts 276 550 359 874
interbank deposits, of which: 5699 110 14 452 714
- overnight deposits 2 447 474 2 605 695
other receivables 1814 232 371768
- loans and advances 459 114 305 938
- reverse repo transactions 796 138 0
- debt securities reclassified from availabde-sale portfolio 518 910 0
- other receivables 40 070 65 830
Total (gross) 7 789 892 15 184 356
Impairment losses -2 667 -691
Total (net) 7 787 225 15 183 665

Reverse purchase transactions are shown undettdime “reverse repo transactions”. The Group
acquires funds by selling financial instrumentshwilhe future buy-back commitment at the same
price, increased with the interest determined urifro

Reverse repo transactions are meant as a liquiddgagement tool for short-term investment of
surplus funds.

The following assets were bought under reverse tigp@actions concluded with banks:

end of 2008
Repurchase Nominal Carrying .
date value amount Interest
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2009-01-12 792 210 793 247 2891
Total 792 210 793 247 2 891

In 2008, the Group reclassified a part of the delourities from the available-for-sale financisdedts

to the loans and other receivables category. Thtssurities included — but were not limited to —
NBP bonds that after reclassification are presehwdin. Specific disclosures on reclassificatiom a
presented in the note no. 17.
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Loans and receivables to other banks by maturity

end of 2008 end of 2007
up to 1 month 5975 339 11932 736
over 1 month and up to 3 months 535 270 737 561
over 3 months and up to 1 year 150 000 2512 354
over 1 year and up to 5 years 1129283 1705
Total 7 789 892 15 184 356
16. Financial assets measured at fair value through pffa and loss
end of 2008 end of 2007
Financial assets held for trading 10 696 683 6 062 786
Financial assets designated as at fair value ugitialirecognition 4431901 1844778
Total 15 128 584 7 907 564
Financial assets held for trading
end of 2008 end of 2007
Debt instruments, of which: 6 115 950 4373 230
- Bonds and bills issued by: 6 115 950 4373 230
- State Treasury 6 114 950 4 373 230
- NBP 1 000 0
Total debt instruments, of which: 6 115 950 4373230
- listed instruments 4990 831 4 292 647
- unlisted instruments 1125119 80 583
Equity instruments, of which: 968 38 530
- listed instruments 968 38 530
- unlisted instruments 0 0
Derivative financial instruments 4579 765 1651 026
Total 10 696 683 6 062 786
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Financial assets designated as at fair value upaitial recognition

end of 2008 end of 2007

Deposits 2246 725 0
Debt instruments, of which: 1822 654 1513211
- Bonds and bills issued by: 1822 654 1513211
- State Treasury 1630504 1381685
- Non financial sector 192 150 131 526
Total debt instruments, of which: 1822 654 1513211
- listed instruments 1695 294 1 381 685
- unlisted instruments 127 360 131 526
Transactions with the buy-back commitment 362 522 31 567
Total 4 431 901 1844778

The Group designated the following components péricial assets and liabilities for fair value
measurement through profit and loss: debt secsiritighe form of bonds issued by a non-financial
entity, all buy-sell-back and sell-buy-back trarigats, as well as selected interbanking deposits.

By eliminating accounting mismatch, designationtbé above mentioned bonds for fair value
measurement through profit and loss allows the b#mlobtain more useful information. The
"mismatch" would involve inconsistencies in the agwition of the effects of measurement of an
investment item in the form of above bonds and tRBsactions, which is measured as fair value
through the financial result, and securing therggerate risk from the transaction.

A group of sell-buy-back and buy-sell-back trangexst was designated for fair value measurement
through profit and loss due to their classificattorthe portfolio managed by the Financial Markets
Operations and Strategic Clients Department. Adogrtb the principles of risk management and the
investment strategy in force at the Bank, finaneasets and liabilities within this portfolio are
measured and managed on the basis of fair value.

For the transactions with the buy-back commitmatitbenefits and risks related to assets and the
option of their sale remain with the Group.

By designating interbanking deposits for measurdratfair value through profit and loss, the Group
intends to eliminate, or at least reduce considgréibe accounting mismatch resulting from diffaren
measurement of interbanking deposits and finamegfuments with which the relation is identified,
notably derivative transactions such as FX SWAP Hervard, IRS and OIS.

The amount of valuation as at the balance sheetadateposits / interbank deposits to be measured a
fair value through the income statement did noluishe the amount of changes in fair value that may
be attributed to changes in credit risk. In thenapi of the Group, the whole amount of changesin f
value resulted from the volatile market conditigngng rise to market risk.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or ks by maturity

end of 2008 end of 2007
up to 1 month 2944 296 872 840
over 1 month and up to 3 months 691 349 192 738
over 3 months and up to 1 year 3944 112 743 798
over 1 year and up to 5 years 5 563 257 4382511
over 5 years 1985570 1715677
Total 15 128 584 7 907 564
Movements in financial assets at fair value througinofit or loss
2008 2007
Opening balance 7 907 564 7 067 422
Increases 367 588 500 419 485 442
- purchase of debt securities 360 675 061 417 766 495
- purchase shares in other parties 1161831 823 811
- increase in the value of securities 576 145 205 353
- measurement of off-balance sheet derivatisguments 2928 738 689 783
- tdherzijjgﬁtii)cr)gﬁ?f;;léelrgssnk deposits to valoati 2 246 725 0
Decreases 360 367 480 418 645 300
- sales of debt securities 331 494 315 362 666 224
- repurchase of debt securities 27 207 064 50 683 369
- sales of shares in other parties 1200031 801 632
- drop in the value of securities 466 070 4 494 075
Closing balance 15 128 584 7 907 564

Interest revenue from debt instruments is recogniseler interest result.
Income from equity instruments is recognised umiddend income.

Gains and losses on transactions related to deeviihancial instruments and due to movements in
fair value of other instruments held for trading aecognised under 'Net income on instruments

measured at fair value through profit and lossrandluation'.

Detailed information regarding nominal value of cfie types of the off-balance sheet financial
instruments whose measurement is presented hengier Uderivative financial instruments”, and

information on the outstanding maturities — is préed in the note no. 42.
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17. Investments

end of 2008 end of 2007
Available-for-sale financial assets, including: 10739 090 8 547 497
- fair value hedge - hedged items 3235793 435 531
Held-to-maturity financial assets 7 311 832 840 776
Total 18 050 922 9 388 273
Available-for-sale financial assets
end of 2008 end of 2007
Debt securities, of which: 10 730 536 8 524 148
- Fixed rate debt instruments, of which: 10 0% 405 7 365 286
- Treasury bonds 9811 957 7 224 265
- Treasury bills 245 448 141 021
- Floating rate debt instruments, of which: 673 131 1158 862
- Treasury bonds 673 131 389 829
- NBP bonds 0 514 650
- Other 0 254 383
Total debt instruments 10 730 536 8 524 148
- listed instruments 10 485 088 7 614 094
- unlisted instruments 245 448 910 054
Equity instruments 8 554 23 349
- Equity instruments at cost 9195 15 441
- Market value evaluation 1902 21 142
- Impairment -2 543 -13 234
Equity instruments — carrying value 8 554 23 349
- listed instruments 1 607 78
- unlisted instruments 6 947 23271
Total 10 739 090 8 547 497

The item “Equity instruments” shows the shares padicipations of about a dozen entities that are
not quoted on the stock exchange. The Bank doemaature them at fair value. The shares of two
companies held by the Group are exception to tleeasi they are not quoted on the stock exchange,
whereas the measurement is made based on theopttise shares of the series quoted on the stock
exchange.

Due to the operations of its units, the Group haleldain shares and participations such as theshar
of the Warsaw Stock Exchange, CeTO SA, the Poliarthg Chamber, SWIFT and the Polish
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Credit Information Bureau, among others. Other ehare classified by the Group for disposal (by
sale or liquidation).

Fair value hedge - hedged items

end of 2008 end of 2007

Fixed rate debt instruments, of which: 3235793 435 531
- Bonds issued by: 3235793 435 531
- State treasury 3235793 435 531

Total 3235793 435 531

Specific information on the hedge accounting apbiiethe Group is presented later in the report in
the note no. 44 "Hedge accounting”.

Held-to-maturity financial assets

end of 2008 end of 2007

Fixed rate debt instruments, of which: 7 311 832 840 776
- Bonds issued by: 7 311 832 840 776
- State treasury 7 311832 840 776

Total 7 311 832 840 776

Investments by maturity

end of 2008 end of 2007

up to 1 month 0 7976
over 1 month and up to 3 months 19 810 0
over 3 months and up to 1 year 892 464 1877 186
over 1 year and up to 5 years 13 725 453 4928 319
over 5 years 3413195 2574792
Total 18 050 922 9 388 273
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Movements in investments

2008 2007
Opening balance 9388 273 12 614 914
Increases 21137721 4 099 684
- purchase of debt securities 19 778 964 3586 939
- increase in the value of securities 1 358 295 512 729
- purchase of shares 462 10
- reversed provision for shares 0 6
Decreases 12 475072 7 326 325
- sales of debt securities 8 657 366 5975 318
- repurchase of debt securities 491 869 465 489
- drop in the value of securities 820 516 873 536
- sales of shares 3883 11 982
- reclassification to loans and receivablestfmio 2501 438 0
Closing balance 18 050 922 9 388 273

In 2008, the Group sold shares worth PLN 3,882#106e purchase price. That amount comprised the

value of shareholding in the following entities:

- Master Card Inc.

- Mostostal Zabrze S.A.

- Centrozap S.A. (sale of a part of the shares)held

The Group generated profit on the sale of the akbaees totalling PLN 27,974,000.

In 2007, the Group sold shares of 2 companies wivadee as at purchase price totalled PLN

11,982,000; the revenue earned on the transadtialted PLN 15,036,000.

Reclassification of the debt securities

In 2008, the Group reclassified a part of the deourities from the available-for-sale financiadedts

to the loans and other receivables category.

The reason for reclassification was the lack octimaness of the market, which in the opinion @& th
Group makes the above securities classify as nmajcthie definition of loans and receivables
according to IAS, namely they “are financial asgattser than derivatives, with the determined or
impossible to determine payments, and which areqguoted on active market”, and the Bank’s
intention pertaining thereto, i.e. Bank’s intentiamd possibility to hold them in a foreseeable reitu
did not change.

The reclassification resulted in the change of phi@ciples of the debt securities measurement,
that is from the securities measured at their Yalue to the ones measured at amortised cost. Fair
value of debt securities as of reclassificatiore d@anstituted their new amortised cost.
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Debt securities reclassified from available-foresahtegory to loans and receivables

Fair value as of Carrying amount Fair value s .
Name of security recIaDSSti?ig;tion the date of as of as of Iteg;?;;‘::g al
reclassification 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2008
T-eurobonds 01.10.2008 1242 866 1654 003 1 620 04g02ns and recelvables to
NBP bonds 10.12.2008 518 870 518 910 518 910502ns and receivables to
Corporate bonds 19.12.2008 294 163 294 184 294 184'632{;5[“1?2 receivables to
Municipal bonds 19.12.2008 34 402 34 404 34 404 I(;Sztrésma(‘er:g receivables to
Total 2 090 301 2 501 501 2 467 547

T-bonds denominated in EUR (euro-bonds) classdiedf their purchase date to the available-for-sale
financial assets were the base instruments sedoréite fair value hedge accounting against the
interest rate risk. As of reclassification datee tiriginal strategy of hedging the securities fritra
available-for-sale portfolio was closed. Due to thet that the intention of the Group was to sustai
the hedging connection, as of the reclassificatate a new hedging strategy was started, i.e. the
strategy which hedged the fair value against therést rate risk related to the securities classifo
loans and other receivables category.

The table below shows the fair value of profit osd related to reclassified securities that was
recognised in equity and through the profit ands lascount of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2008.

Fair value recognised in equity and profit or Ides the year ended 31 December 2008

Fair value Fair value of which the

Name of securit recognised in recognised in amounts resulting
Y eguit rofi?or loss from the hedge

quity P accounting
T-eurobonds 2 196 13 652 13 652
NBP bonds -3 875 0 0
Corporate bonds 2 659 0 0
Municipal bonds -443 0 0
Total 537 13 652 13 652

Should the mentioned above securities not be gk to loans and other receivables category, and
should they remain in the AFS financial assets,atmeunt of the measurement at fair value as at 31
December 2008 would have been PLN -33,954,000, thedentire amount would have been
recognised in the revaluation capital. The aboveevavas assessed without taking into account the
impact of further application of the fair value lgedaccounting on the Profit and Loss Account, and
on capitals, because the Group is of the opiniam skich a calculation would be erroneous, and it
would be based on hypothetical, hard to verify agstions.
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Income and expense recognised in profit or lossHeryear ended 31 December 2008

Name of securit accrued interests amortised amortised

y (coupon) discount premium
T-eurobonds 39 807 1326 -555
NBP bonds 24182 0 0
Corporate bonds 2 547 166 0
Municipal bonds 147 0 0
Total 66 683 1492 -555

Effective interest rate and estimated amounts sh dbws the Group expects to recover as of a date
of reclassification of the financial assets

Name of security [ Ova:r:gi EEEgh ovzagylgghs 0;5‘[; Egigr over 5 years infefzgts:?\r/aete
T-eurobonds$ 0 11 871 74 136 464 551 0 512%
Corporate bonds 207 2432 140 257 176 359 12804 34Bp
Municipal bonds 4 0 2149 18 052 29647  6,68%
NBP bonds” 0 5 685 0 585 139 0 58%%

*) for Euro-bonds the cash flow amounts are in EtHBusand
**) in connection with the actions aimed at therease of the banks’ liquidity, the National BankPaland took
a decision on NBP bonds redemption before theiunitsitdate. The redemption was on 22 January 2009.

18. Financial assets pledged as collateral for liabilies

The portfolio of financial assets held for tradicgmprises T-bonds securing the liabilities duehi® t
securities sold with the buy-back commitment. Thmimal value of bonds is given in the table below.
The adjustment following the transaction measuréraefair value was:

- as at 31 Dec 2008: PLN 8,802,000;

-as at 31 Dec 2007: - PLN 298,000.

The liabilities secured with the above assets aneolio:
- as at 31 Dec 2008: PLN 644,102,000;

- as at 31 Dec 2007: PLN 103,014,000.
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Nominal value of assets that are collateral for lidities

end of 2008 end of 2007

The portfolio of financial assets held for trading:

- treasury bonds collateralising the liak#l#idue to securities sold

with a promise of repurchase 661 534 102939
- treasury bonds constituting a collateraltfe lombard loan 1 750 000 0
The portfolio of financial assets available-foresal
- treasury bills constituting a collateralBank Guarantee Fund 133 200 117 900

Securities are pledged on the terms provided for by
- the Banking Guarantee Fund Act (Journal of Lawsdf83005, item 1538),

- the Lombard Loan and Securing Pledge Agreement thithNational Bank of Poland dated 30
December 2003,

- the Bylaw for Bank Refinancing with the Lombard bholay the National Bank of Poland, being
enclosure to Resolution No. 42/2003 by the ManagérBeard of the National Bank of Poland
dated 3 October 2003,

— the basis of the transaction.

19. Derivative hedge instruments

Hedge instruments in hedge accounting

Positive valuation
end of 2008 end of 2007

Balance sheet valuation of securities fair valudgeenstruments 0 4572
- Interest Rate Swap 0 4572

Balance sheet valuation of instruments hedging#st flows 197 003 0
- Interest Rate Swap 197 003 0

Total 197 003 4572

Negative valuation
end of 2008 end of 2007

Balance sheet valuation of securities fair valuggeeinstruments 420 047 0
- Interest Rate Swap 420 047 0
Total 420 047 0

Positive amounts from this table are presented rutidlerivative hedge instruments” in the balance
sheet assets; whereas amounts with “-“ refer tatiegvaluation and are presented under “Derivative
hedge instruments” in the balance sheet liabilities
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20. Loans and receivables to customers

Loans and other receivables to entities from tharftial sector other than banks

end of 2008 end of 2007
Loans and advances 2925110 2232613
- in the current account 382 674 378971
- term ones 2542 436 1853 642
Reverse repo transactions 158 159 0
Other receivables 98 173 110 040
Total (gross) 3181442 2 342 653
Impairment losses -2 045 -5 840
Total (net) 3179 397 2 336 813
Loans and other receivables to entities from the-fiwancial sector
end of 2008 end of 2007
Loans and advances granted to business entities 284218 8 905 640
- in the current account 3 931 464 3104 227
- term ones 8 354 954 5801413
Loans and advances granted to households 7 439 430 4937 935
- in the current account 1091 580 968 528
- term ones 6 347 850 3 969 407
Debt securities, of which: 559 378 0
- reclassified from available-for-salerffolio 294 184 0
Other receivables 69 436 57 128
Total (gross) 20 354 662 13 900 703
Impairment losses -482 274 -526 101
Total (net) 19 872 388 13 374 602
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Loans and other receivables to entities from theegoment and self-government institutions’ sector

end of 2008 end of 2007
Loans and advances 973 899 697 219
- in the current account 11 854 9872
- term ones 962 045 687 347
Debt securities, of which: 1735 062 0
- reclassified from available-for-salergfolio, of which: 1688 407 0
- hedged items in fair value hedging 1654 003 0
Other receivables 32 0
Total (gross) 2 708 993 697 219
Impairment losses -17 939 -29 496
Total (net) 2 691 054 667 723
Loans and other receivables to customers - TOTAL
end of 2008 end of 2007
Loans and advances 23 624 857 16 773 407
Reverse repo transactions 158 159 0
Debt securities 2 294 440 0
Other receivables 167 641 167 168
Loans and other receivables to customers — gross 26245 097 16 940 575
Impairment losses -502 258 -561 437
Loans and other receivables to customers — net 25742 839 16 379 138

Reverse purchase transactions are shown undertdime “reverse repo transactions”. The Group
acquires funds by selling financial instrumentshwibe future buy-back commitment at the same
price, increased with the interest determined ugfro

Reverse repo transactions are meant as a liquidétgagement tool for short-term investment of
surplus funds.

The following assets were bought under reverse tigpeactions concluded with customers:

end of 2008
Repurchase Nominal Carrying .
interest
date value amount
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2009-01-06 160 316 158 011 148
Total 160 316 158 011 148

In 2008, the Group reclassified a part of the delaurities from the AFS financial assets to thedoa
and other receivables category. The said secuiit@gded, but were not limited to, T-bonds (euro-
bonds), commercial papers, and municipal bonds #ifter reclassification are presented herein.
T-bonds are hedged against IR risk in the fair @#ahedge accounting. Specific disclosures
on reclassification are presented in the note fo. 1
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Fair value hedge - hedged items

end of 2008 end of 2007

Fixed rate debt instruments, of which: 1 654 003 0
- Bonds issued by: 1654 003 0

- State treasury 1654 003 0

Total 1 654 003 0

Specific information on the hedge accounting apbiiethe Group is presented later in the report in
the note no. 44 "Hedge accounting”.

Loans and receivables to customers by maturity

end of 2008 end of 2007

up to 1 month 8 864 988 5467 893
over 1 month and up to 3 months 1725986 1 304 595
over 3 months and up to 1 year 2 789 392 2 427 656
over 1 year and up to 5 years 5730 145 4 066 683
over 5 years 6 275 259 2931536
overdue 859 327 742 212
Total 26 245 097 16 940 575

Interest accrued as at 31 December 2008 includeartfount of PLN 6,055,000 (PLN 7,436,000 as at
30 December 2007) related to accrued unpaid irtexesisk of impairment, recognised before
01 January 2005, fully written off.

Average effective interest rate for loans and adeas in %
end of 2008 end of 2007

Average effective interest rate for loans and adearin PLN 7,81% 6,47%

Average effective interest rate for loans and adegarin foreign currencies 5,27% 5,26%

In line with the credit policy, the Group acceptdlateral to secure repayment of the loans exteired
the form of blocked borrower’'s account funds and borrower’s assets. More information about
collaterals is presented in the chapter "Risk Manant in Capital Group of ING Barfkaski S.A.",
item "Repayment Security and Other Forms of Credik Mitigation".
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Receivables due to financial leases
The Group discloses no such receivables.

21. Quality of portfolio of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables portfolio

end of 2008
impairment
gross value | net value
osses
Loans and receivables to other banks 7 789 892 -2 67 7 787 225
Loans and receivables to customers, of which: 26 246 097 -502 258 25 742 839
- to entities from the financial sector othiean banks 3181 442 -2045 3179397
- to entities from the non-financial sector 20 354 662 -482 274 19 872 388
- to entities f’rom the government and selfegpment 2 708 993 17939 2691 054
institutions’ sector
Total 34 034 989 -504 925 33 530 064
end of 2007
impairment
gross value net value
losses
Loans and receivables to other banks 15 184 356 -69 15 183 665
Loans and receivables to customers, of which: 052 75) -561 437 16 379 138
- to entities from the financial sector otllean banks 2 342 653 -5840 2336813
- to entities from the non-financial sector 13 900 703 -526 101 13 374 602
- .to e_nthes from the government and selfegpment 697 219 29 496 667 723
institutions’ sector
Total 32 124 931 -562 128 31 562 803
Loans and receivables portfolio classified accordito impaired / unimpaired
end of 2008 end of 2007
Loans and receivables (gross) 34 034 989 32 124 931
- impaired 487 304 506 707
- unimpaired 33 547 685 31618 224
Impairment losses -504 925 -562 128
- related to impaired portfolio -386 226 -464 637
- related to unimpaired portfolio -118 699 -97 491
Loans and receivables (net) 33 530 064 31 562 803
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Loans and receivables portfolio classified accordito impairment estimation methods

end of 2008 end of 2007
Loans and receivables (gross) 34 034 989 32124931
- measured individually 276 476 283 342
- measured as the portfolio 33758 513 31 841 589
Impairment losses -504 925 -562 128
- impairment loss pertaining to receivables read individually -225 214 -276 387
- impairment loss pertaining to receivables meas as the portfolio -279 711 -285 741
Loans and receivables (net) 33 530 064 31 562 803
Movements in impairment losses
2008 2007
Opening balance 562 128 703 327
Movements in impairment losses: -57 203 -141 199
- Recognised during the period 556 644 288 172
- Reversed during the period -477 703 -390 327
- Utilised writte-offs -233 339 -113 279
- Amounts recovered from loans previouslytemitoff 84 869 85 840
- FX differences 382 -1 460
- Unwinding interest 12 747 -3 149
- Other -803 -6 996
Closing balance 504 925 562 128

The utilised write-offs comprise redemptions ofai@ables and write-offs of receivables from the
balance sheet.

The level of 2008 charges was impacted by the highan previously provisions for the credit
receivables and provisions against the risk reladdte derivative transactions (mostly FX Options)
a provision of PLN 71.6 million was established.

It was partly compensated by release the amount 43,8 million of the provisions in relation to the
sales of debt in the irregular situation in 1H 20@8reement with Bison Niestandaryzowany
Sekurytyzacyjny Fundusz Inwestycyjny Zamitgiand Bison Il Sp. z 0.0.).
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22. Investments in controlled entities recognised undethe equity method

The Group has shares in the associated entity Ibl&Rechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A.:

General financial information on an associated eti

Name of the entity

ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emtgipe S.A.

Domestic

Poland

Type of activities

establishment and managemetiie@bpen pension fund

end of 2008 end of 2007

Share in the equity 20% 20%
Assets 598 195 523 185
Liabilities 59 000 37 155
Net assets 539 195 486 030
Revenues 471978 404 334
Net profit (loss) 237 733 208 139
Carrying value of the share in associated entity

end of 2008 end of 2007
Opening balance 97 326 90 309
Profit share 48 232 43 597
Dividend paid -38 297 -36 580
Closing balance 107 261 97 326

In the standalone financial statements, the Basklakes shares in the following subsidiaries and

associated entities:

Bank’s Carrying value of shares
Type of percentage (at cost)
Name of entity capital share in the
relation business's  end of 2008  end of 2007
equity
ING Securities S.A. subsidiary 100,00% 30 228 30 28
ING Bank Hipoteczny S.A. subsidiary 100,00% 113 450 113 450
ING BSK Development Sp. z o.0. subsidiary 100,00% 50 50
Solver Sp. z o.0. subsidiary 82,30% 7870 7 870
Centrum BanleIqsk|ego Sp. z o.0. subsidiary 100,00% 18 971 18 971
under liquidation
ING Powszechne Towarzystwo associated 20.00% 40 000 40 000
Emerytalne S.A. company
Total 210 569 210 569
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ING Bank Slaski S.A. controls 100% of the equity of Centrum Ban Slaskiego
Sp. z 0.0. under liquidation, holding 40% diredenest in the company’s equity, and 60% indirect
interest via ING BSK Development Sp. z 0.0. (thinbee sheet value of the shares held by ING BSK
Development Sp. z 0.0. in the equity of CentrumMBe$iaskiego Sp. z 0.0. under liquidation is PLN
2,645,000).

On 23 December 2008, the Extraordinary General Mgeif Centrum Bankwlaskiego Sp. z o.0.
under liquidation passed a resolution on furtheerafpon of the Company, based on which the
General Meeting decided to rescind the resolutic2BdNovember 2007 on the company’s dissolution
as of 01 January 2009.

Also on 23 December 2008, the Extraordinary Gendesting of ING BSK Development Sp. z o0.0.
passed a resolution on the company’s dissolutiahssarting its winding-up process as of 01 January
20009.

The above activities result from the optimisatidntive Capital Group of ING BanKlaski S.A.
and from the change of the Bank’s approach tog¢héproperty management.

On 23 January 2009, ING Baskaski S.A. acquired in closed subscription 500 shafe3 series of
ING Bank Hipoteczny S.A. of the nominal value ofNPB0,000 each for the total amount of PLN 25
million. This operation will result in the increaséthe ING BankSlaski interest in the equity of ING
Bank Hipoteczny from PLN 113.5 million to PLN 1388llion.

23. Investment real estates

2008 2007
Value at the beginning of period 144 713 145 970
Additions 1111 4 063
Evaluation at the fair value 5634 -5 320
Value at the end of period 151 458 144 713

The Group is the owner of one investment propasbated in Katowice. The Group earns income

therefrom in the form of rent instalments. Undex #tcounting principles adopted by the Group, the
property is measured at fair value. The fair valtes determined by an independent appraiser. The
appraisal was made based on the discounted cash fleer the term of 10 years. Generally adopted
market parameters were applied for the appraisaéwbnsidering the building occupancy level.

The investment property is measured in EUR (as latD8c 2008, the estate value was EUR
36,300,000 versus EUR 40,400,000 as at 31 DecePaidar.

end of 2008 end of 2007

Income rental from of the investment property 12 966 14 391

Maintance expenses relating to the investment ptppe -4 896 -3899

There are no legal constraints on the investmenpesty, or contractual obligations related to
purchase thereof.
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24. Property, plant and equipment

end of 2008 end of 2007
Real estate and leasehold improvements 390 086 404 223
Computer hardware 40 978 43 273
Vehicles 316 335
Other fixtures and fittings 89 649 70921
Constructions in progress 23134 14 186
Total 544 163 532 938
2008
g (%)
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Gross value at the beginning of period 700 708 225 864 1992 351923 141861294 673
Additions, due to: 25 847 21 147 193 41 857 66 513 155 557
- purchases 2498 18 371 193 10 086 66 513 97 661
- investment take-overs 23 280 2756 31771 0 57 807
- other 69 20 0 0 0 89
Disposals, due to: -3716 -49 567 -862 -18 163 -58 106 -130414
- sale and liquidation -2 795 -49 410 -833 8120 -67 =71 225
- investment take-overs 0 0 0 0 -57 936 -57 936
- other, of which: -921 -157 -29 -43 -103 -1 253
- grants 0 -157 0 0 0 -157
- reclassified to real estate held folesa -854 0 0 0 0 -854
Evaluation at the fair value -5 025 0 0 0 0 -5 025
Transfers 2243 -118 0 -2 646 541 20
Gross value at the end of period 720 057 197 326 1323 372971 23134 13148
Accumula_ted depreciation at the begining 296 485 182 591 1657 281 002 0 -761735
of the period
Amortisation for the period (due to) -33 486 26 243 650 -2 320 0 -8 913
- amortisation charges -34 252 -23 402 -116 2194 0 -79 964
- sale and liquidation 2393 49 488 741 17 89 0 70 516
- transfers -1 704 0 -4 1701 0 -7
- other, of which: 77 157 29 279 0 542
- grants 0 157 0 0 0 157
- reclassified to real estate held folesa 71 0 0 0 0 71
Accumulated depreciation at the end 329971 -156 348 1007 283322 0  -770648
of the period
Net value at the end of period 390 086 40 978 316 89 649 23134 544 163
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Gross value at the beginning of period 692 222 267 205 3957 341 238 3180 1 307 802
Additions, due to: 21 961 17 000 231 24 685 46 290 110 167
- purchases 1518 15 676 231 7557 46 234 71216
- investment take-overs 16 997 1284 0 17 071 0 35352
- other 3446 40 0 57 56 3599
Disposals, due to: -3 154 -58 341 -2 196 -14 019 -35478 -113 188
- sale and liquidation -1 002 -56 186 -1 854 -8 130 0 -67 172
- investment take-overs 0 0 0 -282 -35112 -35394
- other, of which: -2 152 -2 155 -342 -5 607 366 -10 622
- grants 0 -49 -5 -19 0 -73
- reclassified to real estate held folesa -2 152 -2 106 -32 -5 588 0 -9 878
Evaluation at the fair value -7 970 0 0 0 0 -7 970
Transfers -2 351 0 0 19 194 -2 138
Gross value at the end of period 700 708 225 864 1992 351 923 14 186 17M6
Accumulated depreciation at the begining ~ ) ) ~ R
of the period 266 205 206 354 3378 260 800 0 -736737
Amortisation for the period (due to) -30 280 23763 1721 -20 202 0 -24 998
- amortisation charges -32 853 -29 689 -262 705 0 -96 509
- sale and liquidation 414 55 738 1722 8 440 0 66 314
- transfers 2351 1307 21 5139 0 8818
- other, of which: -192 -3 593 240 -76 0 -3621
- grants 0 48 5 18 0 71
- reclassified to real estate held folesa 216 0 0 0 0 216
Accumulated depreciation at the end 206485  -182591 1657  -281002 0  -761735
of the period
Net value at the end of period 404 223 43 273 335 70921 14 186 532 938

The item "Real estate and leasehold improvementsipcdses, among others, land whose value
considering the fair value measurement as at 312068 was PLN 4,041,000 (as at 31 December
2007, it was PLN 4,745,000).

As at 31 Dec 2008, the value of fully depreciatmthible non-current assets was PLN 272,154,000 as
compared to 323,338,000 as at 31 December 2007.

As at 31 Dec 2008, PLN 52,864,000, which amountl(iing deferred tax) refers to the real
properties assessed at fair value, is recognistteinevaluation reserve. As at 31 December 2087 th
same item amounted to PLN 57,998,000.
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The real properties were assessed in Decemberl8086 independent appraiser. The assessment was
carried out in line with the binding principlestbie real property appraisal depending on the clterac

of the building (for administrative buildings — mtstruction method was applied, and for operational
buildings — income method). The real propertiesseased at their historical cost taking into actoun
the impairment and depreciation charges - would/tsh PLN 328,085,000. In the year 2007, one of
the Group’s leisure centres was subject to apgrdisahe year 2008, the remaining leisure centres
owned by the Group were appraised as well as thditmy of the Head Office of ING BanRlaski

S.A. in Katowice. As at 31.12.2008, the value ddttheal property stood at PLN 177,744,000. The
change in value of the said real property 2008 gddhithe revaluation capital by 8,238,000 (PLN
6,673,000 upon consideration of deferred tax)

There are no legal constraints on property, pladtequipment.

In 2008, the Group concluded agreements with tidracting parties for the future purchase of non-
current assets for the amount of PLN 5,237,000. Jdid agreements pertain to the purchase and
modernisation of non-current assets in the brandfetNG Bank Slaski, like air-conditioning
modernisation, installation of queuing systems, antérior lighting. Furthermore, the Group
concluded master agreements on the building anhlliatson works, and on the repairs of the
branches. Amounts payable under the said agreeraentsot set in advance — they will result from
the cost estimates calculated during the year aggaifor each branch.

Net value of property, plant and equipment incluydasong other things, the net value of assets
accepted under financial lease agreements.

Net value of assets accepted under financial leageesements

end of 2008 end of 2007

Real estate 3 3288
Vehicles 0 0
Other fixtures and fittings 3 a7
Total 6 3335
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25. Intangible assets

end of 2008 end of 2007
Goodwill 223 821 223 821
Software 82 580 73830
Other intangible assets 356 451
Outlays for intangible assets 9430 20 723
Total 316 187 318 825
2008
E % é % .-L-.E -
o (%} Ow ()= =
Gross value at the beginning of period 223821 244571 8620 20723 497735
Additions, due to: 0 62 446 0 40 219 102 665
- purchases 0 12 547 0 40 158 52 705
- investment take-overs 0 49 328 0 0 49 328
- other 0 571 0 61 632
Disposals, due to: 0 -23 494 297 -51 090 -74 287
- sale and liquidation 0 -23434 0 0 -23434
- investment take-overs 0 0 297 -49 625 -49 328
- other 0 -60 -1 465 -1 525
Transfers 0 718 -1 035 -422 -739
Gross value at the end of period 223821 284 241 7 882 9430 525 374
Accumulated depreciation at the begining 0 170 741 -8 169 0 178 910
of the period
Amortisation for the period (due to) -30 920 643 0 -30 277
- amortisation charges 0 -53 696 -137 -53 833
- sale and liquidation 0 23433 0 0 23433
- transfers 0 -718 718 0 0
- other 0 61 62 0 123
Accumula_ted depreciation at the end 0 201 661 7526 0 209 187
of the period
Net value at the end of period 223821 82 580 356 9 430 316 187
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2007
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Gross value at the beginning of period 223821 193 465 9415 13644 440 345
Additions, due to: 0 53 595 56 51 038 104 689
- purchases 0 9 697 66 50 640 60 403
- investment take-overs 0 43 898 -10 0 43 888
- other 0 0 0 398 398
Disposals, due to: 0 -2 530 0 -44 769 -47 299
- sale and liquidation 0 -2 530 0 0 -2 530
- investment take-overs 0 0 0 -43 888 -43 888
- other 0 0 0 -881 -881
Transfers 0 41 -851 810 0
Gross value at the end of period 223821 244571 8620 20723 497 735
ﬁffhuempuelﬁtoec? depreciation at the begining 0 114 678 8006 0 122 684
Amortisation for the period (due to) 0 -56 063 -163 0 -56 226
- amortisation charges 0 -58 167 -123 0 -58 290
- sale and liquidation 0 2 065 0 0 2 065
- transfers 0 39 -40 0 -1
- other 0 0 0 0 0
Accumula_ted depreciation at the end 0 170 741 8169 0 178 910
of the period
Net value at the end of period 223821 73 830 451 20723 318 825

As at 31 Dec 2008, the value of fully depreciatetngible assets equalled PLN 83,101,000 versus
PLN 82,208,000 as at 31 Dec 2007.

In the year 2008, the Group concluded agreemerits tlve contractors for the future purchase of
intangible assets to the amount of:

- PLN 5,682,000
- EUR 212,000
- USD 1,862,000
These agreements refer to the purchase of licard@alementation of software.

Impairment test of cash generating units with respige goodwill

The goodwill impairment test is carried out at tebsice yearly, irrespective of detecting any
objective evidence of impairment.

In the Bank, the impairment test is applied to guwodwill created as the result of the in-kind
contribution of ING Bank NV. The smallest identlfla income generating centre was determined and
goodwill of PLN 223,343,000 was assigned thereto.dther additional elements of intangible value
and unspecified usage period were identified thailcc be assigned to the identified income
generating centre. The input data for the testedlaecover the economic capital, risk-weighted asset
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and profit before tax per segments. The test iopeed based on the model that calculates and
compares the current value of free cashflow froendbintre to the estimated book value of the centre’
funds. The free cashflows of the centre are ddfem net profits less capital needed to maintan th
solvency ratio at the required level. To discolnet tashflows, discount rate is used that represeats
cost of capital calculated by ING Bank. The remagnassumptions include: forecasts of income tax
rate, nominal growth rate after the forecast peaiod predicted 3 M WIBOR rate.

The recoverable value was determined based ondimation of the useable value of the assets
component taking into account the estimated fotemfasxpected future cashflow generated during the
continued use. The cashflow forecasts are basedtiomal assumptions that reflect the most accurate
appraisal of the management regarding all the tiongithat will appear during the remaining lifedim

of the assets. The cashflow forecasts are baseashiditerm plan approved by the Bank and the
strategy covering the maximum period of the nextetyears. The data regarding the subsequent two
years are the result of extrapolation. Extrapolatigsumes that the cashflow generating centre will
maintain the gross profit to risk weighted assetorat the level from the last year of the Bank’s
forecast and its profits will increase by previgusletermined growth rate. Legitimacy of the
assumptions made is verified periodically, and dingrgence between the cashflows estimated based
on the future cashflows and the actual ones isyaedlas appropriate.

The test carried out as at 31 December 2008 shomeedurplus of present value over the net book
value of the asset generating cash flow of PLN & @llion, and thus no impairment thereof was
determined.

For the discount rate lower by 1% the surplus eEpnt value of cashflows over the net book value of
the centre generating cashflows would amount to RI484 million, for the rate higher by 1% the
surplus of the present value of cashflows overnsiebook value of the centre generating cashflows
would be PLN 736 million.

26. Property, plant and equipment held for sale

2008 2007

Value at the beginning of period 241 224
Additions, due to: 833 10 015
- reclassification from property, plant anduggment 783 9980

- other 50 35
Disposals, due to: -826 -9 998
- sale and liquidation -826 -9 998
Value at the end of period 248 241

As at 31 Dec 2008, the amount of “Property, plart aquipment held for sale” includes mainly real
properties and means of transportation taken omdeuthe recovery process. The Group intends to
sell them by way of tender procedure.
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27. Deferred tax asset and provision

Movements in temporary differences during the year

2008

Deferred tax assets

Changes

Changes

Changes

Balance charged to Changes charged to charged to Balance
as of the financial chargeq to retained minority as of
31 Dec 2007 result equity eamnings equity 31 Dec 2008
Interest accrued (expense) -17 120 -180 0 0 0 -17 300
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets -39 932 0 13757 0 (0] -26 175
Provisions for receivables due to loans -60 869 7 a2 0 0 0 -53 827
Other provisions -5 838 -3671 0 0 0 -9 509
Employee benefits -19 509 -3 383 0 0 0 -22 892
Retirement and holiday benefits -3612 -240 0 0 0 -3 852
Accumulated losses settled 847 -1 223 0 0 0 -376
Evaluation of own and investment real estate -6038 1564 0 0 0 -4 474
Correction due to effective interest rate -12 337 0 0 0 0 -12 337
Other -19 827 89 0 0 0 -19738
Total -184 235 -2 13757 0 0 -170 480
Deferred tax provision
Balance o ot Changes e chargequo Baance
as of the financial chargeq to retained minority as of
31 Dec 2007 result equity eamings equity 31 Dec 2008
Interest accrued (expense) 90 019 -20 190 0 0 0 69 829
balance shoet depreciation o 9964 1544 0 0 0 84
Settlement of prepayments/accruals due to
depreciation/ amortisation resulting from the 10678 -317 0 0 0 10 361
investment relief enjoyed
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 13 601 0 -1 205 0 0 12 399
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets 4017 0 -2131 0 0 1886
Revaluation of cash flow hedging instruments 0 0 10692 0 0 10 692
Evaluation of own and investment real estate 1148 183 0 134 0 1465
Sale of property, plant and equipment held for sale 0 0 0 0 102 102
Other 5513 1162 0 0 0 6 675
Total 134 943 -20 706 7 356 134 102 121 829
Deferred tax disclosed in the balance sheet -49 292 -20 708 21113 134 102 -48 651
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2007

Deferred tax assets

Balance Changes Changes Chi?ggg?g Balance
as of pharged to the chargeq to retained as of
31 Dec 2006 financial result equity earnings 31 Dec 2007
Interest accrued (expense) -15 678 -1442 0 0 -17 120
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets -1 146 0 -38 786 0 -39 932
Provisions for receivables due to loans -92 536 31667 0 0 -60 869
Other provisions -6 213 375 0 0 -5 838
Employee benefits -11 365 -8 144 0 0 -19 509
Retirement and holiday benefits -4 328 716 0 0 -3612
Accumulated losses settled -359 1206 0 0 847
Evaluation of own and investment real estate 0 3%0 0 0 -6 038
Correction due to effective interest rate -12 337 0 0 0 -12 337
Other -22 277 2450 0 0 -19 827
Total -166 239 20790 -38 786 0 -184 235
Deferred tax provision
Balance Changes Changes Chi?g:g?: Balance
as of pharged to the chargeq to retained as of
31 Dec 2006 financial result equity earnings 31 Dec 2007
Interest accrued (expense) 80 987 9032 0 0 90 019
gﬁétgrgsg:ecg;giflﬁerence between tax and balanc 15 016 5052 0 0 0 964
amortsaton resuling rom the mvesiment relafoged. 11128 448 0 0 1067
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 9490 0 4114 0 13 604
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets 7 000 0 -2 983 0 4017
Evaluation of own and investment real estate 0 a 14 0 0 1148
Other 4488 1025 0 0 5513
Total 128 107 5705 1131 0 134 943
Deferred tax disclosed in the balance sheet -38 132 26 495 -37 655 0 -49 292
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Recognised deferred tax assets and reserves retatadgiven reporting period

end of 2008 end of 2007
Deferred tax assets
Interest accrued (expense) -180 -1 442
Provisions for receivables due to loans 7042 31 667
Other provisions -3671 375
Employee benefits -3 383 -8 144
Retirement and holiday benefits -240 716
Accumulated losses settled -1 223 1206
Evaluation of own and investment real estate 1564 -6 038
Other 89 2 450
Total -2 20 790
Deferred tax provisions
Interest accrued (expense) -20 190 9032
Settlement of the difference between tax and balaheet depreciation -1 544 -5 052
Settlement of prepayments/accruals due to depi@ciamortisation 317 -448
resulting from the investment relief enjoyed
Evaluation of own and investment real estate 183 1148
Other 1162 1025
Total -20 706 5705
Deferred tax for the reporting period -20 708 26 495
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets, related to the following itewere not recognised:

end of 2008 end of 2007
Specific provisions whose recoverability will nat proved 721 1232
Tax losses 3 856 487
Total 4 577 1719
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Year of expiration of temporary differences:

difference difference
amount amount
end of 2008 end of 2007
year 2008 0 747
year 2009 360 662
year 2010 407 0
year 2011 3678 198
year 2012 132 112
Total 4 577 1719
Deferred tax recognised directly in equity
end of 2008 end of 2007
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets -24 289 -35914
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 12 399 13 604
Revaluation of cash flow hedging instruments 10 692 0
Total -1198 -22 310

Temporary differences concerning the measuremensbéres in an affiliated company

The parent entity did not establish any deferreddia the measurement of the share in associated
company, ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne Bh&. total amount of temporary differences
relating to investments in the associated compfmywhich provisions due to deferred tax were not
established, as at 31 December 2008 was PLN 9a®4rDcomparison with PLN 8,284,000 as at
31 December 2007.
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28. Other assets

end of 2008 end of 2007

Prepayments 52 557 43 936
- prepaid bank operating expenses 4664 4642
- prepayments due to insurance with NN 15 1535
- materials and goods in the warehouse 2444 4275
- expenses to be settled 910 783
- accrued income 26 225 30 586
- commission-related settlements 11 297 0
- other 7 002 2115
Other assets 152 668 95 313
- interbank settlements 14 439 3623
- interbranch settlements 31947 2 147
- public and legal settlements 23 254 15 868
- loans from the Company’s Social Benefitsd-un 17 451 15961
- settlements with off-takers 5528 20 744
- settlements due to purchase of materials 1068 17 618
- receivables from the non-settled FX transeanst 41 559 0
- other 17 422 19 352
Total other assets (gross) 205 225 139 249
Impairment losses -39 228 -1917
Total other assets (net) 165 997 137 332

The amount of receivables resulting from the EU r@ogee Fund was presented under the item
"Public and legal settlements”. The amount equatied

-PLN 8,122,000 as at 31 Dec 2008,
- PLN 11,506,000 as at 31 Dec 2007.

Receivables from Lehman Brothers Inc. and its edlantities are presented under 'theceivables
from the non-settled FX transactions” item. A wadkewn of PLN 33,346,000 was established for
these receivables under the "impairment loss” item.

29. Employee benefits

The Group participates in the Long-term Equity Owgh@ (LEO) incentive programme carried out by
ING Group.

To execute the above incentive programme the Gbaaps the costs of option funding and system
administration that in 2008 were PLN 0.9 millioncasnpared to 4.8 million in 2007.

The Group measures the awarded options at theivéhie. For 2008, the said measurement was
-PLN 3.3 million (as compared to -PLN 3.6 millioorf2007) and it was charged to P/L of the Group.
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30. Liabilities due to the Central Bank

end of 2008 end of 2007

Lombard loan 1400 249 0
Transactions with the buy-back commitment 4 531 867 0
Total 5932116 0

Repurchase transactions (repo) are shown underitéme “Transactions with the buy-back
commitment”. The Group acquires funds by sellingaficial instruments with the future buy-back
commitment at the same price, increased with ttexest determined upfront.

Repurchase transactions are generally consideredtasl of short-term funding of interest assets,
depending on the interest rates.

The following assets were sold under repo transasttoncluded with Central Bank:

end of 2008

Repurchase Nominal Carrying interest

date value amount

Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2009-02-12 1772000 1677 623 14 271
Assets from held-to-maturity portfolio 2009-02-12 1400 000 1323 000 11 255
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2009-03-12 814 000 727 445 2 546
Assets from held-to-maturity portfolio 2009-03-12 85 000 773 021 2 706
Total 4 851 000 4 501 089 30 778

31. Liabilities due to other banks

end of 2008 end of 2007

Current accounts 177 596 82 357
Interbank deposits 3108 831 1718 061
Transactions with the buy-back commitment 2 760 763 0
Other liabilities 13678 9777
Total 6 060 868 1810 195

Repurchase transactions (repo) are shown underitdm “Transactions with the buy-back
commitment”. The Group acquires funds by sellingaficial instruments with the future buy-back
commitment at the same price, increased with ttezast determined upfront.

Repurchase transactions are generally consideredtasl of short-term funding of interest assets,
depending on the interest rates.
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The following assets were sold under repo transasttoncluded with other banks:

end of 2008
Repurchase Nominal Carrying :
interest
date value amount
FE))(t)arl:tift(j,it:,;curltles from loans and other receivables 2009-02-12 1 489 547 1267 681 5694
Debt securities from financial assets measurediat f
value through profit and loss portfolio 2009-02-12 1739891 1480737 6 651
Total 3229 438 2 748 418 12 345

Liabilities due to other banks by maturity

end of 2008 end of 2007

up to 1 month 2967 592 1642 145
over 1 month and up to 3 months 2852 728 123 050
over 3 months and up to 1 year 208 727 45 000
over 1 year and up to 5 years 31821 0
Total 6 060 868 1810 195

32. Financial liabilities measured at fair value throudh profit and loss

end of 2008 end of 2007

Financial liabilities held for trading 4 321 638 1057 294
Derivative financial instruments 4321 638 1057 294
Financial liabilities designated as at fair valy®n initial recognition 652 904 102 716
Transactions with the buy-back commitment 652904 102 716
Book short position in trading securities 172 156 54 971
Total 5146 698 1214981

The Group designated the following components péricial assets and liabilities for fair value
measurement through profit and loss: debt secsiritighe form of bonds issued by a non-financial
entity, all buy-sell-back and sell-buy-back trarigats, as well as selected interbanking deposits.

By eliminating accounting mismatch, designationtbé above mentioned bonds for fair value
measurement through profit and loss allows the bamkobtain more useful information.
The "mismatch” would involve inconsistencies in teeognition of the effects of measurement of an
investment item in the form of above bonds and tR®sactions, which is measured as fair value
through the financial result, and securing therggerate risk from the transaction.

The measurement of financial assets and liabildesignated for fair value measurement on the basis
of the profit and loss statement, as of the balaheet date, did not include the value of lialeititto

be attributed to the changes of credit risk thes®wof which is the Bank as borrower. In the opinio
of the Bank, the whole amount of the change ofe/afifinancial liabilities results from the changes
of market conditions giving rise to market risk.
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Detailed information regarding nominal value of dfie types of the off-balance sheet financial
instruments whose measurement is presented hengler Uiderivative financial instruments”, and

information on the terms still to be executed prissented in the note no. 42.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value throug profit and loss by maturity

end of 2008 end of 2007
up to 1 month 2341011 248 935
over 1 month and up to 3 months 309 626 155 453
over 3 months and up to 1 year 1086 157 431 412
over 1 year and up to 5 years 952 665 340 199
over 5 years 457 239 38 982
Total 5 146 698 1214981
33. Liabilities due to customers
Liabilities due to entities from the financial secother than banks
end of 2008 end of 2007
Deposits 4 267 492 2 226 653
- current accounts 1268 135 1229 766
- term deposit 2 999 357 996 887
Transactions with the buy-back commitment 163 543 727 036
Other liabilities 83 864 115 520
Total 4514 899 3069 209
Liabilities due to entities from the non-financésctor
end of 2008 end of 2007
Business entities’ deposits 11173552 12 760 753
- current accounts 7 292 099 7 970 381
- term deposit 3881 453 4790 372
Households' deposits 27 945 689 25 392 616
- current accounts 3796 117 2 603 797
- savings accounts 18 835 053 19 069 974
- term deposit 5314519 3718 845
Transactions with the buy-back commitment 18 272 128 320
Other liabilities 492 090 571 867
Total 39 629 603 38 853 556
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Liabilities due to entities from the government aeti-government institutions’ sector

end of 2008 end of 2007

Deposits 2 886 223 2572389
- current accounts 2400 751 2 028 882
- term deposit 485 472 543 507
Transactions with the buy-back commitment 20 209 0
Other liabilities 15984 6 683
Total 2922 416 2579072

Liabilities due to customers — total

end of 2008 end of 2007

Deposits 46 272 956 42 952 411
Transactions with the buy-back commitment 202 024 855 356
Other liabilities 591 938 694 070
Total 47 066 918 44 501 837

Repurchase transactions (repo) are shown underitéme “Transactions with the buy-back
commitment”. The Group acquires funds by sellingaficial instruments with the future buy-back
commitment at the same price, increased with ttezest determined upfront.

Repurchase transactions are generally consideredtasl of short-term funding of interest assets,
depending on the interest rates.

The following assets were sold under repo transasttoncluded with customers:

end of 2008
Repurchase Nominal Carrying .
interest
date value amount

Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2009-01-06 158 886 168 046 58
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2009-01-07 7 000 6413 2
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2009-01-22 8 000 7 284 11
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2009-01-30 22 440 20 001 208
Total 196 326 201 744 279
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end of 2007
Repurchase Nominal Carrying interest
date value amount

Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-01-02 474 668 461 618 270
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-01-03 21 000 20 248 24
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-01-04 16 000 15418 14
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-01-07 7 000 6 740 11
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-01-08 267 827 273 999 810
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-03-05 37 568 36 165 134
Assets from available-for sale portfolio 2008-03-19 41 294 39 786 119
Total 865 357 853 974 1382
Liabilities due to customers by maturity

end of 2008 end of 2007
up to 1 month 38 803 201 40 361 443
over 1 month and up to 3 months 3944514 1699 354
over 3 months and up to 1 year 3318 544 1594 030
over 1 year and up to 5 years 995 736 789 143
over 5 years 4923 57 867
Total 47 066 918 44 501 837
Average effective interest rate for deposits in %

end of 2008 end of 2007
Average effective interest rate for deposits in PLN 4,01% 2,92%
Average effective interest rate for deposits irefgn currencies 1,88% 2,00%
34. Provisions

end of 2008 end of 2007
Provision for issues in dispute 16 722 29 294
Provision for off-balance sheet liabilities 9281 23933
Provision for retirement benefits 12 544 11 839
Provision for unused holidays 7 993 7 441
Provision for employment restructuring 4 039 0
Total 50 579 72 507
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2008
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Opening balance 29 294 23933 11 839 7 441 0 72507
- provisions recognised 10 212 7 506 707 2437 4039 24901
- provisions applied -2 398 0 0 0 0 -2 398
- provisions reversed -20 386 -22 158 2 -1 885 0 -44 431
Closing balance 16 722 9281 12 544 7993 4039 50 579
expected provision settlement period:
-up to 1 year 3240 0 0 7993 4039 15272
- more than 1 year 13 482 9281 12 544 0 0 35307
2007
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Opening balance 42 262 25015 10 899 12 148 0 90324
- provisions recognised 3493 0 940 310 0 4743
- provisions applied -2 148 -1082 0 0 0 -3 230
- provisions reversed -14 313 0 0 -5 017 0 -19 330
Closing balance 29 294 23933 11 839 7 441 0 72 507
expected provision settlement period:
-up to 1 year 5551 0 0 7 441 0 12 992
- more than 1 year 23743 23933 11 839 0 0 59515

Provision for issues in dispute

The Group maintains detailed records of all coades and other legal claims. The Group establishes
provisions for cases where it is burdened with llegadigations or other obligations arising from
commonly accepted customs, having its source ih @amnts, and where it is also probable that the
fulfilment of the said obligation will result in ¢hunavoidable outflow of funds. Any future settlerise

are made against those provisions.

The recognised amount of provisions as at 31 Deee2®08 comprises:

1) disputable cases connected with negligent perfocmari agreements: PLN 11,449,000
(PLN 27,340,000 as at 31 December 2007),

2) criminal cases: PLN 5,220,000 (PLN 1,916,000 &ldbecember 2007),

3) cases relating to claims filed by former employeisN 53,000 (PLN 38,000 as at 31
December 2007).

The Group recognised provisions for all estimatessés. In some cases, the Group is entitled to
reimbursement of funds relating to the provisidtewever, due to the uncertainty of the inflow of th
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expected economic benefits, the Group did not neisegany assets due to that title in the financial
statement.

In 2008, parent company of the Group released ftlwwigion against forecast losses of PLN
14,088,000 that was established in 2006 in conmeetith imposing a fine on 20 banks by the Office
of Competition and Consumer Protection (UOKIK) feaching an agreement on the commissions
charged for the payment card transactions. Withjudgement of 12 November 2008, the Court of
Competition and Consumer Protection did not find @y proof for the application of any practice
harmful for the competition related to the commiasstharged for the payment cards transactions.
Thus, the provision that was established in 20086 nebeased.

After the end of the reporting term, the Group re®@ notice of the appeal filed by the Chairman of
UOKIiK and MasterCard against the abovementionedtatecision. The probability of the liability’s
materialisation is estimated by the Management Badrthe Group’s dominant entity at less than
50%.

Provision for retirement benefits

The Group recognises provisions for retirement fiena accordance with IAS 19. Provisions for
retirement benefits granted as a part of benddigsiired by the Labour Code are estimated based on
actuarial valuation. The provision resulting frootuarial valuation is recognised and re-measured on
an annual basis.

The Group adopts the corridor approach for recagmia specific part of the cumulated net actuarial
gains and losses. Under this method, when detamgian obligation due to certain benefits, the
Group recognises some actuarial gains and lossagvamue or costs, when the net value of
accumulated unrecognised actuarial gains and |Iesses the end of the previous reporting period
exceeds the higher of the following two values:

a) 10% of the current value of the obligation due &t&@in benefits as at that day (before
deduction of the plan’s assets)
b) 10% of the fair value of the plan’s assets asattday.
A portion of the actuarial gains and losses abéwesaid limit is recognised in the profit and loss
account as the quotient of the above named exoestha average expected remaining working life of

the Group employees. Following that change, thau@mresents in the balance sheet the net value of
the liability comprising the current value of thalility and unrecognised actuarial gains/ losses.

Provision for retirement benefits — a revision dfd balance-sheet liability

2008 2007
Opening balance 11 839 10 899
Costs included in the profit and loss account,adwthich: 1337 1516
- regular employment costs 719 962
- costs of interest 618 554
Paid benefits -634 -576
Actuarial gains / losses recognised in the profit bbss account 2 0
Closing balance, including: 12 544 11 839
- current value of the liability 15 950 11187
- not included actuarial gains/ losses -3 406 652
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Provision for employment restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognised whee Broup has a detailed and formal restructuring
plan defining at least the business or part oftihginess to which it applies, the basic locatiths,
places of employment, the functions, and the apprate number of employees eligible to
indemnification, the amount of expenditure to beuimed and the dates of implementation. The
condition necessary for recognising the provisiessalso for the restructuring to have been
commenced or announced publicly. The provisionréstructuring does not include future operating
costs.

In connection with the group lay-off procedure wdrin 2008, a provision for employment
restructuring totalling PLN 4,039,000 was estal@ishThe employment restructuring results from
projects carried on at the Group, aimed at optimgishe operating area (centralisation of selected
functions, consolidation of operating units anditation of co-operation with intermediaries).

35. Other liabilities

end of 2008 end of 2007

to employees 22 160 25 486
due to leases 9 3291
accruals 210555 172 366
- due to operating expenses 1394 1497
- due to employee benefits 133 495 111572
- due to loans granted 276 1019
- due to commission 60 336 50 748
- due to distribution of deposit-related funds 613 1061
- other 14 441 6 469
other liabilities 436 948 369 569
- interbank settlements 204 984 212 533
- public and legal settlements 71737 36 334
- settiment due to trading in securities 263 1701
- settlements with suppliers 139 916 63 663
- other 20 048 55 338
Total 669 672 570 712

Gross liabilities due to financial leases by matyri

end of 2008 end of 2007

up to 1 year 3 3241
over 1 year and up to 5 years 6 59
over 5 years 0 0
Total 9 3300
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Present value of lease instalments due by maturity

end of 2008 end of 2007

up to 1 year 5 3319
over 1 year and up to 5 years 5 72
over 5 years 0 0
Total 10 3391

Reconciliation of differences between gross liibdi due to financial leasesnd present value of
minimum lease instalments

end of 2008 end of 2007

Gross liabilities due to financial leases 9 3300
Unrealised financial expenses 1 91
Present value of minimum lease instalments 10 3391

The Group is a lessee in financial lease agreentamiserning a part of the hardware and premises
used by the Group. Those agreements do not préideny contingent fees to be paid by the lessee;
no constraints arise from the provisions of thedeagreements. In some cases the agreements provide
for the possibility of prolonging the agreemeningshe possibility of purchase or price change.

36. Share capital

The parent entity's share capital includes 1300@ordinary shares, and is sub-divided into:
— 9,260,000 A-series ordinary bearer's shares with ¥alue of PLN 10.00 each,
- 3,750,000 B-series ordinary bearer's shares with ¥alue of PLN 10.00 each.

Each ordinary share entitles its owner to dividemd one vote during the general meeting of the
Bank’s shareholders.

Neither the value of the share capital nor the remalb shares changed in 2008 and throughout 2007.
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37. Revaluation reserve

end of 2008 end of 2007
Revaluation reserve from measurement of availadiesdle financial assets -100 981 -149 591
- including deferred tax 24 289 35914
Revaluation reserve from measurement of propeliyt@and equipment 52 864 57 998
- including deferred tax -12 399 -13 604
Revaluation reserve from measurement of cash fledgimg instruments 45 581 0
- including deferred tax -10 692 0
Total -2 536 -91 593
2008
Revaluation
reserve from Revaluation Revaluation
measurement reserve from reserve from
of available- measurement measurement
for-sale including of property, including of cash flow including
financial deferred plant and deferred hedging deferred
assets tax equipment tax instruments tax TOTAL
Opening balance of revaluation reserve -149591 35914 57998 -13604 0 0 -91 593
- gains/losses on remeasurement of available-fer-sa R
financial assets charged to equity 240 366 -56 605 0 0 0 0 240 366
- reclassified to the financial result as a restikale of
available-for-sale financial assets -192191 45082 0 0 0 0 -192191
- correction of the measurement of the securities
reclassified from the AFS portfolio to the loanslan 435 -102 0 0 0 0 435
receivables one
- disposal of property, plant and equipment 0 0 -569 134 0 0 -569
- remeasurement of property, plant and equipment 0 0 -4 565 1071 0 0 -4 565
- effective part of cash flow hedging instruments R
revaluation 0 0 0 0 45581 -10692 45 581
Closing balance of revaluation reserve -100 981 24 289 52864 -12399 45581 -10692 -2 536
2007
Revaluation
reserve from Revaluation Revaluation
measurement reserve from reserve from
of available- measurement measurement
for-sale including of property, including of cash flow including
financial deferred plant and deferred hedging deferred
assets tax equipment tax instruments tax TOTAL
Opening balance of revaluation reserve 42 830 -5 855 52 263 -9 490 0 0 95 093
- gains/losses on remeasurement of available-fer-sa R R _ B
financial assets charged to equity 174090 37469 0 0 174 090
- reclassified to the financial result as a restiale of
available-for-sale financial assets -18 331 4300 . ; 0 0 -18 331
- disposal of property, plant and equipment - - -257 62 0 0 -257
- remeasurement of property, plant and equipment - - -2 979 -3 084 0 0 -2 979
- purchase of shares in subsidiary entity fromrtieority R R R
shareholders 8971 1092 0 0 8971
Closing balance of revaluation reserve -149591 35914 57998 -13604 0 0 -91 593
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38. Retained earnings

end of 2008 end of 2007
Other supplementary capital 74 889 73 825
Reserve capital 1763929 1505 970
General risk fund 730179 530 179
Retained earnings 123 906 103 328
Result for the current year 445 413 630 724
Total 3138 316 2 844 026
2008
other
supplementa reserve  general risk retained  result for the
ry capital capital fund earnings ___current year TOTAL
Opening balance of retained earnings 73 825 1505 970 530 179 734 052 0 2 844 026
- disposal of property, plant and equipment 1038 0 0 56 0 1094
- profit allocation, including: 26 257 959 200 000 -610 202 0 -152 217
- profit written off to supplementary capital 26 0 0 -26 0 0
- profit written off to reserve capital 0 257 959 0 -257 959 0 0
- profit written off to general risk fund 0 200 000 -200 000 0 0
- dividends paid 0 -152 217 0 -152 217
- net result for the current period 0 0 0 0 445 418 445 418
- share of minority shareholders in the net finahasult 0 0 0 0 -5 -5
Closing balance of retained earnings 74889 1763929 730 179 123 906 445413 3138316
2007
other
supplementa reserve  general risk retained  result for the
ry capital capital fund earnings  current year TOTAL
Opening balance of retained earnings 72 968 1378377 480 179 642 727 0 2574 251
- disposal of property, plant and equipment 713 0 0 1317 0 2030
- profit allocation, including: 144 127 593 50 000 -540 716 0 -362979
- profit written off to supplementary capital 144 0 0 -144 0 0
- profit written off to reserve capital 0 127 593 0 -127 593 0 0
- profit written off to general risk fund 0 0 50 000 -50 000 0 0
- dividends paid 0 0 0 -362 979 0 -362 979
- net result for the current period 0 0 0 0 636 822 636 822
- share of minority shareholders in the net finahmsult 0 0 0 0 -6 098 -6 098
Closing balance of retained earnings 73825 1505970 530 179 103 328 630 724 2844 026
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Supplementary capital

Supplementary capital is created from appropriatisom profit after tax, from surpluses generated
due to issue of shares above their face valuetedxtra contributions paid up by the shareholtters
be used for covering balance-sheet losses. Thaideodn the use of the supplementary capital is
taken at the General Meeting.

Reserves

Reserves are established regardless of the suppiemeapital created from the appropriations from
profit after tax, in the amount resolved at the &ahMeeting. The reserves are used for covering
special losses and expenses. The decision on ¢hef tise reserves is taken at the General Meeting.

The General Risk Fund

The General Risk Fund is established in accordantte the Banking Law Act from the after-tax
profit and is used for unidentified risk relatedo@nking activity. The decision on the use of thad-
is taken by the Management Board.

Dividend payout limitations

The statutory statements of subsidiaries are draite accordance with the Polish accounting
standards. Dividend may be paid out on the basikenfinancial result determined in the stand-alone
annual financial statements produced for statyporposes.

Pursuant to the Commercial Companies Code, the rdorhi entity is obliged to establish
supplementary capital for loss coverage. The apjaipn of the supplementary and reserve capital
will be decided by the General Meeting; howeveappgion of the supplementary capital representing
one third of the initial capital may be used towamothe loss recognised in the stand-alone findncia
statements of the dominant entity and it will netfrther divided for other purposes.

As of 31 December 2008, no other dividend pajimitations are evident.

39. Balance sheet currency structure

Herein below, a consolidated balance sheet of dygit@l Group was presented per base currencies.
The following currency rates were applied to cabeivalues in original currency:

31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007

EUR 4,1724 3,5820
usD 2,9618 2,4350
CHF 2,8014 2,1614
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end of 2008
EUR USD CHF other
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET(PLN'000) PLN after translation: . after translation: . after translationi (af?eur"tfgr?sT:tion TOTAL
into PLN [ GGy into PLN In eurrency into PLN in currency into PLN)
ASSETS
- Cash in hand and balances with the CentrakBan 1028 440 292 883 70 195 36 104 12 190 516 184 11 852 1369 795
- Loans and receivables to other banks 2 403 053 4579 191, 1097 496 539 961 182 308 1456 520 263 564 7 787 225
- Financial assets measured at fair value thrquigfit and loss 7 606 442 4 580 090 1097 711, 2 853 931, 963 580 10 995 3925 77 126 15 128 584
- Investments 18 046 375 301 72 4 246 1434 0 0 0 18 050 922
- Derivative hedge instruments 197 003 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 197 003
- Loans and receivables to customers 19 885 621 4 217 449 1010 797 326 433 110 214 1275092 455 162 38 244 25 742 839
- Investments in controlled entities recogniseder the equity method 107 261 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 107 261
- Investment real estates 151 458 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 151 458
- Property, plant and equipment 544 163 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 544 163
- Intangible assets 316 187 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 316 187
- Property, plant and equipment held for sale 248 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 248
- Current tax asset 142 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 142
- Deferred tax asset 48 651 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48 651
- Other assets 153 465 12 392 2970 79 27 22 8 39 165 997
Total assets 50488 509 13 682 306 3279 241, 3760 754 1269 753; 1288 081 459 799 390 825; 69610 475
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
- Liabilities due to the Central Bank 5932 116 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5932 116
- Liabilities due to other banks 891 989 3122 349 748 334, 1641 200 554 122 383924 137 047 21 406 6 060 868
- Financial liabilities measured at fair valbedugh profit and loss 4 015 457 863 201 206 884 218 766 73 863 2773 990 46 501 5 146 698
- Derivative hedge instruments 261 483 158 564 38003 0 0 0 0 0 420 047
- Liabilities due to customers 41 859 867 3663 319 877 988 1 397 497 471 840 26 056 9301 120 179 47 066 918
- Provisions 47 441 2728 654 399 135 0 0 11 50 579
- Current income tax liabilities 39 148 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 39 148
- Other liabilities 636 900 32141 7 703 601 203 12 4 18 669 672
Total liabilities 53 684 401 7 842 302 1 879 566 3 258 463 1100 163 412 765 147 342 188 115 65 386 046
EQUITY
- Share capital 130 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 130 100
- Supplementary capital - issuance of shares mwminal value 956 250 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 956 250
- Revaluation reserve from measurement of avieiéor-sale financial assets -107 423 2196 526 4 246 1434 0 0 0 -100 981
- Revaluation reserve from measurement of ptgpplant and equipment 52 864 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 52 864
- Revaluation reserve from measurement of dashliedging instruments 45 581 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45 581
- Retained earnings 3138 316 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3138 316
Equity attributed to the holding company 4215 688 2196 526 4246 1434 0 0 0 4222 130
- Minority equity 2299 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2299
Total equity 4217 987 2196 526 4246 1434 0 0 0 4224 429
Total equity and liabilites 57 902 388 7 844 498 1880 092 3262 709 1101 597 412 765 147 342 188 115, 69 610 475
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end of 2007
EUR usb CHF other
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET(PLN'000) PLN after translation: . after translation: . after translationi (af?eur"tfgr?sT:tion TOTAL
into PLN [ GGy into PLN In eurrency into PLN in currency into PLN)
ASSETS
- Cash in hand and balances with the CentrakBan 1719 097 94 542 26 394 18 412 7561 154 71 9520 1841725
- Loans and receivables to other banks 5021 231 4 862 469, 1357 473 5090 746 2 090 655 19 199 8883 190 020; 15183 665
- Financial assets measured at fair value thrquigfit and loss 6 278 968 1 483 043 414 027 134 972 55 430 83 38 10 498 7 907 564
- Investments 9 366 941 258 72 21074 8 655 0 0 0 9 388 273
- Derivative hedge instruments 4572 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4572
- Loans and receivables to customers 14 559 637, 1565 152 436 949 169 233 69 500 65 723 30 408 19393; 16 379 138
- Investments in controlled entities recogniseder the equity method 97 326 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 97 326
- Investment real estates 144 713 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 144 713
- Property, plant and equipment 532 938 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 532 938
- Intangible assets 318 825 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 318 825
- Property, plant and equipment held for sale 241 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 241
- Current tax asset 25 256 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 256
- Deferred tax asset 49 292 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 49 292
- Other assets 136 970 296 83 41 17 1 0 24 137 332
Total assets 38 256 007 8 005 760, 2234998 5434 478, 2231 818; 85 160 39 400 229 455; 52010 860
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
- Liabilities due to other banks 998 330 214 427 59 862 376 838 154 759 113 397 52 465 107 203 1810 195
- Financial liabilities measured at fair valbedugh profit and loss 577 818 352 293 98 351 265 860 109 183 319 148 18 691 1214 981
- Liabilities due to customers 38945 763 3897 724 1088 142 1534 834 630 322 1311 607 122 205 44 501 837
- Provisions 68 730 3278 915 491 202 7 3 1 72 507
- Current income tax liabilities 126 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 126
- Other liabilities 555 891 14 134 3946 609 250 0 0 78 570 712
Total liabilities 41 146 658 4 481 856 1251 216 2178 632 894 716 115 034 53223 248 178; 48 170 358
EQUITY
- Share capital 130 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 130 100
- Supplementary capital - issuance of shares myminal value 956 250 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 956 250
- Revaluation reserve from measurement of abvieitéor-sale financial assets -170 664 0 0 21073 8 654 0 0 0 -149 591
- Revaluation reserve from measurement of ptgpplant and equipment 57 998 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 57 998
- Retained earnings 2 844 026; 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 844 026
Equity attributed to the holding company 3817 710 0 0 21073 8 654 0 0 0 3838783
- Minority equity 1719 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1719
Total equity 3819 429 0 0 21073 8 654 0 0 0 3840 502
Total equity and liabilites 44 966 087 4 481 856 1251216 2199 705 903 370: 115 034 53 223 248 178; 52 010 860
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40. Off-balance sheet items

end of 2008 end of 2007
Contingent liabilities granted 14 100 914 12 833 876
Contingent liabilities received 15 310 545 14 092 965
Off-balance sheet financial instruments 262 720 990 207 320 201
Total 292 132 449 234 247 042
41. Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities granted

end of 2008 end of 2007
Credit card limits 685 445 590 568
Undrawn credit facilities 9 300 616 6 615 924
Undrawn overdrafts in current account 1280 767 2334 841
Guarantees and letters of credit 2797993 2079 315
Deposits to be issued 36 093 1213228
Total 14 100 914 12 833 876

The Group discloses obligations to grant loans.s&habligations include approved loans, credit card
limits and overdraft limits in current accounts.

The Group issues guarantees and letters of credgecure fulfilment of obligations of the Group’s
customers to third parties. The value of guarantees letters of credit disclosed abowve reflects
maximum loss that can be incurred, and that woaldibclosed as at the balance sheet date should the
customers fail to fulfil their obligations in full.

The Group charges commissions for contingent it#sl granted, which are settled in line with the
specific nature of the particular instrument.

Contingent liabilities granted by maturity

end of 2008 end of 2007
up to 1 month 3159 885 10 242 326
over 1 month and up to 3 months 495 316 168 129
over 3 months and up to 1 year 4 683 466 781 701
over 1 year and up to 5 years 3843 752 1575 802
over 5 years 1918 495 65 918
Total 14 100 914 12 833 876
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Contingent liabilities received

end of 2008 end of 2007

Guarantee conditioned liabilities 14 566 738 12 835 455
Financing liabilities 743 807 1257 510
Total 15 310 545 14 092 965

Information on issue guarantees granted to othesi®rs

In 2008, the Group acted as a guarantor for theeigd commercial securities by five budgetary
entities, one entity from the power generation @eets well as one from the sector of financial
institutions. The guarantee totalled PLN 502,2 ionill The Group purchased the securities for total
amount of guarantee.

In 2007, the Group was the guarantor for the isfusommercial papers of two budget entities, one
entity from the fuel sector and one entity from t@ver generation sector. The guarantee totalled
PLN 228.7 million. The Group purchased the se@sitor the amount of PLN 228.2 million.

42. Off-balance sheet financial instruments

end of 2008
Nominal value of instruments_ with the period renmairo Fair value measurement
maturity
over 3 months .
r?wrc))rg(t)hi and up to over 1 year Total Assets Eﬁ:gﬁ: tiansd
1 year
Interest rate derivatives, of which: 19 209 223 8824 657 43128114 145961994 1414 263 1805 035
Forward rate agreements (FRA) 2000000 51993000 1700 000 55 693 000 105 326 90 134
Interest rate swaps (IRS) 17 209 223 31196 937 40 278 258 88 684 418 1300 444 1706 408
CAP options 0 434 720 1149856 1584576 8493 8493
FX derivatives, of which: 59 458 719 25922 044 X% 433 90 058 196 3262197 2876 418
FX contracts (swap, forward) 53 702 038 17 017 645 1504 048 72 223 731 1604 621 2 357 264
CIRS 0 0 0 0 148 692 139 517
Currency options (purchased) 3098 190 4969 119 1767769 9835078 1508 884 0
Currency options (sold) 2658 491 3935280 1405616 7999 387 0 379 637
curmen: off-balance sheet ransactions, 23 886 387 0 0 23886387 45 655 5583
FX operations 13 462 008 0 0 13462008 34913 10 009
Securities operations 10 424 379 0 0 10424379 10 742 -4 426
Stock market derivatives, of which: 448 334 582083 1783996 2814 413 54 574 54 465
Options for stock market (buy) 225 405 291 267 892 078 1408 750 54 574 0
Options for stock market (sold) 222 929 290 816 891918 1405663 0 54 465
il;a;itrrcjlr?qlgﬁtrsneasurement of other financial ) ) ) B 79 184
Total 103002 663 110128 784 49589543 262720990 4776768 4741685
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end of 2007
Nominal value of instruments_, with the period renagrto Fair value measurement
maturity
r%%rg(t)hi overaan:%rétE‘r)s over 1 year Total Assets Eﬁ:g |3|’| t?ensd
Interest rate derivatives, of which: 32 286 359 8060 776 21582425 133929 560 477 704 346 604
Forward rate agreements (FRA) 8 250 000 43 336 550 500 000 52 086 550 29 335 26 411
Interest rate swaps (IRS) 24 036 359 36 724 226 20540 206 81 300 791 446 405 318 229
CAP options 0 0 542 219 542 219 1964 1964
FX derivatives, of which: 43 039 430 18 567 407 D3 700 63 102 537 1104 352 638 385
FX contracts (swap, forward) 39 954 013 15174 652 1293 146 56 421 811 938 541 542 023
CIRS 0 0 0 0 91 843 11 163
Currency options (purchased) 1412 204 1569 845 133870 3115919 73 968 0
Currency options (sold) 1673213 1822910 68 684 3564 807 0 85199
(C):fuvrvrﬁir;th ?ff-balance sheet transactions, 9239 508 0 0 0239 508 5 642 4418
FX operations 8081 443 0 0 8081443 5 808 3944
Securities operations 1158 065 0 0 1 158 065 -166 474
Stock market derivatives, of which: 0 115 258 93338 1048 596 67 900 67 887
Options for stock market (buy) 0 57 629 466 684 524 313 67 900 0
Options for stock market (sold) 0 57 629 466 654 524 283 0 67 887
Total 84 565297 98743441 24011463 207 320 201 1 655 598 1057 294

Currency contracts

The table below summarises contractual values wéoay forwards, swaps and options by currency,
as well as details of the period remaining to mtwf the particular contract. Values in foreign
currency are converted at exchange rates valitithe &#alance sheet date.

end of 2008 end of 2007

PLN

- up to 3 months 24 106 974 15 768 441
- from 3 months to 1 year 8 242 550 7 314 538
- over 1 year 648 155 708 971
EUR

- up to 3 months 24 696 360 13713 816
- from 3 months to 1 year 14 730 643 5281 947
- over 1 year 3344 485 559 217
USD

- up to 3 months 9483 737 12 292 308
- from 3 months to 1 year 2 447 442 5 883 226
- over 1 year 615 948 200 375
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GBP

- up to 3 months 34 253 556 491
- from 3 months to 1 year 12 505 55 504
- over 1 year 0 0

other currencies

- up to 3 months 1137 396 708 373
- from 3 months to 1 year 488 903 32193
- over 1 year 68 845 27 137
Total 90 058 196 63 102 537

Embedded derivatives

The Group has deposits in PLN and USD with embedigeidative instruments, such as FX options
and stock exchange indices, commodity indices andt tunits in investment funds. As at 31
December 2008, the embedded instruments were valuBtN 76,237,000 in comparison with PLN
48,486,000 as at 31 December 2007.

43. Hedge accounting
Fair value hedge accounting

In the consolidated financial statements as at 8téebhber 2008, the Group used fair value hedge
accounting for securities.

The hedged risk is the risk of the change of thevalue of the financial asset resulting from the
change of the interest rates. The subject of hegdggirthe fair value of the fixed interest rate debt
instrument, namely the position (or its part) omigen security in the AFS portfolio, that as of
establishing of the hedging relationship has a ifipdair value recognised through the revaluation
fund, and position (or its part) on a given seguiit the loans and other receivables portfoliofaes t
result of reclassification from the AFS portfolio.

Interest Rate Swap is the hedging instrument thamges the fixed interest rate into variable ome T
above leads to the situation that the fair valu¢ghefhedging instrument shows a trend reverseeto th
fair value of the hedged item. Thus, thanks todsiablished hedging relationship, we have the effec
of the mutual set-off of the changes in the faiugaof the hedging instrument and hedged itemén th
P/L under the hedge risk. As only one type of ibk is hedged (the risk of the interest rate change
the changes of the fair vale of the hedged itemmftioe AFS portfolio that result from other risksith
are not hedged are recognised through the revaiutatnd.

The measurement of the hedging and hedged tramisads shown in the income statement under the
note: “Net income on investment financial assets”.
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Fair value of instruments under the fair value he@dgcounting for securities

end of 2008 end of 2007
Nominal Fair Nominal Fair
value value value value
Hedged items 3035000 3235793 437 000 435 531
- Debt _se(.:urltles from available-for-sale portfolio 3035000 3235793 437 000 435 531
of which:
- Treasury bonds 3035000 3235793 437 000 33531
- Debt s_ecurltles_ fr(?m loans and other receivables 1489547 1654003 0 0
portfolio, of which:
- Treasury bonds 1489547 1654003 0 0
Hedging instruments 4514 502 -420 047 437 000 257
- Interest Rate Swap 4514 502 -420 047 437 000 45

For the hedging instrument the fair value was giagthe balance valuation.

Cash flow hedge accounting

In the consolidated financial statements as at &debhber 2008, the Group followed the principles of
cash flow hedge accounting for a specific portfeif@ssets/ liabilities/ highly likely planned fimcal
transactions of the Group (e.g. extrapolation ofshflaws resulting from revolving deposits/
overdrafts) from the risk of changes to the futtashflows due to the interest rate risk.

The hedged item includes a specific portfolio aeds and/ or financial liabilities or a portfolid o
planned transactions, which includes financial rimsents with variable interest rate (financial
products based on the WIBOR market interest rata),is therefore exposed to the risk of changes to
the future cashflows due to the change of WIBOR.

Interest rate swaps of the type “pay variable, foed” are used as hedging instruments for assets,
and interest rate swaps of the type “pay fixed,vgelable” are used to secure liabilities.

The measurement of the hedging transactions isishowhe income statement under the note: “Net
income on instruments measured at fair value thrqugfit and loss and revaluation”.

In 2008, the amount of PLN 45,581,000 (inclusiveleferred tax) referring to the effective partlof t
hedging relationship in hedge accounting of cashilas recognised through the revaluation equity,
whereas the ineffective part of the hedging retetiop recognised through P/L totalled PLN 5,000.

Fair value of hedging instruments under the castvfhedge accounting

end of 2008 end of 2007
Nominal Fair Nominal Fair
value value value value
Hedging instruments 4 998 000 197 003 0 0
- Interest Rate Swap 4 998 000 197 003 0 0
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Periods when the Group expects that the cash flegged in the hedge accounting will appear, by
which they will have an impact on the P/L are présd in the below "future cashflow high
probability test”.

Test of high probability of future cash flows

ASSETS
Time Hedging item Hedged item EffectiV(_eness test
bucket IRS loans (h(_edge is effectiv
(a) (b) if (b)-(2)>0)

3M 82 527 209 013 hedge is effective
6M 68 357 210 898 hedge is effective
9M 38 369 112 652 hedge is effective
12M 23815 143 118 hedge is effective
15M 20 120 100 445 hedge is effective
18 M 18 691 139 318 hedge is effective
21 M 2739 121 499 hedge is effective
24 M 1469 129 668 hedge is effective
27M 0 119 480 hedge is effective
30M 1486 117 678 hedge is effective
33M 0 115 855 hedge is effective
36 M 1451 114 084 hedge is effective
39M 0 109 199 hedge is effective
42 M 1462 108 468 hedge is effective
45M 0 107 743 hedge is effective
48 M 1474 107 077 hedge is effective
51 M 0 106 782 hedge is effective
54 M 1525 107 077 hedge is effective
57 M 0 107 376 hedge is effective
60 M 1588 107 729 hedge is effective

44, Fair values
The fair value of financial assets and financialdbilities

Fair value is the amount for which an asset cowddelkchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in a direct trangact other than forced sale or liquidation, whish i
best reflected by the market price, if available.

Below, balance sheet values and fair values aremsuised for respective groups of assets and
liabilities. In the event of short-term financiasats and liabilities it is assumed that the balaheet
value of those instruments equals approximately fai value
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end of 2008

Carrying Fair

amount value

Assets
Cash in hand and balances with the Central Bank 1369 795 1369 795
Loans and receivables to other banks 7 787 225 7787 225
Financial assets measured at fair value througfit jamad loss 15 128 584 15 128 584
Investments 18 050 922 18 245 059
Derivative hedge instruments 197 003 197 003
Loans and receivables to customers 25742 839 26 111 928
Investments in controlled entities recognised unkerequity method 107 261 107 261
Liabilities
Liabilities due to the Central Bank 5932116 5932116
Liabilities due to other banks 6 060 868 6 060 868
Financial liabilities measured at fair value throygyofit and loss 5146 698 5146 698
Derivative hedge instruments 420 047 420 047
Liabilities due to customers 47 066 918 47 066 761
end of 2007

Carrying Fair

amount value

Assets
Cash in hand and balances with the Central Bank 1841725 1841725
Loans and receivables to other banks 15 183 665 15 183 665
Financial assets measured at fair value througfit jaiad loss 7 907 564 7 907 564
Investments 9388 273 9 373 554
Derivative hedge instruments 4572 4572
Loans and receivables to customers 16 379 138 16 407 744
Investments in controlled entities recognised urtderequity method 97 326 97 326
Liabilities
Liabilities due to other banks 1810195 1810 195
Financial liabilities measured at fair value throygofit and loss 1214981 1214981
Liabilities due to customers 44 501 837 44 497 087
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Determination of fair value

The Bank discloses the data on the fair value ahdoand deposits recognised respectively in the
groups of financial assets and financial liabifitearried at amortised cost considering the effecti
interest rate.

In calculations, the yield curve is used; it takesount of the transfer prices calculated based on:
— PLN: upto 1Y — as the average of BID quotatioMKID and brokers’ BID listings) collected at

9.00am, 11.00am, 12.30pm and 2.00pm; above 1Y -aibeage of OFFER quotations for IRS
contracts converted into the effective rate,

— USD and CHF: up to 1Y on the basis of adequate IRBfdotations; from 1Y onwards — on the
basis of OFFER quotations for IRS contracts caedeinto the effective rate,

— EUR: up to 1Y - on the basis of adequate EURIBORtafions, from 1Y onwards — on the basis
of OFFER quotations for IRS contracts converted the effective rate.

Credit loss estimations reflect the loan loss miaviing model in place at the Bank. In certain atpe
the model adopted by the Bank is based on the gggns that do not confirm the prices of verifiable
current market transactions referring to the sanstriment — the model takes account of neither
prepayments nor restructuring-based changes.

Loans and receivables to other banks

Due to the short-term nature of the major parbahk and other receivables granted to other bénks,
was assumed that the fair value of these instrusrisrose to their balance sheet value.

Loans and receivables to customers

The credit portfolio is divided into sub-portfoli@ccording to the registration system, the type of
product, the client’'s segment and the currencygalse of loans without any repayment schedules and
loans from the impaired group, it is assumed thatfair value for those loans equals their book&al

In case of those sub-portfolios the discountinddiacs used for each cashflow. The result is the fa
value as the sum of the net present value of aaghfbf a single loan.

The sum of the fair value of individual loans regmets the fair value of the portfolio of reviewed
loans.

For loans the discounting factor is assumed asracu

- the market rate based on the yield curve as dbdfence sheet date, and

— the average margin based on the portfolio of lagaated in the last six month period.
For that purpose the following assumptions are tetbp

— use of the loans granted in the last six monthsdrulation,

— division into the abovementioned product groups,

— the spot at the yield curve on the basis of whighrelevant market rate is set is reflected by the
revaluation date for each loan.

Investment in controlled entities

In the case of financial assets being investmentoitrolled entities, equity method was applied fo
their measurement.
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Liabilities due to other banks

Due to the short-term nature of the major partiafilities towards other banks, it was assumed that
the fair value of these instruments is close tir thelance sheet value.

Liabilities due to customers

The deposit portfolio is divided according to thge of product, the client's segment and the
currency. For deposits paid on demand, it is asduhefair value equals their book value.

Another phase involves the calculation of futurshflmws as the sum of principal- and interest
cashflows. After that, by applying the discountfagtor for each cashflow one receives the fair @alu

of individual deposits. The sum of fair values oflividual deposits represents the fair value of the
portfolio of deposits reviewed.

For deposits the discounting factor representstine of:

— the market rate based on the yield curve as didlance sheet date, and

- the average margin based on the portfolio of dépasicepted in the last two months.
For that purpose the following assumptions are tetbp

— use of the deposits accepted in the last two mdottealculation,

— division into the abovementioned product groups,

— the spot at the yield curve on the basis of whighrelevant market rate is set is reflected by the
revaluation date for each deposit.

Fair value measurement categories for financial @&s and liabilities

Based on the employed methods of determining tinevddue, financial assets/liabilities are classifi
to the following categories:

— Level [: financial assets/liabilities measured dilgon the basis of prices quoted in the active
market or measurement techniques based solely dretrdata.

— Level ll: financial assets/liabilities measuredtba basis of measurement techniques based on
assumptions using data from an active market okehabservations.

- Level llI: financial assets/liabilities measured t¢ime basis of measurement techniques
commonly used by the market players, the assungptibrwhich are not based on data from
an active market.
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The table below presents the balance sheet figorenancial assets and liabilities per individual
measurement levels.

end of 2008
Level | Level Il Level Il Total

Financial assets, of which: 11 496 672 14 373 155 194 850 26 064 677

- Financial assets measured at fair value through

profit and loss 1684 715 13251719 192 150 15128 584

- Financial assets available-for sale 9811 957 924 433 2700 10739090
- Derivative hedge instruments 0 197 003 0 197 003
Financial liabilities, of which: 371873 5194872 0 5566 745

- Financial liabilities measured at fair value tigt

profit and loss 371873 4774825 0 5146 698
- Derivative hedge instruments 0 420 047 0 420 047
end of 2007

Level | Level Il Level Il Total
Financial assets, of which: 8187234 7884294 388 105 16 459 633

- Fmanual assets measured at fair value through 962 970 6813 068 131526 7907 564
profit and loss

- Financial assets available-for sale 7 224264 1066 654 256 579 8547 497
- Derivative hedge instruments 0 4572 0 4572
Financial liabilities, of which: 54971 1160010 0 1214981
- Financial liabilities measured at fair value tigt 54971 1160 010 0 1214 981

profit and loss

45. Custody activities

As at 31 December 2008, the parent company of theugs maintained 3,509 (3,196 as at 31
December 2007) securities accounts for its custen#es at the end of 2008, parent company of the
Group was the depository bank for 81 investmend$uand 1 employee pension fund (as at 31
December 2007 respectively 60 and 1).

As at 31 December 2008, parent company of the Gecoupperated with 23 Polish brokerage houses
(22 as at 31 December 2007).
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46. Operating leases

Group as a lessee

The Group cooperates with ING Car Lease in redjpecar leasing and fleet management. The Group
also incurs costs due to lease of dwelling unithictv is recognised as operating leasing. Those
agreements do not provide for any contingent fedsetpaid by the lessee; no constraints arise from
the provisions of the lease agreements. In somesdd®e agreements provide for the possibility of
prolonging the agreement, using the possibilitpafchase or price change.

Lease payments by maturity are disclosed in thie taddow:
end of 2008 end of 2007

up to 1 year 176 305 92 452
over 1 year and up to 5 years 396 842 201 759
over 5 years — annual payment amount 36473 20 580

Group as a lessor

The Group earns income from renting investment esdhte. Those agreements are treated as
operating lease agreements. Those agreements goonate for any contingent fees to be paid by the
lessee; no constraints arise from the provisiornth®lease agreements. In some cases the agreements
provide for the possibility of prolonging the agment or changing the price; however they do not
provide for the possibility of purchase.

Lease payments by maturity are disclosed in thie taddow:
end of 2008 end of 2007

up to 1 year 18 058 12 130
over 1 year and up to 5 years 41 010 26 888
over 5 years — annual payment amount 46 1438

Lease payments include only the rent for the bogddf the Head Office of ING Banglaski S.A..
They do not include any payments due to the rergaoking spaces, additional rent for investment
outlays, or fees for services and electric energy.

47. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cadicash equivalents include cash disclosed in the
balance sheet as well as current accounts andighedeposits in other banks.

end of 2008 end of 2007

Cash in handpresented in note 14) 946 212 678 072
Balances with the Central Bafjiresented in note 14) 423 583 1163 653
Current accounts in other banfsesented in note 15) 276 337 359 874
Overnight deposits in other banf@esented in note 15) 2 447 337 2 605 329
Other receivablegresented in note 15) 39 893 65 827
Total 4133 362 4 872 755
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48. Explanation of the classification of Group’s activiies into operating, investment and
financial activities in the cash flow statement

Operating activitiednclude core activities of the Group, not clagsifias investment or financial
activities.

Investment activitiesconsist in purchasing and selling shares in ctattoentities as well as
purchasing and selling intangible assets, propestgnt and equipment. Inflows from investing
activities concern also the dividend received.

Financial activitiegefer to long-term financial operations (over hgewith financial entities. Inflows
from financial activities indicate sources of fiwarg of the Group, including for example long-term
loans and advances from other banks, as well asdial entities other than banks. Outflows from
financial activities refer mainly to repayment ohg-term liabilities (e.g. received loans) by theni
and payment of dividends to the owners and othtloas due to profit distribution.

49. Reasons for differences between changes in somedmale sheet items and changes in these
items disclosed in the cash flow statement

end of 2008
changes
in balance in cash flow
sheet statement differences,
of which: 1) 2) 3) 4) 5)
- Change in loans and other
receivables to other banks 7 396 440 7 651 699 255 259 3812 -267 463 518 910
- Change in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss -7221 020 71274 474 -53 454 -53 454
- Change in available-for-sale 5 191 593 .4 759 887 -2 568 204 -95 217 48 610 2521 687

financial assets

- Change in held-to-maturity

financial assets -6 471 056 -6 639 365 -168 309 -168 309

- Change in loans and other

receivables to customers -9 363 701 -7 381 064 1982637 -20 140 2002 777
- Change in liabilities due to

other banks 4 250 673 10 198 857 5948 184 16 068 5932 116

- Change in liabilties due to 2565081 2652855 87774 87 774

customers
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end of 2007
changes
in balance in cash flow
sheet statement  differences,
of which: 1) 2) 3) 4) 6)
- Change in loans and other
receivables to other banks -1 669 767 -5 763 762 -4 093 995 -69 760 -4 024 235
- Change in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss -840 142 -877 983 -37 841 -37841
- Change in available-for-sale
financial assets 4 067 417 3976 334 -91 083 101 338 -192 421
- Change in held-to-maturity _ _ } R
financial assets 840 776 850 837 10 061 10 061
- Change in loans and other
receivables to customers -3511 064 -3495 251 15813 15813
- Change in liabilities due to
other banks 409 046 -279 671  -688 717 7283 -696 000
- Change in liabilities due to 5940414 5961332 20918 1619 19 299

customers

Explanations:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Changes in the individual assets and liabilitiesensdjusted with interest disclosed in the position
"Interest received/ paid".

Change in the receivables being an equivalent st ¢aurrent accounts and O/N deposits at other
banks) was excluded from the position "Change am$oand other receivables to other banks"; it
was disclosed in the position "Net increase / desen cash and cash equivalents".

"Change in available-for-sale financial assets"sdnet account for the part of financial assets
valuation that was carried through equity (valuat@lowance for financial assets available for
sale).

In the position "Change in liabilities due to otHsmnks", a change in the amounts due to the
Central Bank was recognised.

Reclassification of the AFS assets to the "Loars atter receivables granted to clients" was
recognised under "Change of AFS financial assetd'"€hange of loans and other receivables
granted to clients".

Change in amounts due under long-term loans (alb¥e received from other financial
institutions was excluded from the position "Charngeliabilities due to customers"”; it was
disclosed in the part concerning the financiahaétgtin the position "Long-term loans rapaid".
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50. Related entities

Subsidiaries and Related Entities of ING B&hdski:
ING Securities S.A.,
ING Bank Hipoteczny S.A.,
ING BSK Development Sp. z 0.0.,
Centrum Banki$laskiego (CBS) Sp. z o.0. in liquidation,
Solver Sp. z o.0.,
ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A.,

as part of their business hold current accountdl@t Bank Slaski, via which they perform standard
clearing operations and also invest cash fundsgusérm deposits. Furthermore, ING Bank
Hipoteczny took loans from ING Barfkaski. Similarly, ING BankSlaski maintains bank accounts of
other members of ING Group, for instance ING Le@@and), ING Car Lease and ING Real Estate.
The transactions with the above entities are perdron an arm’s length basis.

ING Bank Slaski performs operations with ING Bank NV and itsbsidiaries on the inter-bank
market. These are both short-term deposits and]@nwell as operations in derivatives: Forex Spot
and Forex Forward, FX options and SWAP transactibhe abovementioned transactions are carried
out on an arm's length basis.

There were also other transactions between theciagst entities and ING BanKlaski. They
originated from agreements concluded as to co-tiperssublease of premises, lease of equipment,
data processing, employees’ insurance contributiteesing of non-current assets and intangible
assets as well as car fleet leasing and management.

In the period 1.01.2008 — 31.12.2008 the followingnsactions were made of the total value
exceeding EURO 500,000:

- In connection with execution of the Co-operatiorrédgment concluded by ING BaSkaski S.A.
and ING Bank NV the remuneration for the servicesviged as to financial consulting in 12
months of 2008 amounted to PLN 32.8 million (ndthllowing the implementation of the
agreement for provision of data processing anchftiiz information analysis services, concluded
by and between ING BanKlaski S.A. and ING Bank NV, the fee for data procegsand
financial information analysis services used by IB@nk Slaski amounted to PLN 10.3 million
(net).

- ING Services Polska provides services to ING Bahdski with regard to lease of hardware
resources. The costs of service were PLN 23.4amillgross).

- ING BankSlaski made a transaction with ING Lease due to sgkleé functional rooms totalling
PLN 14.9 million (gross).

- ING Bank Slaski co-operates with ING Car Lease as to leasingan$ and management of car
fleet. The derivative amount of payment was PLNsHillion in 12 months of 2008 (gross).
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Transactions with related entities (in PLN thousand

31.12.2008

ING Bank NV Other ING Group Subsidiary Associated

entities undertakings undertakings

Receivables
Deposits placed 7 862 990 - - -
Nostro accounts 42 117 275 267 -
Loans - 1500 219 322 367 -
Securities - - 20011 -
Other receivables 5302 23 037 2922 -
Liabilities
Deposits received, repo transaction 5 040 020 285 669 237 634 26 405
Loro accounts 95 026 54 750 - -
Other liabilities 8 259 - 144 -
Off-balance-sheet operations
Contingent liabilities - 1189 935 158 431 -
FX transactions 40369 528 13904 385 - -
Forward transactions 673 840 1727 057 - -
IRS/CIRS 39 590 399 6 928 296 - -
Options 1499 774 1096 749 - -
Revenue and costs
Revenue 187 894 46 061 11 933 213
Costs 65 668 56 184 14 051 3094
31.12.2007

ING Bank NV Other ING Group Subsidiary Associated

entities undertakings undertakings

Receivables
Deposits placed 5591 481 430 72¢ - -
Nostro accounts 56 722 328 476 - -
Loans - 1239 202 111 420 -
Securities - - 30 306 -
Other receivables 74 836 19 267 2 891 -
Liabilities
Deposits received 463 686 125 301 260 077 25186
Loro accounts 11 703 21 858 - -
Other liabilities 194 3586 21¢ -
Off-balance-sheet operations
Contingent liabilities - 54 11¢ 172 027 -
FX transactions 18 324 755 3567 716 - -
Forward transactions 697 396 284 620 - -
IRS/CIRS 28 436 925 507 509 - -
FRA 1551 148 300 088 - -
Options 886291 311 857 - -
Revenue and costs
Revenue 208 140 49711 17 058 202
Costs 103 292 45 078 29 585 2 408
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51. Transactionswith the management staff and employees

Employees of the ING Barfiaski S.A. Group are granted loans on the same tarmdsconditions as
the customers of the Bank (no preferential loamsefoployees exist). Loans for employees disclosed
in the amount of loans for customers as of 31.X3B2@mounted to PLN 75,380 thousand.
As at 31.12.2007, their value amounted to PLN 58ABusand.

Granting of a loan, cash advance, bank guarantdesarety for the Bank's management staff
members is regulated in a separate procedure andamed in accordance with the Ordinance of the
President of ING BanKlaski S.A.

The financial statements for 2008 contain the lpaash advances, bank guarantees and sureties for
the Bank’s management staff (within the meanindidicle 79 of the Banking Law) amounting to
PLN 30,090 thousand. As at 31.12.2007, their vatneunted to PLN 20,373 thousand.

The employees may use various forms of social tassis within the framework of Internal Social
Benefit Funds established in the entities of theupr The balance of money advances granted from
the Internal Social Benefit Funds as of 31.12.286®unts to PLN 17,451 thousand versus 15,961
thousand as at 31.12.2007.

The balance of the In-house Social Benefits Funat &d.12.2008 was PLN 4,639 thousand vis-a-vis
PLN 9,505 thousand as at 31.12.2007.

Remuneration paid in 2008 to the Members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board
of ING Bank Slaski SA.

Remuneration to the Members of the Management B@aféLN thousand)

31.12.2008 31.12.2007
Remuneration and bonuses 10 677 10 610
Benefits 2 159 4 052
TOTAL 12 836 14 662

The total amount of remuneration and bonuses pattlie for 2008 presented above constitutes the
gross amount of remuneration paid or due and payablthe period from January to December 2008
and the 2007 bonus, which was paid out in 200Beatdtal amount of PLN 3,205 thousand.

The members of the Management Board have signeecomopetition agreements after they stop
holding their function on the Bank’'s Management Blodn the event that a Management Board is not
renominated for another term of office or is remalfrom his/ her function, he or she is entitled to
severance pay. Information on allowances owinghéoManagement Board Members is contained in
their employment contracts and shall be paid omlgdse of termination of the employment contract
by the Bank due to other reasons than those gigego termination without notice.
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Remuneration paid to the Members of the Supervi®ogrd of ING BankSlaski S.A. (in PLN
thousand)

31.12.2008 31.12.2007
Remuneration and bonuses 10 677 10 610
Benefits 2159 4 052
TOTAL 12 836 14 662

The Management Board Members and other personsogetplby ING BankSlaski S.A. do not
receive any remuneration for performing functiomstihe governing bodies of subsidiaries and
associates of the ING Barskaski S.A. Group.

As regards members of the Bank Supervisory Bodal following individuals have held shares of
ING BankSlaski: Mr. Mirostaw Ka@mider — 3 shares; Mr. Wojciech Popiotek — 9 shafé® other
members of the Bank Management Board and the Bapkr8isory Board do not hold any shares of
ING BankSlaski S.A.

52. Headcount

The headcount in the Capital Group was as follows:

Headcount 31.12.2008 31.12.2007
Individuals 8 577 8074
FTEs 8413.9 7842.1

53. Events after the balance sheet date

Resignation of the Bank Management Board Member

The Supervisory Board of ING Bartdaski S.A. was informed by Mr Michat Szczurek aboig h
resignation from the position of the Vice-PresidehManagement Board of ING Baiskaski S.A. as
of 16 March 2009. His resignation is connected it transfer to Retail Banking structures of ING
Group in Asia.

Rating change

On 28 January 2009, the ratings of ING Bahiski S.A. (“ING BSK”) assigned by Fitch Ratings Ltd.
(“Fitch”) and Moody's Investors Service Ltd. (“Mopd”) rating agencies were reviewed.
The information in this regard can be found in ite¢inl. Information about the Bank and Capital
Group.

Euro-bonds sale and purchase

In January 2009, the Bank sold Eurobonds classd®of 31 December 2008 to the FVO portfolio.
The face value of the sold Eurobonds was EUR 41fiomi The sale was transacted with an
independent counterparty at an arm’s length.
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After repurchasing, the instruments were classifethe loans and receivables portfolio, and at the
same time hedging connection (FVH) with the IRSrimsents held by the Bank was created.

The result on the Eurobonds sales and purchasesat@ons was negative and amounted
to PLN 533 thousand.

54. Changesto the Business Entity / Capital Group Structure

None.

On 23 December 2008, at the Extraordinary Sharehsld/eeting of ING BSK Development
Sp. z 0.0., a resolution on dissolution of this @amy and putting it into liquidation as of 1 Januar
2009, was adopted.

On 23 December 2008, at the Extraordinary SharemslMeeting of Centrum BankSlaskiego
Sp. z o0.0. w likwidacji (in liquidation) there was resolution adopted on further operation of this
Company, whereunder the Shareholders Meeting diéciderepeal as of 1 January 2009, the
Resolution No. 2/2007 of 23.11.2007 on dissolutérthis Company and thus to stop its liquidation
and decide on the further Company’s operation.

55. Approval of thereport

The consolidated financial report has been appravede Bank Management Board meeting held on
25 February 20009.
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Risk Management in Capital Group of NG Bank Slgski S.A.

All of the Group’s operations involve the analysissessment and management of certain types of risk
or their combination. The most important typesisk generated by financial assets include: theitcred
risk, liquidity risk and market risk that incorptea the FX risk, interest rate risk and pricing.ris
Presented below is a description of managementl dhe risk types that are significant from the
Group’s perspective.

Credit Risk Management

1. Definition of Credit Risk

Credit risk is the possibility of non-collection amounts due to the Group under extended credit and
credit-related facilities, leading to lack of incerand/ or a financial loss.

The credit losses are a derivative of risk and mnestaken by the Bank to reduce them. The Bank
influences the level of losses by the level of iiskccepts, the amount of exposure at risk, toarity
against the risk borne and also — in case of rialerralisation — by direct actions taken to minenis
the losses.
In view of the above, credit risk management cotteesfollowing elements:

- Risk identification and assessment.

- Risk measurement and monitoring.

- Risk mitigation and prevention.

- Development of tools supporting risk identificatiand measurement.

- Provisioning policy.
The credit risk management area refers to: thegpadipn and launch of a credit product, the end-to-
end lending process and all units involved in thoseesses.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
- Loans and receivables to other banks 7 787 225 15 183 665

- Financial assets measured at fair value

through profit and loss 15128 584 7907564
- Investments 18 050 922 9 388 273
- Derivative hedge instruments 197 003 4572
- Loans and receivables to customers 25742 839 16 379 138
- Receivables presented in other assets 8 213 0
- Extended contingent liabilities, including: 14 100 914 12 833 876

- credit card limits 685 445 590 568
- unutilised credit lines 9300616 6 615 924
- unutilised overdraft facilities 1280 767 2334841
- guarantees and letters of credit 2797 993 2079 315
- third-party deposits 36 093 1213228
Total 81 007 487 61 697 088
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2. Organisational Structure of Risk Management

For credit risk management, the organisational citre of the Bank includes the following
organisational units:

— Supervisory Board of the Bank,

- Management Board of the Bank together with the i€fedlicy Committee that approve certain
internal credit risk-related normative acts as péatheir powers,

— Credit Policy, Procedures and Strategic Projectsaeent,
- Risk Modelling, Monitoring and Reporting Department

— Transactions Management and Approval Strategicn@ieand Country Risk Management
Department,

— Transaction Approval and Management for North Depeant
— Transaction Approval and Management for South Diepet
- Retail Credit Risk Management Department,

— Monitoring and Collection Department,

— Problems Loans Department,

— Credit Risk Inspection Department,

— Operational units and credit analysts,

- Internal Audit Department.

The mission of these units is to ensure propemicaldbetween the commercial objectives of the Group
and a risk appetite level that is acceptable far @roup, while taking account of the existing
economic environment.

This objective is achieved by taking the followiactions:

- developing the principles of credit policy, as wedl processes and procedures for acceptance of
the permissible credit risk level towards entreptgs and business partners; supporting the
development of tools for risk identification and asarement; enforcing the implementation of
credit decisions; establishing provisions for credsk, and initiating changes that may be
necessary to manage the credit process,

— conducting credit analysis and taking credit decisj

— raising the level of credit- and counterparty @skareness among the Bank’s employees in order
to mitigate those risks,

- managing problem loans to minimise the risk anddesf the Bank,

— conducting an independent and objective assessofighe effectiveness, appropriateness and
efficiency of the Bank’s internal audit system, lehensuring the identification of weaknesses or
gaps in its organisation and functioning

The commercial functions are separated from thetioms assessing the transaction- and client risk
(the four-eye control principles).

Presented below in more detail are the roles aspbresibilities of the individual organisational tsni
involved in the credit risk management procesdl@ BankSlaski S.A.

2.1 Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board assess on a periodic basiadgbomplishment by the Management Board of
the Bank’s credit risk management assumptions aatkgy.
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2.2 Management Board

The Management Board of ING Baflkski S.A.:

— approve the Credit Policy that defines the strategiproach to credit risk and the acceptable risk
level,

- appoint and approve the composition of the Credliclk Committee through which it ensures
ongoing oversight of the credit risk managementess,

— provide periodic reports, at least once a yeath¢oBank’s Supervisory Board regarding the risk
level and profile, as well as amendments to thaliCRolicy,

— promote implementation and execution of the Crédilicy by actions taken by the individual
members of the Management Board in charge of tlesjpective subordinate areas. Among the
members of the Management Board, there is a Che¥ Rfficer who oversees the credit- and
market risk management.

- review the efficiency of methods used for identifyiimpaired credit exposures and defining the
related write-offs; assess the adequacy and setysitof the methods to changes of external
conditions,

- review the processes and the methods of monitdhiegyuality of credit exposures.

2.3 Committees

The following permanent committees are in placéhatBank whose powers include the credit risk
areas:

— Credit Policy Committee (or KPK) whose key objeetig to oversee the implementation and
control the adherence of the organisational unit$NG Bank Slaski S.A. to the “Credit
Policy Rules”,

— Credit Committees:
- of ING BankSlaski S.A. (the Bank Credit Committee, or KKB),
— the Restructuring Committee.

In the strategic clients area decisions are taketwo individuals authorised by the Credit Policy
Committee, or KPK.

2.4 Credit- and Market Risk Management Division

There is a separate division for the credit- andketarisk management in the organisational strectur
of the Bank.

The mission of the Credit- and Market Risk Manageniivision is to maintain an adequate level of
the credit- and market risk at the Bank.

The division is headed by the Bank Executive Doesubordinated and reporting to the Chief Risk
Officer.

The Bank Executive Director (Division Director) egees, among other things, departments whose
function includes system management of the Bardt'parate credit risk.

With regard to the department responsible for reteedit risk management (Retail Credit Risk
Management Department) reporting is performed tirég the Chief Risk Officer.

Within the above departments, there are units/ seaesponsible for the policy and procedures,
examination and modelling of the credit risk, adlae the monitoring and reporting of the credskri
of the portfolio.

The tasks of the individual departments involvethia credit risk management process are as follows:
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Credit Policy, Procedures and Strategic ProjestPolicy Department

to develop effective systems for credit risk mamaget by maintenance and expansion of the
credit policy principles and description of proasand procedures in order to ensure a proper
balance between the current commercial objectifeth® Bank and the adequate awareness
level/ risk appetite level, while taking accountloé market conditions in Poland,

to ensure effective functioning of the risk ared arocess, in line with the current conditions, by
management, participation in projects, modelling dinganisation, review of processes, reacting
to the needs of the front office, operations, immatation of the requests of the Bank
Management Board and ING Group Head Office.

Risk Modelling, Monitoring and Reporting Department

to define and produce management reporting inittkearea.

to support the management of the client and copaisr credit risk and the transaction risk by
developing tools used for the risk identificatiomdameasurement, monitoring and reporting in
respect of the credit portfolio quality, making eeanendations concerning the provisions for
credit risk; supporting the units managing the rdli@and counterparty credit risk and the
transaction risk in regard to the legal and adrtriai®n items.

Transactions Management and Approval Strategi€lients and Country Risk Management
Department, Transaction Approval and Management forNorth Department/ Transaction
Approval and Management for South Department

to manage the credit risk related to client fundiggoroviding advice in respect of the risk in the
process of taking credit decisions, executing traecisions, recommending required changes in
the credit process management.

to supply important data for the credit policy piples as well as processes and procedures in
order to accept the acceptable level of the whidedint risk.

to raise the level of credit- and counterparty gskareness among the Bank’s employees in order
to mitigate those risks.

to recommend the level of provisions and necesshanges in the management of credit
processes and defining products and credit patieyrder to mitigate the risk.

Retail Credit Risk Management Department

managing the credit risk via: measurement of islel, defining the criteria of risk acceptance,
monitoring the quality of credit portfolio, evalirag potential losses, recommending the financial
provisions and necessary changes in managing dldit process, definitions of products, credit
policy having in view decreasing the risk,

valuing current and expected risk level for fixitng risk appetite,
development and up-dating calculation models dditapacity,

initiating the preparing and up-dating of statistt@weptance models (scoring cards for retail
credits) and its implementation,

creating and implementing the impairment rules,

increasing, among Bank employees, credit risk donsoess, possibilities and methods of its
reducing.

Monitoring and Collection Departament

collection of the delinquent retail loans to minmeicredit risk and losses for all retail segments
by conducting collection actions for delinquenttonsers,
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— co-operation with Retail Credit Risk Managemenidtntify adverse trends and non-performing
segments in retail asset portfolios,

— supervision of outsourced collection entities aaghl agencies.

2.10 Problem Loans Department

— to manage problem (wholesale) loans aimed at maaitian of risk and losses for the Bank,
resulting from the non-performing portfolio,

— to co-operate with the Regional Risk Managementi@es (WZR) and Front Office units in
respect of debt recovery and restructuring of pnobloans,

— to exercise functional supervision over the RedidRsk Management Sections (WZR) in
respect for restructuring and recovery of probleank.

2.11 Credit Risk Inspection Department

- to verify on a regular’basis the credit documeatatind assess the functioning of the credit
process at ING BanlSlaski S.A. at the front-office and back-office levelhe ability to
recommend changes to the existing policies andegees to the Credit Policy Committee),

- to analyse selected loans and adequacy of loc&l anagement during regular inspections at
the Bank organisational units;

- to identify potentially problematic areas and rexpto the signals coming from the organisation;

— to control the adherence to the transaction appreniria; the process of loan disbursement;
behaviour patters/ statistics regarding repaymestégistics of overdue repayments; adequacy of
monitoring of exposures and risk categories; andectness of the credit data entered in the IT
system and debt collection.

2.12  Operational Units and Credit Analysts

They represent expert knowledge on the risk chariatits of clients

2.13 Internal Audit Department (IAD)

The key mission of IAD is to provide the Bank Maaawgnt Board with an independent and objective
assessment of the appropriateness and efficientlieoBank’s internal audit system, ensuring the
identification of weaknesses or gaps in its orgatios and functioning.

The Internal Audit Department carries out reguladies of the Corporate Governance Model, credit
risk policy and procedures. Its observations (togetvith the proposed changes to the policy and
procedures) are then translated into a plan obmagtthat need to be taken before approval by the
Credit Policy Committee.

The predominant objective of IAD is to identify thisks existing in the Bank’s operations and to
assess and propose actions enhancing control andgerment of those risks. By its activities, 1AD
contributes to improving the organisation and managnt of the Bank and to accomplishing the
objectives set by the Bank.

The scope of IAD operations covers the whole bssiraperations conducted by ING BSK, all of its
organisational cells and units, as well as thermsgdional units of the capital group of ING BSK.
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3. Credit Decision — Making Process

Decision-taking powers in the individual credit esas(credit committees at different levels) are
separated from the decisions concerning the cpedlity and risk management.

The credit decisions in credit process for regplantfolio are exercised by two Approval Signatories
(SAP) and taken in Signatory Approval Process (Ssywn in Credit Manual. Some exceptions

apply to:
— decisions taken by Bank Credit Committee (KKB) -plgpto the largest credit exposures
mentioned in Credit Manual,

— decisions taken by one Approval Signatory — app§FAST TRACK” credit process.

The delegated authority level is co-related with lével of credit risk arising from the client riakd
from the transaction risk. As the credit risk risia® decisions are taken by collective individwal®

— by their nature — have more extensive experieaicd,thus the ability of broad and thorough risk
identification.

Decision-taking level for credit decisions concagregular credit exposures is determined based on
the client’s risk grade and the following elements:

- the total exposure of ING Barfidaski SA Group towards the debtor and the memberthef
capital group (within Article 3 paragraph 1 item d@fdthe Accounting Act of 29 September 1994)
of which the debtor is also the member, as weédragies related to the debtor by personal ties by
spouses (only when the Bank funds an entreprenearisva private individual),

— the subject matter of the credit decision in questi

4. Management of corporate credit risk approach
4.1. Reviews and Credit Risk Rating

Commercial functions who grant credits are sepdratam the process of transaction- and client risk
rating (four-eye control principle). Credit riskriated (by the Risk Manager) based on the prin@ple
separation from the commercial functions (Relatigm#lanager).

The following parties are involved in the procegsigk rating: Rating Owner (Relationship Manager)
and Risk Manager.

The Rating Owner inputs the financial data relatethe client and has exclusive responsibilitytfoe
correctness of the risk rating, including Review.

There is only one owner of a borrower’s risk ratifige credit restructuring unit may become a rating
owner for borrowers rated 18 to 22. The Rating Qwereates a draft rating, using the appropriate
Rating Model for a specific target client group.eTiser may deviate from the suggested model if he
or she provides the appropriate written justificati

The final rating is determined by the Risk Managerpy the Appeal Judge if an appeal has been
made.

The Risk Manager is responsible for:

- Verifying that the appropriate rating model hasrbased for the borrower;
- Verifying that financial and non-financial data ergd are correct;

— Challenging un-audited financial data;

- Finalizing the rating.
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The outcomes of specific models may be subjectglidrary adjustments in that the ultimate rating
grades are determined as part of the appeal process

A one notch difference (positive or negative) betwéhe rating calculated by the rating model ard th
view of the appellant (the person initiating anegdpis sufficient to start a rating appeal.

Reasons for a rating appeal are for example:
— The rating model is not appropriate for the Borrgvead/or

— Circumstances that may not (yet) be captured byatieg model but which are likely to have a
(usually negative) effect on the borrower’s PD,ezsally if:

— Borrower has or is expected to default on any fterobligation to any party;
— Major disruption of activities;
— Change in legislation that will seriously impact tfinancial performance.

IT system in Bank, utilized also in whole ING Grougupports credit risk assessment process and
enables, as well, centralized gathering data &raisng grades of clients.

4.2. Frequency of Risk Rating Reviews and Updatdi any)

Only the Rating Owner can review the risk ratingeTollowing rules will apply to rating reviews:

— A risk rating must be reviewed at least annuallyrigk rating is considered overdue after 12
months from the last approval date of the risknti

— The Rating Owner should take appropriate actiogitiwer review or cancel the risk rating if the
Bank has terminated the relationship with the Bemoand no credit risk remains. The Rating
Owner should perform an interim re-rating when tladue of one or more risk drivers has
materially changed. Events that could cause a deraion for a re-rating are for example a
change of risk rating of the influencing parentiarhange of any of the qualitative risk drivers,

- Without a review till the end of 18 months from tlast approval date of the risk rating, a risk
rating will automatically expire,

4.3. Concentration Limits

To mitigate the concentration risk, the Bank obssrthe following exposure concentration limits as
defined in Article 71 of the Banking Law Act:

- 20% of the Bank’s own funds — for exposures totiestirelated to the Bank,
- 25% of the Bank’s own funds — for exposures to o#mtities,

- 800% of the Bank’s own funds — for the aggregateunn of the Bank’s “large” exposures, i.e.
exposures exceeding 10% of the Bank’s own funds.

Furthermore, in keeping with the statutory ruled asmcommendations of the Banking Regulator, the
Bank sets internal concentration limits for expesuio specific sectors, the collaterals acceptadljta
monitors on a regular basis the concentration ¢eirelthe geographical areas of its operations (the
Regions).

The Bank sets the statutory concentration limitsaamonthly basis. Based on the data verified, the
Bank prepares a report covering the up-to-datenbalaf the Bank's own funds and the individual

statutory limits. The report is then distributed aarg the Bank units concerned, including among
others: the Corporate Banking Centres, the RegBraiches, the departments of the Credit Division,
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Risk Division and the Internal Audit Department.eTRegional Branches re-distribute the report
among their respective subordinate units.

The Bank monitors the utilisation of limits by pegmg a specification of clients and groups of teda
clients, and by comparing their existing exposorthe current limits.

On the operational level, the control of concergratimits is performed during the writing of crédi
applications, approving specific transactions aadoglic reviews.

Bank’s greatest exposures (exceeding 10% of owdsjun

exposure in PLN million
31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
Client 1 (group) 2384.4 11333
Client 2 800.4 410.2
Client 3 (group) 736.8 484.1
Client 4 (group) 725.4 363.4
Client5 617.0 0.0
Client 6 534.3 427.3
Client 7 (group) 509.9 362.4
Client 8 501.0 300.8
Client 9 (group) 411.4 0.0
Client 10 367.1 335.3
Client 11 0.0 276.6
Client 12 0.0 351.5

To avoid excessive credit risk concentration in $leetors, the Bank monitors the exposures in the
individual economy sectors. Based on analyseB#mk sets the desired directions where its exposure
should increase, and the sectors with unfavourdélelopment perspectives in which the exposure
should be lowered.

The above tasks also include among other thingdetermination of limits for groups of sectors with
a material share in the Bank’s portfolio, i.e. whdetal share in the entire credit portfolio isward
60%, and the individual share of a given sectahancorporate portfolio is in excess of 5%. Linfds
the individual sectors are determined by the Crediicy Committee.
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Industry concentration of exposures to corporaientb

exposure (on-balance and off-balance)
industry 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
exposure in share in total exposure in share in total
PLN million exposure (%) | PLN million exposure (%)
financial intermediation 4 026.8 14.1% 3234.2 14.8%
wholesale trade 3698.9 12.9% 2 885.2 13.2%
constructions industry 17957 6.3% 1382.5 6.3%
real estate services 1581.2 5.5% 1499.6 6.9%
retail trade 1441.0 5.0% 1038.5 4.7%
remaining services connected with running business 1 314.8 4.6% 798.5 3.6%
foodstuff and beverage production 1186.1 4.1% 12735 5.8%
power industry 1132.6 4.0% 930.0 4.3%
public administration and national defense 11143 3.9% 714.9 3.3%
fuel industry 943.9 3.3% 529.1 2.4%
tabacco industry 915.3 3.2% 347.7 1.6%
ready-made metal goods production 762.4 2.7% 468.9 2.1%
mechanical vehicles sale, repair and service 746.4 2.6% 508.2 2.3%
equipment rent 744.2 2.6% 0.0 0.0%
engineering industry 648.6 2.3% 707.5 3.2%
post office and telecommunications 605.0 2.1% 464.1 2.1%
remaining non-metal raw materials industries 603.5 2.1% 495.9 2.3%
chemicals and chemical goods production 528.9 1.9% 415.9 1.9%
rubber industry 474.2 1.7% 423.6 1.9%
metals production 355.9 1.2% 413.1 1.9%
wood and paper industry 339.8 1.2% 233.6 1.1%
auxiliary service for transportation 303.7 1.1% 103.8 0.5%
agriculture, forestry, fishery 2945 1.0% 341.9 1.6%
other 3021.5 10.6% 2673.8 12.2%
Total 28 579.2 100.0% 21 884.0 100.0%

Exposure concentration in the geographical areasoisitored according to the regional division into
the branch network. A 20% limit of the Bank’s topalrtfolio is adopted for controlling concentration
at the level of Regions. Exceeding this limit magder setting a geographical limit.

However, since geographical concentration is mara does not increase the credit risk, so far there
has been no need for ING Ba8lgski to set geographical limits.

Considering the potential risk level, the Bankandiuced limits for mortgage loans in accordance with
Recommendation S of the Banking Supervision Comomd®r the following types of facilities:

- loans with low down-payment (insured)

— newly granted loans indexed to foreign exchange rat

— loans secured with mortgage

- housing loans

Adherence to the statutory and internal conceomatiandards is the subject of a monthly risk repor
distributed among the Management Board, CreditcRdbommittee and Regional Managers. The
report is also presented to the Supervisory BoatldeoBank on a periodic basis.

Over the year 2008, the exposure concentrationdivére not overrun.
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4.4. Repayment Security and Other Forms of CrediRisk Mitigation

Even though repayment security is a major factat #fiows the Bank to mitigate the lending risksit
the Group’s policy to extend loans in amounts amdesms that allow for regular repayment without
the need to recover the receivables by liquidatiegsecurity.

The Bank accepts all types of repayment securitynjgied by the law; however, the choice in specific
cases is conditioned by various factors, includmpgarticular:

- the client’s ability to offer specific types of sgity
- the type and duration of exposure
— the level of client’s risk
- the level of transaction’s risk
- the liquidity of security offered (the ability t@sh it easily)
- the collateral value
The BankCollateral Policycovers, among others, the following areas:

— indications of the criteria for accepting the ctdlal in the capital requirement for
credit risk calculation process,

- setting the general rules for the Bank to obsenlenvchoosing the collateral forms,
inclusive of the acceptable credit risk level,

— adjustment to the collateral-related procedureth¢orequirements of the new LGD models
that are in harmony with the advanced internahgai method (the so-called AIRB).
Moreover the Collateral Policy of the Bank taketoimccount in particular those aspects of the
Resolution No. 1/2007 which concern the applicabbhGD models, legal reliability of security and
its monitoring. The process of security review adogg to the new regulations takes place gradually
and shall be finished in the first half of 2008.

The LGD models developed for corporate assetsasedoon statistically estimated recovery ratios for
specific groups of security. The estimations agedaon an analysis of historical recovery processes
the Bank. The rates of recover for specific typeseaurity determine their fair value.

The recovery rate for a specific type of securipehds on the character of the security item,gal |
form of the security and the efficiency of the s#guliquidation process. The final level of the
recovery is also influenced by the costs of deliecbon and the costs of keeping a classified
exposure in the Bank’s books (until the debt i®veced or cancelled).

Apart from the classic types of security (tangibled personal), the Bank also applies additional
instruments to mitigate the risk of loss, namelgliidnal covenants in loan agreements. As parhef t
basic, or standard, covenants, the Bank applieegree and financial clauses. The scope of the
covenant or combination of covenants to be apmlegubnds on: the term, type of lending product, the
specific organisational and legal form or the bastobjects of the borrower, the risk rating of the
client. By including certain covenants in the ctedjreements, the Bank is sometimes able to give up
some or all of the repayment security.

The structure of individual security types is daified.
The following types of collateral have the biggeisare:

— suretyships and corporate guarantees — there arargars from different industry sectors
with different economic and financial standing witithis group. Therefore, there is no
significant risk in terms of concentration. In cadeassuming a specific recovery ratio from
collateral, greater than 0%, it is necessary torgxe the economic and financial standing of
the guarantor and determine the risk rating assitnvent or speculative.

- mortgages — this is due to the fact that mortgageslly secure long-term investment loans.
Furthermore, mortgages are the main security famddo finance commercial real estate.
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Collaterals accepted from wholesale clients at falue per the main four types of collaterals

Fair value of collaterals in PLN million
Type of collateral

31 Dec 2008

Mortgages 2 408.2
Pledges 955.7
Guarantees, of which: 778.5
- banking guarantees 65.2

- governmental guarantees 35.2
Cash collaterals 244.3
Assignment of debt claims 134.5
Total 4521.2

4.5. Exposure Classification Methodology

Credit I mpairment Recognition

The events that provide the basis for credit impairt recognition are the events that occurred in
respect of a certain asset or a group of assetshatdaffected in a negative manner the amount of
expected cash flows. The Bank adopted the follovistgof impairment events for corporate credit
receivables:

— Bankruptcy/ threat of bankruptcy: the Borrower wasnounced or will soon be announced
bankrupt (whether by the Bank, by third party oritsrown initiative), which will result in failure
to repay or delay in repayment;

— Default in repayment: the Borrower stopped to reghayprincipal or interest/ commission and the
said default lasts:

— For corporate clients (apart from financial indiiduns) — above 90 days;

— For financial institutions and government authesti- 0 days or more; however, in that
case a 14-day explanation term is applied to déternvhether the default in payment is
caused by deterioration of the financial institoteocredit standing or operational reasons.
Default in payment for operational reasons is mots@ered an impairment event.

— The Bank assesses that the borrower will facecditfy in repaying the debt: the Borrower has
such material financial problems that they canfoe regative impact (probability of at least 50%)
on future cash flows under a given credit recewalthe 1Y perspective is considered in the
assessment);

— Credit receivable restructuring not resulting faymgnercial reasons: due to the borrower’s
financial problems, the Bank restructured the ¢rexposure, by granting facilities and exceptions
to the borrower, which resulted in reduction of firesent value of expected future cash flows
from the credit receivable below its balance value.

The case where occurrence of at least one of tbeeraBntioned events is declared stands for
appearance of impairment.
Customer Risk Class Determination in case of regular portfolio

Each entity with the Bank’s credit exposure musteha rating assigned as is used in a standard
manner at the Bank. Determination of the custorigl ¢lass forms an integral part of the Bank’s
credit risk evaluation process for corporate chent
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For entrepreneurs’ exposures, the Bank uses a&e gating, employed throughout ING Group. Its
classes present the debtor-related risk. The cestmnassigned to a given risk class based on the:

— financial model, using the data from the debtargiicial reports,
— evaluation of qualitative factors,
- financial standing of the parent company.

Investment Grade 1-10

Investment grade comprises the entities which veesssas encumbered with a relatively low risk;
however, in making risk classification, we take @aott of the threats arising from economic and
business conditions.

Speculative Grade 11- 17

It is a group of a relatively large bucket of rigivels, and thus the characteristics of extremssela
within this group varies considerably. In genevad, may say that:

— the entities from top classes under this groupf@féling their financial obligations at present,
however the debt cover ratio (principal and intgreger a longer term is not certain, and thus the
safety margin is limited; there is real threat oédit risk growth due to unfavourable business or
economic conditions;

- the borrowers assigned to the top risk classes \{tbest classes from that group) can be
characterised by uncertain income perspectivessevguality of assets and over a longer term the
risk of equity mismatch and possibility of loss oaence.

Problem Loan Grade 18- 22

This risk group comprises the Borrowers who showggdlicit symptoms of problems with debt
service or who are in the default situation.

Borrowers from the risk group (and also the onesgasd to class 17 or better, whose exposures are
covered by regulations are classified by Inten€laee Units only, managing a given client exposure.

For:

— strategic clients the global ING Group model is lagab— the debtor is assigned to one of 17
corporate client risk classes in the brackets ftoim 17,

— corporate clients the local SME PD model is applidtie debtor is assigned to one of 9 corporate
client risk classes in the brackets from 9 to 17.

Corporate Credit Risk Management Tools

Further to the implementation of the Resolution @007 by the Banking Supervision Commission,
whereby the stipulations of the CRD Directive imte of bank’s capital adequacy, compliant with the
New Capital Accord (Basel Il) were instituted, retyears 2007-2008 the Bank took several actions in
the credit risk management area in respect of¢dbpesand detailed principles of capital requiremment
determination. Following the ING Group’s decisianmplement the Advanced Internal Rating Based
Approach (or AIRB), the Bank prepared and impleredniocal and global models for basic risk
parameters:

— PD (probability of default),

— LGD (loss given default),

— EAD (exposure at default)

for various classes of assets in line with AIRB.
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Among others, the Bank uses the following ratinglais for corporate exposure classes:

— For local segment of Strategic clients recognisedustomers with annual revenues above EUR
100M

— Global risk rating model (statistical PD model)sed on the global ING Group approach,

— Global LGD and EAD models (hybrid statistical-experodels), built on the ING Group
level.

— For local segments of Mid-sized and Big compan8ME asset class) with annual revenues from
PLN 800 ths. to EUR 100M):

— Local risk rating model (statistical SME PD modebuilt in the Bank for Polish
companies,

— Local LGD and EAD models (hybrid statistical-experbdels), built in the Bank on the
basis of internal data and ING Group’s methodology.

Besides above, the Bank uses also global modelsefposures to banks and other financial
institutions and to sovereigns and local governsient

The models are employed to calculate the econoapitat allowing its level to be optimised. They
contribute to a better quantification of the cre@k for the Bank’s portfolio. It is on their basihat
the provisions under IFRS, the efficiency of Banyé&formance (RAROC, economic profit, goodwill
management) and credit prices are estimated, aothieg positions.

While employing the risk models, the Bank makes afsadvanced IT systems supporting the client
and transaction risk rating process. An integrddd@ Group’s environment is the primary IT tool
used to manage credit risk. As this tool combireapglications needed to fully meet the New Cdpita
Accord requirements, it enables the Bank to mamaleeffectively not only on the Bank’s Branch
level, but also on the level of individual relatgtrip manager’s portfolio.
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Credit exposure to corporate clients by risk grades

exposure in PLN million

risk rating 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
01 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
02 0.0 0.1 0.0 2.3
03 1 758.0 14145 1548.4 409.2
04 1.2 4.0 0.0 2.0
05 431.6 11.9 0.0 4.7
06 381.8 233.4 56.7 3.3
07 227.9 159.6 420.0 470.6
08 1328.7 764.3 1017.9 596.7
09 1623.1 1758.0 1116.2 1104.9
10 1 060.3 957.0 792.3 1501.2
11 2 066.9 2025.8 860.8 1094.6
12 1367.0 1584.4 1 030.7 1273.9
13 2 158.5 1261.5 1444.2 1327.9
14 1 368.2 619.7 1423.8 791.6
15 1111.5 575.6 1343.4 611.8
16 867.4 364.1 542.8 268.1
17 473.2 110.4 287.7 66.8
18 56.9 30.1 41.6 23.1
19 95.7 13.6 23.3 3.9
20 167.4 4.9 87.9 4.3
21 4.0 0.0 4.0 0.0
22 136.8 0.2 281.3 0.0
Total 16 686.1 11 893.1 12 323.0 9 560.9
Credit exposures to corporate clients by overdugsda
exposure in PLN million
”“”Z,?,eerrgf,g s 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance

0 16 301.3 11 885.8 11 929.4 9542.3
1-30 143 .4 6.9 40.8 14.6
31-60 15.7 0.0 28.2 4.0
61-90 14.4 0.4 16.3 0.0
91-180 54.5 0.0 22.1 0.0
181-365 34.( 0.0 19.9 0.0
>365 122.8 0.0 266.3 0.0
Total 16 686.1 11 893.1 12 323.0 9 560.9
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Credit exposure to corporate clients under IBNRedimed But Not Reported) impairment provisions

by overdue days

exposure in PLN million
number of days
overdue 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance

0 16 228.6 11 880.7] 11 882.7 9 540.9
1-30 125.4 6.9 39.0 14.6
31-60 13.2 0.0 3.3 11
61-90 7.5 0.4 10.6 0.0
91-180 0.9 0.0 0.1 0.0
181-365 1.4 0.0 13.3 0.0
>365 0.7 0.0 0.8 0.0
Total 16 377.9 11 888.0 11 949.8 9 556.6

Credit exposure to corporate clients under ISFAlfidually Significant Financial Asset) impairment
provision by risk grades

exposure in PLN million
risk rating 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
20 147.4 1.8 75.8 3.0
21 3.9 0.0 0.0 0.0
22 103.3 0.1 195.0 0.0
Total 254.6 1.9 270.8 3.0

Credit exposure to corporate clients under ISFAlflidually Significant Financial Asset) impairment
provision by overdue days

exposure in PLN million
TEWET o 5y 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance

0 64.2 1.9 41.4 0.0
1-30 14.4 0.0 0.8 0.0
31-60 0.1 0.0 22.3 3.0
61-90 4.6 0.0 0.0 0.0
91-180 51.2 0.0 17.5 0.0
181-365 27.1 0.0 4.5 0.0
>365 93.0 0.0 184.3 0.0
Total 254.6 1.9 270.8 3.0
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Credit exposure to corporate clients under INSFAdi¥idually Not-Significant Financial Asset)
impairment provision by risk grades

exposure in PLN million
risk rating 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
20 20.0 3.1 12.1 1.4
21 0.1 0.0 4.0 0.0
22 33.5 0.1 86.3 0.0
Total 53.6 3.2 102.4 1.4

Credit _exposure to corporate clients under INSFAdi¥idually Not-Significant Financial Asset)
impairment provision by overdue days

exposure in PLN million
number of days
overdue 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance

0 8.5 3.2 5.2 1.4
1-30 3.4 0.0 1.0 0.0
31-60 24 0.0 2.6 0.0
61-90 2.3 0.0 5.7 0.0
91-180 2.4 0.0 4.5 0.0
181-365 515 0.0 2.2 0.0
>365 29.1 0.0 81.2 0.0
Total 53.6 3.2 102.4 1.4

4.6. Restructuring of credit exposures

In some cases, ING Bartiaski S.A. will work with an obligor and its othereditors (if any) to
restructure the obligor’s business and its findralidigations in order to minimize any financiabkes
to the creditors as a whole, and ING Bataski S.A. in particular. This can be accomplishewtigh
many means available to the creditors, the mosnommof which are:

- extending the repayment period,

- selling assets,

- selling business lines of the obligor,

- forgoing part of the financial obligations,
- a combination of the above.

The decision to enter into such a restructuringldse only after careful internal assessment and
approval by the appropriate (internal) delegatethaities. Once a restructuring is completed, the
obligor is again subject to normal credit risk moring procedures.

During 2008 ING Banlklaski S.A. restructured performing loans totaling P@Bl56 million, that we
believe would have become impaired if we had nsiroetured them.
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5. Management of retail credit risk approach

The Bank regards all the retail receivables (fradividual and small business clients) as indivitual
non-significant as well as calculates and makesvegilt charges and provisions pursuant to the
collective approach.

The expert methodology for estimation of charged provisions, inclusive of parameters used for
their calculation, is admissible if one of the éolling prerequisites arises:

- the portfolio size and age and/or number of caségest to impairment in the period under
analysis is not sufficient for statistical or matiagtical estimation,

- the data quality is insufficient for adequate eation of charges or provisions,

- an essential change took place in the Bank's ecan@mvironment, level of risk appetite,
strategies adopted for receivables recovery,

— adopted statistical or mathematical methods oimegion do not correspond to the regulatory
requirements or those set by ING Group.

The justification behind the expert methodology asdessment of its results is verified separately f
each case and is subject to approval by the Ciradity Committee. The same principles are applied
for the use of data and observations obtained fotimer institutions, inclusive of the data source
acceptance.

Loan impairment triggers

- the Borrower has stopped repaying the principalinderest/ commission and the delay in
repayment continues over 90 days. In case of oaftrticilities (personal accounts and current
accounts of small business clients) this condiiscapplicable only for exposures over PLN 200;

- with regard to consumer loans: the Borrower (irdlinzil) has exposures other than the exposure in
question, which demonstrate the premises of imgartnunder item 1 and all these exposures
belong to the group of consumer loans (hon-housitagtgage);

- with regard to housing/mortgage loans: the Borro(uedividual) has exposures other than the
exposure in question, which demonstrate the prenv$émpartment under item 1 and all these
exposures belong to the group of housing/ mortd@aes (non-consumer);

- the Borrower (small business) has exposures othan tthe exposure in question, which
demonstrate the premises of impartment under item 1

— upon impairment the Borrower correctly servicesdiebt; however, the period of correct service
is shorter than 3 months (for debt overdue by mgdo than 6 months);

— upon impairment the Borrower correctly servicesdbbt; however, the period of correct service
is shorter than 6 months (for debt overdue by lotigen 6 months);

— the Borrower has been or will be declared banksopn, which shall result in the failure to repay
the debt or delay in its repayment (the premisdiepjn particular to the borrowers from small
business segment);

- the credit agreement has been terminated;

— the credit receivables are covered with restrusturDue to financial difficulties experienced by
the borrower, the Bank restructured the credit syp® by providing the borrower with convenient
solutions or concessions which result in reducheydurrent value of expected future cash flows
due to the credit receivables to the level belosvithlance sheet value of these receivables. On the
other hand, the revision of lending terms for comuia reasons (inclusive of interest rate change
due to market conditions) does not constitute trempse for impairment. The restructuring
principles and method of their treatment from theinp of view of impairment charges
(provisions) are determined by separate procedures.

The starting point for grouping exposures into fodids pursuant to the collective approach are the
principles introduced by the New Capital Accorde(do-called Basel 1), which distinguish three basi
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groups of retail products: renewable, mortgage emasumer loans. The risk drivers contingency
within a group constitutes the basis for groupifige product and its features function as the basic
grouping criteria. Criteria of the premises for mimment based on the Basle concept of “default”
derive from the product definition. Since the Baapkplies the scoring cards (statistical acceptance
models), the existing acceptance model constianesdditional premise for grouping.

Additionally, the grouping is based on:

— type and definition of product,

- type of collateral,

— business positioning of product (e.g. separatigoroflucts not offered),
— other elements of acceptance model,

— organisation of credit process.

The separated portfolio should be characterised ®tevant number of cases to ensure the statistica
recurrence of phenomena. For the purpose of $tatistmodels development it is assumed the
minimum number of cases in a given category (eefaudt) should amount to 300 per portfolio. For
the parameters adopted based on historical obg®rsathis value should not be lower than 100. The
parameters accepted on the basis of smaller podfate subject to verification by experts.

For each portfolio we distinguish:

— IBNR patrt,

- impaired part,

— impaired — non risk part, also referred to as th@oRBfolio (no further recovery expected).
The Bank applies the following criteria for distirighing the B portfolio:

- the following period has passed since the impaitnpgamises emergence: 24 months for the
portfolio of consumer and small business loanand@ths for housing loans,

— there are no premises of the debtor having eitheiricome sufficient to repay arrears or assets
from which the Bank could recover the receivabled there are no premises that this situation
would change in foreseeable future,

— the debtor is covered with bankruptcy procedurestaere are justified premises that the Bank
shall not recover any amount or shall recover imfiicant amounts within this process.

The collective approach to estimation and creatiboharges (provisions) is based on the principles
introduced by the New Capital Accord (the so-calBakel II) and the concept of expected loss. In
view of the fact that pursuant to IAS the provisare established for the actually incurred logs an
not the expected one, the Basle model parameterssabject to modification. The following
parameters are used for calculating the provisions:

— PD, or probability of default by the client deten®il for each sub-portfolio of retail and Small
Business receivables,

- LGD, or loss given default recorded for receivabdssa result of their incomplete recovery,
determined for each sub-portfolio of retail and $Basiness receivables,

- EAD, or exposure at default — the amount of curtemiince sheet exposure increased by the
balance sheet equivalents of unutilised credisline

The parameter modification derives from the fagit tthe Basle model defines the probability of
expected loss in the period of next 12 months, edwepursuant to IAS the provisions are established
for actual losses. The modification is related e period assumed for the loss to be recognised
(revealed, identified).

PD parameter is modified based on the concept efgence period, which generally is shorter than
12 months. The emergence period depends amongathehe following factors:

— segment to which the borrower is classified;
- type of product.
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Adjustment of PD to the IAS requirements consistgdducing the parameter’'s time horizon and
pushing it closer to the current balance sheet date

For the retail and small business portfolio, the &&inition for product groups is based on the
estimation of probability for one of the followirtgses:

- the Borrower has stopped repaying the principahtarest for longer than 90 days;
— the Borrower will be declared bankrupt (applicaidlésmall Business);

— the credit agreement is terminated,;

— the receivables will be subject to restructuring;

PD calculated in this manner is mapped (allocated)dividual rating grades.

According to Basel |ILGD parameter signifies the loss to be incurredh®yBank at a given credit
exposure in case of the borrower’s solvency. LGQjiien as a percentage of the exposure at the
moment of the borrower becoming insolvent (EAD). LGs a derivative of the adopted legal
collateral, i.e. type of collateral and its valligyidation).

LGD for the retail portfolio is calculated basedtbe quotient of discounted cash flows on accoant a
of the impairment till the report date and the sofrprincipal and interest due at the moment of
impairment.

The LGD parameter calculated in this manner isstdpiby the estimated debt collection costs that
the Bank will have to incur due to the collaterquidation.

Cash flows upon the impairment date are discountitidinterest rate adopted for the entire portfolio

EAD in the Basle Model stands for the value of @regposure that shall arise in case of the clgent’
insolvency. In calculation of the expected lossspant to Basel Il, EAD means the sum of current
balance sheet exposure and statistically estingzddf the off balance sheet exposure that tremicli
shall draw by the insolvency date.

For needs of IAS, EAD at the client’s level isw@arent balance sheet exposure at the balance sheet
date, increased by the balance sheet equivaleotg@nt off balance sheet items.

The provisions value depends on the amount of expass well as PD and LGD parameters (PD for
the impaired portfolio is 100% and LGD for the Brifalio is 100 %).

Credit exposure to retail clients (individuals aswhall business) by overdue days

exposure in PLN million
number of days
overdue 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance

0 6 755.8 2410.6 4228.9 2178.2
1-30 288.2 36.2 202.3 22.3
31-60 29.9 5.0 16.3 2.4
61-90 46.7 8.8 41.6 8.3
91-120 4.1 0.1 4.3 0.1
121-150 5.6 0.5 3.8 0.4
151-180 4.6 0.1 2.7 0.1
>180 95.4 0.4 77.6 0.7
Total 7 230.3 2 461.7 4 577.5 22125
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Credit_exposure to retail clients (individuals asdiall business) under IBNR (Incurred But Not
Reported) impairment provision by product type

exposure in PLN million
type of product 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
Mortgage loans 4 480.1 521.3 2 544.2 478.1
SME Loans 1126.3 694.3 773.9 538.3
Other loans 1477.8 1238.8 1134.0 1187.2
Total 7084.2 2454.4 4 452.1 2 203.6

Credit exposure to retail clients (individuals asdall business) under IBNR (Incurred But Not
Reported) impairment provision by overdue days

exposure in PLN million
number of days
overdue 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
0 6 755.8 2410.6 4 228.9 2178.2
1-30 288.2 36.2 202.3 22.3
31-60 29.9 5.0 16.3 24
61-90 10.3 2.6 4.6 0.7
Total 7 084.2 24544 4 452.1 2 203.6

Credit exposure to retail clients (individuals asdhall business) under INSFA (Individually Not-
Significant Financial Asset) impairment provisiondverdue days

exposure in PLN million
number of days
overdue 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
on-balance off-balance on-balance off-balance
<90 36.4 6.2 37.0 7.6
91-120 4.1 0.1 4.3 0.1
121-150 5.6 0.5 3.8 0.4
151-180 4.6 0.1 2.7 0.1
>180 95.4 0.4 77.6 0.7
Total 146.1 7.3 125.4 8.9

6. Compliance Reviews

The basic compliance reviews in the credit risk aggament area are performed by:
— Credit Risk Inspection Department,

— Internal Audit Department,
in the scope defined under items 2.10 and 2.12.
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7. Management of Credit Risk of the Group Companies

The Capital Group of ING Barfiaski comprises the following entities:
Subsidiaries:
- ING Bank Hipoteczny S.A. (until December 16, 20081aski Bank Hipoteczny S.A.) — the
company established in November 2000, in Septer2d@t it obtained the consent of the

Banking Supervision Commission to start of the apenal activity. SBH S.A. is the third
mortgage bank in Poland, (100% of shares),

- ING Securities S.A. — the company began its opamatin 1996 as Dom Maklerski Banku
Slaskiego S.A. In December 2001, the brokerage hoos#88G operating in Poland - Dom
Maklerski BSK S.A. and ING Baring Securities (Pa@rs.A. (100% ofsharey merged to
form one company,

— ING BSK Development Sp. z 0.0. — operating sind@42(100% ofshare}

— Centrum BankuSlaskiego Sp. z o.0. in liquidation — the company watablished in 1997
and its liquidation was declared in 2007 (100% s$&)gr

— Solver sp. z 0.0. - the company established in Z8228% of shares).

Affiliated entities:

— ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. — opegaince 2000. (20% of shares)

In view of the character of operations, the cretik management is applicable to the following
entities from the Capital Group of ING BaSkiski: ING Bank Hipoteczny S.A. and ING Securities
S.A. Risk management is realised in line with tN&1Group standards in terms of structure and
processes (tools) to ensure realization of busitaggsts from risk point of view.

8. ldentification of Credit Risk Connected with Derivatives

Each client concluding a derivative transactiorhwvifte Bank must be assigned a relevant transaction
limit by the Bank. The transaction limits are assid pursuant to the credit procedures and autbriti
binding in the Bank, as for all other credit expesu

CRS system (Credient Risk System) is used to motiitorisk connected with transactions concluded
by the Bank’s counterparties. CRS is a global sysiesed by the entire ING Group in which all the
FM (“Financial Markets”) limits and transactionsnotuded by dealers are registered.

The transactions that generate risk on the couantis'p side (settlement and pre-settlement risk)l, a
that are input to the Bank systems, require registn in CRS.

The risk connected with the Treasury Departmentdyets, such as derivatives, deposits and
transactions in securities, is monitored onlinthatBank.

From the perspective of risk measurement, it magtiided into:

— pre-settlement — arising for FX and derivative sactions as well as transactions in
securities as a result of exchanging the trangacta the market at a potentially
unfavourable price,

— credit risk — connected with placing money on tregkat (deposits).
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Pre-settlement Risk

The pre-settlement risk derives from a breach afigaction terms by the Counterparty, before its
settlement, which makes necessary to exchangetrdmsaction with a transaction with another
Counterparty, according to the market price (padiptunfavourable).

To control the Counterparty’s risk, not only thestof exchange in case of breach is determined
(current market value “MtM”), but also the growth\tM during the transaction duration.

Since the financial markets are not fully predittabnd one cannot be 100% sure about the set
maximum MtM, the statistical models are used tardethe level of trust. Pursuant to the policy of
ING Group, this trust level is 97.5%.

Money Market Risk

The Money Market Risk arises when the Bank plaggmsits with another counterparty (bank). The
Bank loses funds in case of terms being breachdbebgounterparty. Due to this, the risk is measure
simply as the deposit face value.

Settlement Risk

The settlement risk is a risk at which the courdadgpwill not deliver the assets that they are gudyi

to deliver due to the transaction settlement aedBhnk may lose up to 100% of the expected value.
This risk arises when the exchange of value isike place (funds or other instruments) on the same
or different delivery date and this delivery is backed or expected till the moment when the Bank
delivers an irrevocable instruction of paymentloe Bank has paid itself or delivered its part @& th
liability deriving from the transaction.

Some products always generate the settlementsiske never do, and there are also such products
for which the occurrence of this risk is connectéth the mechanism of settlements. The settlement
risk always arises when the transaction involvesilateral exchange of funds/ securities but this
exchange is not made on the DVP basis (DelivergidePayment).

Risk Connected with Securities Purchase/ Sales

The risk connected with securities purchase/saterges when the exchange of funds into securities
does not take place on the DVP basis. Then théemsemt risk arises on the day of transaction
settlement, unless the settlement is made in sugdyahat the Bank can control the transactionasso
not to allow the flow of funds/ securities beforenfirming the obligation execution by the
Counterparty.

Risk Weights

Risk Weights used to monitor the utilisation of iindual limits are defined for single products,
currencies and transaction duration at the levéN& Group. Risk Weights constitute an estimation
of the potential future exposure (PFE) for thettad-money” contract, as a part of the transactime f
value in the period of time remaining till its $ethent.

Pre-settlement risk at the transaction level isudated as:

Pre-settlement risk Market Value + Face Value x Risk Weight,

where risk weight is based on the period of tirmeaming till the transaction settlement.

Risk weights are “used” by CRS system to moniterlével of the counterparty limits utilisation.

131



Annual consolidated financial statements of the BaBkSlgski S.A. Group
for the period from ¥ January 2008 to $iDecember 2008

The portfolio of transactions concluded with thenBa counterparties, covered by CRS (unsettled
transactions), is as follows (all data in EUR roit):

31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007
Money Market 1 873.6 4 363.8
MtM 1 145.7%% ] 91.7*** 3 156.4
PFE 1607.0 1190.1
Present Value + FM Value 2170.7 5692.0

*) In the year 2008, the Group changed approachht® risk monitoring, therefore the data regardingMV
Value, presented in the table above as at 31 &8 2re not comparable with the figures for pregiderms.
**) Gross amount - transactions where the banfrsthe-money,”, only.

***) Net amount — transactions where the bank iis-the-money” are netted with those “out-of-the-ragh

Credit risk connected with derivative instruments

In view of a considerable increase of credit riskderivatives transactions (mainly FX options) made
by the Group with clients, the Group resolved twie® a major part of the portfolio of those
instruments. With the aim of having the risk leweklined in a precise manner the Group structured
the approach.

The approach adopted by the Group to estimatiorthef credit risk generated by derivative
instruments with future settlement dates (actimadactions, outstanding as at the balance shest dat
is in line with the approach adopted by the Graamtiie purpose of assessing the credit risk geserat
by credit receivables. valuation adjustments ategnased at the level of individual counterparties,
using the formula based on PD, LGD and EAD ratwkich is described in detail in “significant
accounting policies” in the point “accounting esiies”.

The total amount of derivatives valuation adjusttegreferred to the result on financial instruments
carried through the income statement was PLN 1@&mi

In addition, for mature transactions or terminaded unsettled as at the balance sheet date, thg Gro
made charges using the methodology for assessengigk of impaired loans. As at 31 December
2008 the value of impairment losses amounted to PLM million was presented in consolidated
financial statements in the item “impairment losaed provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities”.
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Il.  Market Risk Management

1. General Information

The main goals of Market Risk Management in ING IB&mski are to ensure that the Bank’s
exposure to market risk is understood, properlyagad, and - where applicable - within approved
limits.

The Bank defines market risk as the potential thesto unfavourable changes in market prices (e.qg.
yields, FX rates, equity prices, etc.) and/or magaameters (e.g. volatility of market prices aimel
correlation between moves in market prices) anclistomer behaviour (e.g. early loan repayments).

The market risk management process within the Bemkers the identification, measurement,
monitoring, and reporting of risk. The MRM departmh@rovides FM Management, selected Board
and ALCO Committee members with regular risk upslaaditionally ALCO, Management Board
and Supervisory Board receive periodic updatesatoing the most important market risk metrics.
The MRM department is staffed with trained spestaliand the independence of this department is
ensured by its separation from the Bank units wigieherate market risk. An important consultative
role in the market risk management process is padd by the Bank’s majority shareholder — ING
Bank NV.

The market risk management process in the Bankiatdodes the Product Control function which
assures correctness of Financial Markets produatesation. It covers independent assessment
(comparison to market) of revaluation prices ancpeters used for fair market value calculation and
proper P&L and valuation reporting in financial &ys. Decisions about issues related to valuation
process e.g. sources of market data used, pricimdehreserves calculation etc. are taken by the
Parameters Committee which is chaired by Produatr@band also includes representatives from the
Financial Markets and Finance divisions.

The management of market risk in the Bank is prijméocused on potential changes in the economic
result of the Bank (i.e. changes in the presenteraf expected future cash flows) but attentioalse
paid to cases where — due to accounting asymmetrike effect of market rate changes on reported
financial results are different from the effectsoth changes on economic results.

2. Bank’s Book Structure in Context of Market Risk Management

The Bank maintains an intention-based book strecwich drives many processes, including the
management of market risk. The book structure ctflehat kind of market risk is expected and
acceptable in which parts of the Bank and whereketaisk should be internally transferred/hedged
within the Bank. Specifically, books are categadizased on intention dtrading” (positions are
taken in expectation of short-term financial gaioni market movements) dbanking” (all other
positions).A high-level view of the Bank’s book structure sfallows:

Whole Bank
| Trading Books
| Banking Books
|___ Commercial Banking Books
|___ FM Banking Books
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Trading Books

These are Financial Markets (“FM”) books (FX, FXt@ps and Interest Rate Trading) and ING
Securities (the Bank’'s brokerage house) - equityketamaking and arbitrage activities (reported
under FM structure). These books include positteaid intentionally for short-term resale and/ortwit
the intent of benefiting from actual or expectedrsiterm price movements or to lock in arbitrage
profits, and include, for example, proprietary piosis, positions arising from client servicing asrd/
market making. The market risks of open positionsrading books are limited by various Trading
VaR limits or - for the equity market-making anditrage activities of ING Securities - volume
limits.

Commercial Banking Books

These are Retail and Wholesale Banking books atintpicommercial loans and deposits. The risks
of these positions are internally hedged as wellpassible to FM Banking books via internal

contracts, which ensures that these books do nuhicomaterial levels of economic market risk.

However, as described later in more detail, thetdleom financial results of these boak® sensitive

to changes in market rates.

FM Banking Books

These are Liquidity Management & Funding (“LMF”) caiALM (“ALM”) books. Their primary
responsibility is the liquidity and interest ratamagement of the positions of Banking — Commercial
— Books. Open positions are allowed within approvedR limits. Like Commercial Banking books,
there is usually a difference between the sensitvi economic and financial results to changes in
market rates.

3. Approach to market risk management in subsidiaries

It is the policy of ING BankSlaski S.A. for its subsidiaries to maintain markekrat low levels. The
main categories of market risk which can arise agsalt of subsidiaries’ activities are Foreign
Exchange risk and Interest Rate risk. This pol&cgnsured by periodic measurements and monitoring
of the market risks of the bank’s subsidiaries. Management Board, ALCO Committee, Market
Risk Management Department and Accounting Depatinaed subsidiaries are involved in the
management risk process. One of the major elenfetiteomanagement risk process on the capital
group of ING BankSlaski level is the determination of the limits camast the risk of each
subsidiaries and on the capital group level. Thekataisk is measured by the same techniques and
methods as in the ING Barkaski. According to bank’s policy the monitoring diet level of market
risks and the comparison of these risks to lowtirare done on monthly basis.

4. Value at Risk (“VaR") Concept

The Value at Risk (VaR) is the main methodologydus® calculate market risk in FM books, both
“Trading” and “Banking”. The VaR gives the potemtlass that is expected not to be exceeded
assuming certain confidence (probability) leveleTBank calculated VaR separately for individual
interest rate, FX and FX options portfolios. Thédwing assumptions for VaR calculation are taken:
99% confidence interval and 250 daily market obs#ons are used for volatility and correlation
calculation. The VaR measurements done by the Baekperformed in accordance to ING Group
standards and market best practice. The VaR maderacy for “Trading” books is checked in daily
back-testing process. P&L figures, both “actualt @hypothetical or theoretical P&L” (change in
end-of-day market value of the positions in a mgdbortfolio over 1 day, so excluding all intra-day
activities that occurred during that day) are coragdo the VaR. Any model outliers (large positive
and all negative) are investigated and explained.
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Event VaR (“stress-tests”)

The Bank is aware that normal VaR does not presdull picture of market risk of a portfolio as it
does not give an indication of potential lossegxtreme cases. Therefore event risk (stress tgsting
calculations as performed. They cover evaluatiothef Bank portfolios against a number of stress
scenarios for one or more of the market paramébtetsdetermine the value of the portfolios. The
worst result from the scenarios is reported aditia event VaR number.

Trading Books Market Risk (VaR statistics)*
VaR numbers in 2008 (in PLN)

Area Limit As at 31 Dec 200§  Average Min Max
Interest Rate 2 920 680 1 370 337 645 336 290 239 1 555432
EX** 2127 924 380 740 154 898 15930 492 077
FX Options 3129 300 1118 203 878 934 158 730 3 720 330

VaR numbers in 2007 (in PLN)

Area Limit As at 31 Dec 20097  Average Min Max
Interest Rate 3405 870 672 818 359 267 175 953 1424 258
FX** 2119 208 16 692 506 475 16 692 1185 349
FX Options 1892 150Q 222 084 359 047 135 679 982 722

* All VaR limits and their usage in ING Basfikski are denominated in EUR. Limit levels and usagbles
and graphs for the purpose of this document wererexded into PLN using daily NBP fixing rate.

** including subsidiaries, based on monthly measueat
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The excesses of VaR limit for FX options resulteshf situation on the market in th&' half of the
2008. Due to financial crisis we observed unusualements of spot rates and implied volatilities. As
a result spot volatilities and volatilities of vtldies increased extending VaR area covered bgeho
On the other hand the liquidity on the market wagegnely limited — the number of potential
counterparties decreased and the spreads becanme FRutancial Markets had very limited
possibilities to hedge the portfolio. The portfoionsisted in majority the barriers which are very
sensitive to changed market conditions. There weaocations done within trading areas in order to

increase VaR limit for FX Options while keeping ttwgal allowed risk exposure at the same level.
This together with FM actions to mitigate risk riéed in liquidating the excesses.
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Financial Markets Banking Books Market Risk (VaR atistics)***

VaR numbers in 2008 (in PLN)

Area Limit As at 31 Dec 200§ Average Min Max
LMF 4172 400 2068 676 987 948 315 386 2278 421
ALM 4172 400 3044 730 1599 531 510 465 4 467 401
VaR numbers in 2007 (in PLN)
Area Limit As at 31 Dec 2007 Average Min Max
LMF 3784 300 714 276 749 507 214 458 1 432 153
ALM 3784 300 1 395 945 533 356 144 281 1 755 009

*** |n case of LMF (Liquidity Management & Fundinghd ALM numbers represent Delta VaR as this measur
is formally limited (delta VaR takes into accouwip curve changes only).
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ALM VaR (PLN)
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The excesses within ALM area resulted from theedéhces between the way internal deposits were
taken into account in VaR measurement and its tialuan Front Office system. ALM takes
internally deposits from areas beyond Financial Kdts. ALM invests the money primarily into
Polish Treasury papers. This is why both sidesld¥iA balance sheet are valued in FO system using
the same bond curve. At the same time in the risgsurement standard default curves allocation was

used to different products e.g. bond curve for Isomad swap for deposits. This problem was solved
by the end of the year.

Non Financial Markes Banking Books VaR statistics*

VaR numbers in 2008 (in PLN)

Area Limit As at 31 Dec 200§ Average Min Max
Interest Rate 834 480 243 268 95 385 40 877 243 268
VaR numbers in 2007 (in PLN)

Area Limit As at 31 Dec 2007  Average Min Max
Interest Rate 756 860 34 573 25 278 12 642 50 593

including subsidiary positions

Commercial Banking Books Market Risk

As these books are materially hedged against claingeconomic results, the main indication of the
interest rate exposure of Commercial Banking boakes Earnings at Risk “EaR” measurements
(results of these measurements are presentedriatee interest rate sensitivity analysis tabld@$)e

positions in Commercial Banking books are also esttbjo measurements of non-linear interest rate
risk. Specifically, the Bank measures optionaligkr(the potential losses on these positions given
early-withdrawal of deposits and/or early re-paytm@loans) and basis risk (the potential losses on
these positions arising from non-standard rateérgethechanisms). The Bank is of the opinion that

both of these risks are not material (potentiadésstypically represent a very small share of hicsdb
or projected results).
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5. Earnings at Risk (EAR) Concept

EaR measurements are used for the (parts of) bgaflank positions which are accrual-accounted.
Two approaches are used, as detailed below; bgitoaghes cover a 1-year time horizon and provide
the possible changes in accrual results given sbibakges of +/-1% and +/- 2%. The two approaches
taken are as follows:

- A "basic” approach is used for positions compriséderm transactions and/or small volumes of
demand positions. This approach assumes that anyefdiunding gaps or surpluses will be
financed or invested with a tenor of one month.

- An “advanced” approach is used for material volumiedemand positions (at present: the Bank’s
PLN demand deposit base and its internal investimémt-M banking books. The measurements
simulate the changes in the Bank’s results conmioig the combination of:

e Current (internal) investment of these funds anplemishment of these investments as
previous investments mature and/or new volumesatiracted. Future (re-) investments are
predicted based on continued use of current invastnules.

* An assessment of the relation between changes iikeimeates and the rates that the Bank
must pay its clients in order to maintain volumes.

Overall Interest Rate Sensitivity

The following tables provide a good overview of gansitivity of the consolidated Bank to changes in
interest rates. The first table shows the sensitofi the Bank’s results to changes in interesgathe
following should be noted:

— Positions are divided into banking book vs. tradioegk. Positions include all material currencies;
PLN positions represent the vast majority of thtenest rate sensitivity of the Bank.

— A basis point value (“BPV”) is shown for each (Supesition; by BPV we mean the change in the
economic value of a position for a 0.01% paratietease in yields.

— Positions are further split where relevant by aotimg method: accrual or MTM. MTM
positions’ economic and financial sensitivity togaven change in market rates is the same;
changes in the market value are fully and immebjiateflected in reported results. Accrual-
accounted positions display an asymmetry betweeretonomic and financial effect of a given
yield curve shift; this is an unavoidable resultagtounting regulations. The financial effects of
yield curve shifts are calculated in line with tldefinition of EaR presented earlier. The
“advanced” EaR approach is used for PLN demandgiegppdhe “basic” EaR approach is used for
all other accrual-accounted positions. The econoesalt shown is the predicted change in the
present value of future earnings, calculated oweng time horizon.

— As can be seen in the table in case of banking libeke is a large difference between the
economic and financial sensitivity. Although thenkas aware of the sensitivity of its short-term
financial results to changes in interest rates,ntiost important metric is — in line with the ING
Group’s “Managing For Value” approach — the sewisjtiof the long-term economic results of the
bank.

The second table shows the sensitivity of the Bawkpital base to changes in the market value of
debt securities classified as Available-for-SalaRS”") in FM (the vast majority of AFS-classified
securities in the consolidated Bank). It is impotte note that the potential changes in capitakba
shown here are relevant only for the Bantégulatory capital base. The Bank’s calculations of its
economiccapital base do not include positive or negativealgations of AFS-classified debt
securities. This is because AFS-classified dehirgexs positions largely arise from the investmeit
portions of PLN demand deposit volumes in line witie Bank’s economic modelling of these
demand deposits.
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Sensitivity of consolidated results to Changesiarest Rates

December 2008

) Change in Economic Result for | Change in Reported Financial

Book ézgg;g:;ng BPV Yield Curve Move Result for Yield Curve Move
2% 1% 1% 2% 2% -1% 1% 2%
MTM .0.57| 118.57| 58.05| -56.36| -111.33| 118.57| 58.05| -56.36| -111.33
BANKING | Accrual 0.10| -42.58| -12.30| 9.15| 17.37| 361.90, 180.95 -180.95 -361.90
Total -0.47| 7599 4575 -47.21| -93.96| 480.47| 239.00| -237.31| -473.23
TRADING | MTM -0.06| 1191 595 -595 -11.91| 11.91| 595/ -595/ -11.91
BANK MTM -0.63| 130.48| 64.00| -62.31| -123.24| 130.48| 64.00| -62.31| -123.24
TOTAL Accrual 0.10| -4258| -12.30| 9.15| 17.37| 361.90| 180.95 -180.95 -361.90
ALL -0.53| 87.90| 51.70| -53.16| -105.87| 492.38| 244.95 -243.26| -485.14

All figures in PLN millions, including subsidiaries

December 2007
_ Change in Economic Result for | Change in Reported Financial
Book é‘;‘t’ggg:;”g BPV Yield Curve Move Result for Yield Curve Move
2% | 1% | 1% | 2% | 2% | 1% | 1% | 2%

MTM -0.83| 172.22| 84.61| -81.79| -160.95| 172.22| 84.61| -81.79| -160.95
BANKING Accrual 0.82| -168.54| -83.07 80.75| 159.26| -18.21 -9.00 9.00 18.00

Total -0.01 3.69 1.54 -1.04 -1.69| 154.02 75.61| -72.80| -142.96
TRADING | MTM 0.04| -8.94| -447| 4.47| 894 -8.94| -447| 4.47| 894
BANK MTM -0.79| 163.28) 80.13| -77.32| -152.01 163.28 80.13| -77.32| -152.01
TOTAL Accrual 0.82| -168.54| -83.07| 80.75| 159.26| -18.21| -9.00/ 9.00| 18.00
ALL 0.03 -5.26 -2.94 3.43 7.25| 145.07 71.14| -68.32| -134.01

All figures in PLN millions, including subsidiaries

Sensitivity of Capital Accounts to Changes in les¢iRates

December 2008
Approximate Change in Regulatory Capital Base for Yeld
Position BPV Curve Move
-2% -1% +1% +2%
FM AFS Portfolio -1.88 376.29 188.15 -188.15 -378.2
IRS classified to macro cash | - 34 67.48 33.74 -33.7H 67.48
flow hedge portfolio
All -2.22 443.78 221.89 -221.89 -443.78
All figures in PLN millions
December 2007
Approximate Change in Regulatory Capital Base for Yeld
Position BPV Curve Move
-2% -1% +1% +2%
FM AFS Portfolio -2.24 447.50 223.7% -223.75 -443.5

All figures in PLN millions
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[11.  Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity Risk is understood by ING Bar$laski as being the risk of not being able to meeh at
reasonable price the cash obligations arising foomand off-balance sheet positions. It is theqgyoli
of the Bank to maintain its liquidity positions such a way that the cash obligations of the Bank ma
always be met by cash on hand, inflows from matutiansactions and/or from the liquidation of
marketable assets.

This policy is ensured by the following processas,defined in detail in thiNG Bank Slgski's

Liquidity and Funding Policy:

— production and review of internally-defined liquidand structure of funding and concentration of
funds according to clients segment and productsrtgpadherence to any formal limits placed
thereupon.

— existence of a clear governance structure assigroles and responsibilities in normal and
stressed liquidity circumstances.

— production and review of regulatory liquidity reodefined by the Polish and Dutch national
Banks (“NBP”, “DNB”) and adherence to any formathits placed thereupon.

— activities ensuring proper supply of banknotesrahthes, and
— activation, in certain defined circumstances, obatingency funding plan.

The existingNG Bankslgski’s Liquidity and Funding Policwas updated and widen based on:

- Internal Audit recommendations following the imal audit on the liquidity risk management
process,

- New liquidity regulation from National Bank of Road, by NBP 9/2007 resolution in case of
obligatory liquidity norms introduction for the bes)

- The introduction of a new “Cash and collaterglam” by ING Bank NV as of April 2008.

The formal limits are placed by regulators or trenB on the various reported metrics. ALCO may
decide to include metrics in its KRI (Key risk ledtors) report wherein liquidity metrics are
classified as “acceptable”, “under observation™mot acceptable” based on pre-defined thresholds.
The ALCO KRI report is also presented to the Bamkamagement and Supervisory Boards.

In case of excesses of hard limits and/or KRI tiityi metrics classified as “unacceptable”, the
following actions are performed:

- MRM - with help from other departments as necessagpsures that a real breach has occurred
(and not a reporting error).

- MRM informs local and regional ALCO of the limit &RI breach, the cause of the breach, and
proposed remedial actions.

— An ad hoc ALCO meeting is held to agree on remeatiibns and responsibilities for carrying out
these actions. Regional ALCO is informed of decisitaken.

One of the most imported processes of the managdimeitlity risk is the contingency funding plan.
The Bank’s Contingency Funding Plan (CFP) servegravide guidance as regards identifying a
liquidity crisis and, in case such identificatiammade, as regards the actions to be taken tovsiuthe
crisis. The actions taken in line with the CFP dpen the nature and severity and of the liquidity
crisis.

The last quarter of 2008 year was the time whercavetest the process of the contingency funding
plan according to our policy. Taking into accoum turrent international market situation, finahci
credit crisis and in order to monitoring the natand severity of the liquidity profile of the baakd
taking the adequate decisions in that area MB pwiap The Liquidity Crisis Team.
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Polish Financial Supervision Authority regulatiomnmber 9/2007 dated 13, March 2007 regarding the
liquidity risk came into effect at January 2008.0&b-mentioned regulation introduced 4 liquidity
measures: short term liquidity gap (minimum: zemhort term liquidity ratio (minimum amount:
1.00), own funds to non-liquid assets ratio (mimmamount: 1.00) and own funds and core deposits
to non-liquid and semi-liquid assets ratio (minimamount: 1.00). The bank is obliged to measure
monitor above ratios on daily basis and keep thesi®s with predefined limits in the PFSA
regulation.. In the transitory period of being ande of the regulation and also as of 30, June 20@8
bank kept all liquidity measures over their minimamounts. As of 31 December 2008 liquidity
measures of ING Barfdaski amounted as follows:

Liquidity measurement Minimum | Amounts
M1 | Short term liquidity gap (in PLN mio) 0.00 14 947.9
M2 | Short term liquidity ratio 1.00 1.33
M3 | Own Funds to Non-Liquid Assets Ratio 1.00 3.17
M4 | Own Funds and Core Deposits to Non-Liquid and Sdamiid 1.00 1.99
Assets Ratio

It is worthwhile to expand on the internally-defiheeports as this gives good insight into the Bank’
approach to measuring and managing risk and tlegsats are the basis for the explanatory tables
presented in this section.

The most important of these internally-defined répare as listed below.
Liquidity Cash Profile

On the following pages we present the bank’s lityidrofile as of the end of December, 2008. The
reports are presented in two contexts: contradipaitlity positions and stressed liquidity positimas
described below:

Contractual Liquidity PositionsThese reports include all balance sheet positdnsh are exposed to
liquidity risk. The reports are reconciled to thaldnce sheet of the bank. Positions are allocated t
time intervals based on contractual maturity orherg there is no contractual maturity (for example,
current and savings accounts) — to the first tinberval.

Stress Liquidity Positianin the opinion of the bank, this report — madeliire with the bank’s
Liquidity Risk Management policy - provides much nmansight into the liquidity risk of the bank.
The main differences vis-a-vis the contractualiligty reports are as follows:

— Off-balance sheet positions are included if theyehaotential liquidity implications. For example,
the report assumes that financing may be needednf@stimated level of potential draw-downs
under unused credit lines.

— Some balance sheet positions are excluded if thegad have an effect on the bank’s liquidity
position. To give some examples: 1) fixed assedqat included as they are not considered to be
a ready source of cash, 2) capital is not includedve do not expect the withdrawal of this
liability, 3) PLN nostro balances up to the minimueguired balance are not included as the
maintenance of the required minimum balance mdaatsin effect this asset is “frozen” and can
not be seen as a structural source of cash to coaturing liabilities.

— Some balance sheet positions are adjusted to givaceurate picture of the bank’s liquidity
position during a stress situation; these adjustsean effect both the allocation of positions to
time intervals as well as the total amounts of timss. To give some examples: 1) the allocation
of non-bank demand and term deposits to time iateris done according to assumptions about
deposit withdrawals and rollovers in a liquidityests situation, 2) marketable securities are
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allocated to the first time interval based on adwito market value to simulate the bank’s forced
sale of these assets in a liquidity stress sitnatio

Unadjusted Liquidity Gap Positions (in PLN milligns

2008 year end

| IM[  1-3M| 3-12M| Over1Y| TOTAL
BALANCE SHEET ASSETS
égr?lfh in hand and balances with the Central 1 888.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 18887
- Loans and receivables to other banks 5975.3 535.3 150.0 607.7 7 268.3
- Fir)ancial assets measured at fair value through 2944.3 691.3 39441 75489 15 128.6
profit and loss
- Investments 0.0 19.8 892.4 17 138.7 18 050.9
- Derivative hedge instruments 8.8 0.0 92.9 95.3 197.0
- Loans and receivables to customers 9371.3 1726.0 2789.4 11 856.1 25742.8
BALANCE SHEET LIABILITIES
- Liabilities due to Central Bank 1400.2 4 531.9 0.0 0.0 5932.1
- Liabilities due to other banks 2 967.6 2 852.8 208.7 31.8 6 060.9
- Financial I|§b|l|t|es measured at fair value 2341.0 309.6 1 086.2 1 409.9 5146.7
through profit and loss
- Derivative hedge instruments 0.0 0.0 0.0 420.0 420.0
- Liabilities due to customers 38 803.2 3944.5 3 318.5 1 000.7 47 066.9
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
- Contingent liabilities granted 3159.9 495.3 4 683.5 5762.2 14100.9
NET GAP -28483.5 -9161.7 -1428.1 28 622.1 X
CUMULATIVE GAP -284835| -376452| -39073.3| -10451.2 X
2007 year -end

1M 1-3M| 3-12M| Over1lY| TOTAL

BALANCE SHEET ASSETS
;?,gr?lfh in hand and balances with the Central 18417 0.0 0.0 0.0 18417
- Loans and receivables to other banks 11 932.0 737.6 2512.4 1.7 15 183.7
- Fir_lancial assets measured at fair value through 872.9 192.7 743.8 6 098.2 7907.6
profit and loss
- Investments 8.0 0.0 1877.2 7 503.1 9388.3
- Derivative hedge instruments 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.6 4.6
- Loans and receivables to customers 5 648.7| 1 304.6 2 427.6 6 998.2 16 379.1
BALANCE SHEET LIABILITIES
- Liabilities due to other banks 1642.1 123.1 45.0 0.0 1810.2
- Financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit and loss 248.9 155.5 431.4 379.2 1215.0
- Liabilities due to customers 40 361.4 1 699.4 1594.0 847.0 44 501.8
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
- Contingent liabilities granted 10 242.5| 168.1 781.7 1641.6 12 833.9
NET GAP -32191.6 88.8 4708.9 17 738.0 X
CUMULATIVE GAP -32191.6| -32102.8| -27393.9 -9655.9 X
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Liquidity Gap Positions In Bank-Defined Stress @¢®s According to Bank Models (in PLN

millions)
2008 year end
M | 1-3M | 3-12M] Over 1Y |

BALANCE-SHEET

ASSETS

- Securities 21 326.1 0.0 392.3 5093.8
- Money market (given) 7617.8 468.6 0.0 313.6
- Term/demand loans 2945.2 1334.5 2 587.6 18 291.9
- Other assets 277.2 0.0 0.0 260.3
LIABILITIES

- Money market (taken) 2824.5 7 353.8 208.6 179.4
- Term deposits 9667.5 3304.1 1650.3 3274.5
- Demand deposits 3369.3 817.2 4071.5 897.3
- Savings accounts retail 5971.0 0.0 8 606.0 5198.9
- Other liabilities 1543.2 0.0 0.0 0.0
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

ASSETS

- FX SWAPS / CC-IRS 26 271.5 3 724.0 6 286.5 1373.6
- Money market / depo strategic clients 722.2 0.0 0.0 0.0
- Repayment of contingent assets 2 240.5 277.5 593.7 2 659.8
LIABILITIES

- FX SWAPS / CC-IRS 27 446.9 36144 6 041.3 1427.3
- Money market / depo strategic clients 722.2 0.0 0.0 0.0
- Funding of contingent assets 5597.4 0.0 0.0 0.0
NET GAP 4258.5 -9284.8 -10717.6 17 015.7
CUMULATIVE GAP 4 258.5 -5026.3 -15743.9 12718
2007 year -end
| M | 1-3M | 3-12M| Over 1Y
BALANCE-SHEET

ASSETS

- Securities 12 883.8 0.0 94.7 319.3
- Money market (given) 11 024.0 760.1 2 410.7 0.0
- Term/demand loans 2 639.4 1048.4 2 189.5 10 700.0
- Other assets 114.6 0.0 0.0 1371.8
LIABILITIES

- Money market (taken) 1 390.6 123.1 45.0 0.0
- Term deposits 12 407 .4 1313.9 928.1 1961.9
- Demand deposits 2213.7 1710.9 3832.9 843.2
- Savings accounts retail 3193.9 2221.4 8 642.4 5013.7
- Other liabilities 76.9 0.0 0.0 0.0
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

ASSETS

- FX SWAPS / CC-IRS 14 355.0 3282.1 5 866.2 380.5
- Money market / depo strategic clients 2 358.7 0.0 0.0 0.0
- Repayment of contingent assets 937.3 115.8 252.7 1571.2
LIABILITIES

- FX SWAPS / CC-IRS 14 059. 3 249.4 5501.2 466.3
- Money market / depo strategic clients 2 358.6 0.0 0.0 0.0
- Funding of contingent assets 2 876.9 0.0 0.0 0.0
NET GAP 5735.5 -3412.3 -8 135.8 6 057.6
CUMULATIVE GAP 57355 23232 -5812.6 245.0
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As regards the Capital Group of ING BaBlkski S.A. the Bank’s approach to the liquidity risk
management, the liquidity characteristics of thecdfft balance sheet items with difficult liquidity
related standing, are calculated in line with thgufatory reporting requirements for the liquiditgk

of the Dutch Central Bank. In order to measureGhaup’s liquidity risk there are set obligatory itm

for the weekly and monthly liquidity gap for capitgoup and the subsidiaries as well. Below there
are presented the weekly and monthly liquidity gatpthe consolidated level.

Liquidity risk in the year 2008

Area Asat 31 Dec 2008 Average Min Max
lweek gap 18 487 548 18 141 804 15 208 83 22 493 169
1month gap 17 414 358 14 170 666 11 102 857 17 536 139

In thousand PLN

Liquidity risk in the year 2007

Area Asat 31 Dec 2007 Average Min M ax
1week gap 19734 014 11 642 737 7 404 877 19734 01
1month gap 19 282 546 11 678 353 8 439 852 185425

In thousand PLN
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V. Regulatory and Economic Capital Management

In accordance with capital policy Bank maintainsagital base which is sufficient in terms of regoitg
and economic capital requirements. Capital baseapital requirements are calculated accordingatinl v
legal regulations (Resolution 1/2007 KNB form 18fiMarch 2007). Economic capital requirements and
economic capital base are largely bank-determined.

For the purpose of capital management the Bankndisshes items of the banking book and of the
trading one. This division is of key importance éaidculation of the regulatory capital while notegting
the economic capital.

The scope of the capital management process ctheBank and all companies of the ING Batski
Group.

Division of the Bank’s assets into items of the Bang Book and of the Trading Book

The division into the banking and trading bookariportant not only due to regulatory issues, s #lso
reflected in management accounting maintained &yBtiink and in the risk management area. The above
mentioned elements represent an immanent featuree gfrocess of regulatory capital management while
not affecting the calculation of the economic calpiThe aforesaid division may be characterisethén
following manner:

— The Banking Book covers items resulting from thenotercial lending and deposit activity as well as
financial markets items, representing the outcofmaanagement and financing of those items.

— The Trading Book covers short-term items (specuhatarbitration) and trading ones.

the New Capital Accord (NUK)

Bank implemented the requirements of the New Chpitaord/Basel Il (Directive 2006/48/EC of the
European Parliament and the Council of 14 June 280 Directive 2006/49/EC of the European
Parliament and the Council of 14 June 2006). Thegeairements are divided into the three “pillars”:

- Pillar 1 of reflects regulatory requirements.
In the area of credit risk for the purpose of 2868orting Standardised Approach including the dse o
regulatory parameters set in the abovementione@ciies and in Resolution 380/2008 KNB
(replacing the Resolution 1/2007 KNB which was gatory till the end of 2008) is to be used. This
area is managed and monitored by Departments fierRisk Division.
Works are continued on compliance with the requiets of A-IRB approach (Advanced Internal

Rating Based Approach). The A-IRB approach for dhgporate portfolio will be used commencing
from August 2009. Compliance with Basel Il requiemts was achieved by the implementation of:

- Global models developed at the Group level and@edeby the Dutch Central Bank (DNB).

- Local models developed at the ING Bas$ilgski's level and accepted by the National Bank of
Poland.

In the area of operational risk the Bank uses nustogy of BIA (Basic Indicator Approach). This
area is managed and monitored by Operational RidikCampliance Department.

The stipulations of the New Capital Accord do mopose significant changes as regards market risk
measurement, management and modelling. All req@nésnof the new regulations have been
implemented and are executed by the Market Riskagement Department.

- Pillar 2 imposes new requirements in respect of ¢kenomic capital calculation as well as
supervision and management, especially in the @ireiaks. The Bank’s organisational structure and
the model of the institution’s management arene lvith the guidelines of the New Capital Accord.
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This compliance is understood as the appropriageegation of duties and the internal reporting
mechanism ensuring that the Management Board an&tipervisory Board are informed about the

type and level of risks the Bank is exposed tosHillar covers both the risks of Pillar 1 and tie&s
not contained therein, including business riskygfer risk, residual risk, model or stress risks.

- Pillar 3 imposes new reporting requirements andasiets publishing the information policy in regard
to the scope, frequency and form of disclosure mnedentation of reporting information. The Bank

achieved compliance with Basel Il requirements hylding Financial Data Mart (FDM) and
implementation of Finrep and Corep reporting towaftlF (Polish Financial Supervision Authority).

The table below presents the detailed calculatfdrase figures of regulatory capital and solveratioras

at 31 December 2008. In the current situation,@neup maintains an adequate capital level which is
illustrated by the solvency ratio exceeding 8% (jtatpry requirement). Both during the 2008 and 2007

the solvency ratio did not drop below regulatorguieement.

Consolidated regulatory capital base and solvency ratio

31 Dec 2008
Capital components
Share capital 130 100
Issue premium 956 250
Other supplementary capital 74 889
Capital reserve including retained profit of pasans 1 887 834
Net profit of current period in unaudited part 407 470
Minority equity 2299
General risk fund 730 179
Revaluation reserve -100 996
Funds adjustment by intangibles -316 186
Funds adjustment by capital commitments in findrioigtitutions -40 000
Short-term capital 79 691
| Total own funds | 3811532
Capital requirements
Capital requirements for credit risk, credit couptaty, dilution and delivery of instruments for 2580 271
future settlement
Capital requirement for the risk of settlement livay 1319
Capital rgquiremepts for the capital securities ragk, debt instruments rates risk, FX risk and 27 707
commodity rates risk
Capital requirement for operational risk 274 247
Capital requirement for general interest rate risk 51 984
[ Total capital requirement | 2 935528 |
[ Solvency ratio | 10.39% |
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The table below present detailed calculation ofesaty ratio as of the end of 2007.

Until the end of 2007, the Bank calculated the diase and capital requirements according tolBase
requirements and thus the solvency ratios as abeégEmber 2007 are not comparable with the solvency
ratio as at 31 December 2008 presented in the &dioiee.

31 Dec 2007
Capital componenets
Share capital 130 10
Issue premium 956 250
Other supplementary capital 73 825
Capital reserve 1 505 97(
General risk fund 530 179
Retained profit/loss of past years 103 328
Revaluation reserve from measurement of availatiesdéle financial assets -149 591
Revaluation reserve from measurement of propelantfand equipment 57 998
Funds adjustment by intangibles -318 825
Minority equity 1719
Short-term capital 91 761
Total own funds 2982714
Capital requirements
Credit risk 1727 660
Market risk 64 078
Risk of delivery settlement and of counterparty 27 683
|Total capital requirement | 1819 421|
| Solvency ratio | 13,12% |

Regulatory and economic capital requirements

The value of capital requirements differs dependinghe regulatory or economic approaches. Two key
reasons for differences may be distinguished:

— The methods used for assessment and measurentegutstory capital requirements are determined
by NBP/KNB, whereas the methodology of measurenoérthe economic capital requirements is
based on internal Banks’ models.

— The legal regulations precisely define the riskswbich the regulatory capital requirement showdd b
calculated; this does not apply to the estimatiohshe economic capital calculated in a manner
defined by the Bank. Thus, the economic capitabec®a broader scope of risks, including those that
are significant (material), but not included inukgory capital.
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